
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Wednesday, 6 December 2017, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Stan Collins 

Joss Curwen 

Andrew Jarvis 

Kevin Lancaster 

Ian Stewart (Vice-Chairman) 

David Williams 

 

 
 
 
Monday, 27 November 2017 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 12 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 20 September 2017 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  13 - 16 

 To consider progress against the Audit Committee’s 2017/18 Work Programme.  

Regulatory Framework   

6  PREPARING FOR THE INTRODUCTION OF THE GENERAL DATA 
PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR) AND THE DATA PROTECTION BILL  

17 - 40 

 To consider the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation and the 
proposed approach for its implementation within the Council. 

 

7  RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  41 - 72 

 To consider the Strategic Risk Register.  

External Audit   

8  THE ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT LETTER FOR SOUTH LAKELAND 
DISTRICT COUNCIL  

73 - 82 

 To consider the Annual Audit Letter for South Lakeland District Council for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2017. 

 



9  EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE  83 - 100 

 To consider a summary of the External Auditor’s progress to date and emerging 
issues and developments that may be relevant to the Council. 

 

Internal Audit   

10  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2017-18  101 - 160 

 To consider the Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18 and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews. 

 

Accounts   

11  ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2017/18  161 - 180 

 To consider the adoption of proposed accounting policies to be used for the 
closure of the 2016/17 accounts. 

 

Regulatory Framework   

12  AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTRIBUTION TO REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION  181 - 184 

 To consider the results of the annual review of the Council’s Constitution for 
consideration by the Audit Committee. 

 

13  AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  185 - 194 

 To review the updated Audit Committee Risk Register.  

14  REVIEW OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  195 - 224 

 To consider the results of the review of the Council’s Local Code of 
Governance. 

 

15  REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  225 - 236 

 To consider the results of the annual review of the Audit Committee’s 
effectiveness. 

 

Financial Issues   

16  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To receive a verbal update from the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) on any other significant financial issues. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



7 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Georgian 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Wednesday, 20 September 2017, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman)  
 

Stan Collins 
Joss Curwen 

 

Andrew Jarvis 
David Williams 

 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kevin Lancaster and Ian Stewart 
(Vice-Chairman). 
 

Officers 
 

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Ian Hassall Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Shelagh McGregor Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Peter Notley Chief Accountant 

Simon Rowley Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 
Also in attendance were Peter Harrison (Internal Audit Manager), John Farrar (External 
Auditor) and Daniel Watson (External Audit Manager). 
 

AUD/13 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 July 2017. 
 

AUD/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

AUD/15 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

AUD/16 STRATEGIC RISK NO. 16 - WASTE COLLECTION REVERSING MANOEUVRES AND 
AGENCY INDUCTIONS  
 
Further to AUD/6 (2017/18), the Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services presented 
Members with an update on waste collection reversing manoeuvres and agency 
inductions, with particular regard to Strategic Risk 16 (Waste Collection – Reversing 

Page 5

Item No.2



8 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

Manoeuvres).  As an example of the work being progressed, he reported that rounds 
considered to be of highest risk were being prioritised in the Ulverston area.  Lone worker 
rounds had been assessed and the result was that out of 50 identified “red” manoeuvres, 
25 had now been completely eliminated, 23 were down to “amber” and two awaited 
appraisal.  Work on mitigating measures continued in the Kendal area. 
 
The Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services answered questions raised by Members.  
The Chief Executive reminded the Committee that some of the reduction in reversing 
movements related to instances whereby the collection vehicle had previously been 
unnecessarily driving all the way up to a property and that it was the Council’s policy to 
collect waste from the curtilage of a property. 
 
RESOLVED – That the briefing be noted. 
 

AUD/17 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented a report setting out the progress made against 
the 2017/18 Work Programme. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress against the 2017/18 Work Programme be noted. 
 

AUD/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2017/18  
 
The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18.  The 
report provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan to date.  
 
The Internal Audit Plan had been approved by the Audit Committee in April 2017. Three 
reviews had been finalised, with fieldwork having commenced on a fourth. 
 
The report also contained the executive summaries of the three audit reports completed in 
the period: Creditor Payments; Development Control; and Licensing – Premises and 
Clubs. These reports were presented by the Internal Audit Manager. 
 
The Review of Licensing – Premises and Clubs had resulted in a limited assurance 
assessment. Fifteen action points had been raised and all had been prioritised as 
‘important’. 
 
In response to queries raised as to when the current licensing IT system was due to be 
replaced, the Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services explained that the plan was to 
move across to the Customer Connect platform in the next year.  He further explained that 
a detailed action plan had been developed, with many of the recommendations having 
already been addressed.  He confirmed that manual updates were being carried out 
pending implementation of the new solution and the Principal Food, Safety and Licensing 
Officer provided details of how the checks were being carried out through SharePoint in 
the meantime. 
 
The Review of the Creditor Payments Arrangements had resulted in a reasonable 
assurance, with four action points (two important, one routine and one operational). 
 
The Review of the Development Control Arrangements had also received a reasonable 
assurance assessment. Ten action points had arisen from the review, with eight being 
considered important and two routine. 
 

Page 6



9 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

It was noted that the main issues related to the Community Infrastructure Levy process 
which was relatively new.  It was, therefore, suggested by the Chairman that an update be 
brought before the Committee in six months’ time. 
 
The Internal Auditors had also assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 
recommendations had been implemented. The report showed that seven 
recommendations were yet to be implemented but on target, and 17 had not met the 
target date. Thirty-nine of the recommendations had been implemented and were now 
considered closed. 
 
Some discussion took place with regard to Recommendation No.7 on General IT Controls 
and the need for all system users to be requested to complete a declaration to confirm 
their receipt, understanding of and compliance to the IT Acceptable Use Policy.  Members 
were concerned at the fact that this remained outstanding and, in particular, raised the 
importance of ensuring that staff not only signed up to but understood the Policy.  Officers 
confirmed that currently, in addition to new starters, all existing staff had signed the 
declaration.  Members were informed that technology had moved forward significantly 
since the current authorisation process had been implemented and that the issue of 
cybercrime meant that the situation required revisiting.  The Chief Executive undertook to 
ensure that a report on the subject was brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 
(1) the progress achieved in 2017/18 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report; 
 
(2) the attached audit reports, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report; and 
 
(3) the status of outstanding recommendations as contained in the follow up report, as 
set out in Appendix 3 to the report. 
 

AUD/19 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 
 

AUD/20 REVIEW OF PROPERTY SERVICES RECORDS 
 
- Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information) 
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Financial Services Manager presented a report which updated the Audit Committee 
on a review undertaken during 2016 by Internal Audit on property services records. 
 
In response to a request regarding the need to ensure the security of the data held by the 
Council’s new Property Services Contractor, the Chief Executive undertook to make 
enquiries on the robustness of the systems in place. 
 
RESOLVED – That the actions taken be noted. 

Page 7



10 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

 

AUD/21 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 

AUD/22 EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented a report which provided the Committee with 
assurance to enable a review of the effectiveness of the Council’s system of Internal 
Audit. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 included a requirement for the Council to 
conduct a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control at least once a year. 
The internal audit function was a key element of that internal control. For the purposes of 
the review, the areas of assurance which had been relied upon were as follows:- 
 

 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; 

 Audit Charter; 

 Head of Internal Audit Opinion – 2016/17; and 

 Performance Indicators. 
 
RESOLVED – That the conclusion that the Council has an effective system of internal 
audit in place that complies with the principles of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and has planned improvement activities to ensure full compliance be endorsed. 
 

AUD/23 THE EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
2016/17  
 
Note – During consideration of this item of business and in relation to reference 
made to the Cumbria Pensions Fund, Councillor Stan Collins declared a non-
pecuniary interest by virtue of the fact that he was a Member of both the Cumbria 
Pensions Committee and the Cumbria Pensions Forum.  He remained in the 
meeting during the discussion and voting on the item. 
 
The External Auditor presented the External Audit Findings for South Lakeland District 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2017. The report highlighted the key findings arising 
from the audit.  External Audit proposed to issue an audit report including an unqualified 
opinion on the financial statements.  Mr Farrer answered questions raised by Members.  
He pointed out that every co-operation had been received from the Council’s Finance 
Team and, on behalf of the Committee, the Chairman expressed thanks to External Audit 
and to the officers involved. 
 
The Chief Executive reiterated thanks for the team effort by the Finance Team, the 
organisation as a whole, and External Audit. 
 
RESOLVED – That the External Audit Findings for South Lakeland District Council 
2016/17 be noted. 
 

AUD/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT  
 
The Chief Accountant introduced the audited Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement for 2016/17. The unaudited Statement of Accounts had been 
approved by the Assistant Director (Resources) on 13 June 2017 and reported to Audit 

Page 8



11 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

Committee on 26 July 2017. The accounts had been subject to public inspection from 
14 June 2017 where the general public could raise objections, questions and comments 
with the External Auditor.  
 
Legislation required that the accounts be considered and approved by Members and 
published no later than 30 September 2017. From 2017/18 this deadline would come 
forward to the 31 July immediately following the relevant financial year end. 
 
In addition, the letter of representation required approval and signature by both the 
Section 151 Officer and Chairman of the Audit Committee and formed part of the overall 
assurance required by the External Auditor in providing their opinion. 
 
The Chief Accountant drew attention to a typographical error at page 162 of the agenda 
papers, within the Narrative Report and the paragraph entitled Non-current assets.  The 
figure shown incorrectly as £21.96m had been altered in the final document to read 
£1.97m.  He also advised Members that the Annual Governance Statement had been 
signed by the Leader and the Chief Executive. 
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) took the opportunity to thank the 
Chief Accountant for his work and congratulated him on his recent appointment at another 
local authority. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the audited Statement of Accounts, as at Appendix 1 to the report, be approved; 
 
(2) the letter of representation, as at Appendix 2 to the report, be approved; 
 
(3) the Chairman of the Audit Committee be authorised to sign the letter of 
representation and the Statement of Accounts on behalf of the Committee; and 
 
(4) the Annual Governance Statement action plan, as at Appendix 3 to the report, be 
noted. 
 
Note – The Committee adjourned for a short break during which the Chairman and 
the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) signed the letter of 
representation and the Statement of Accounts. 
 

AUD/25 REVIEW OF ANTI-FRAUD POLICY AND ACTIVITY  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the results of the annual review of the 
Council’s Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy and statistical data on cases where 
sources of information had indicated that fraudulent activity might have been occurring. 
 
The last review of the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy had been conducted by 
the Audit Committee in December 2016, with no amendments required. In addition, a 
Counter-Fraud Assessment Tool had now been produced and was included at Appendix 4 
to the report.  A draft Counter Fraud Strategy had also been produced for approval by the 
Committee. 
 
Appendix 3 to the report showed proposed amendments to the Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy, and the Committee was being asked to recommend these amendments to full 
Council for approval. 
 

Page 9



12 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

Attention was drawn to a grammatical error in paragraph 9.1 of the Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy at Appendix 3 to the report.  It was suggested that the Policy should 
include the need to bring to the attention of the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
significant instances of fraud.  In response to queries raised, the Financial Services 
Manager confirmed that the Council was active in addressing and tackling fraud and that 
the correct procedures were being followed. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the review of the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy be noted; 
 
(2) the draft Counter Fraud Strategy, as shown in Appendix 2 to the report, be 
approved; and 
 
(3) the amendments to the Anti-Money Laundering Policy, as shown in Appendix 3 to 
the report, be recommended to full Council for approval. 
 

AUD/26 REVIEW OF WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  
 
A report on the findings of the review of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy was 
presented by the Financial Services Manager. The Policy linked very closely with the 
Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, a review of which had been considered earlier 
in the meeting. 
 
No issues had been raised under the whistleblowing procedure between the last report in 
December 2015 and the report being prepared in mid-August 2017. 
 
The contact information included within the Policy required updating to reflect the current 
internal audit contractor. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the review of the Whistleblowing Policy, as shown in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
noted; and 
 
(2) the changes to reflect the current internal audit contractor be approved. 
 

AUD/27 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
No other significant financial issues were reported. 
 

AUD/28 UPDATE ON APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
Note – Prior to commencement of discussion on this item of business, John Farrar 
and Daniel Watson, External Audit, left the room for the remainder of the meeting. 

The Financial Services Manager presented a report which provided the Audit Committee 
with an update on the process to select and appoint External Auditors following the 
closure of the Audit Commission and the end of the transitional arrangements at the 
conclusion of the 2017/18 audits. 

As reported to Audit Committee in July 2017, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
(PSAA) had begun the process of consulting audited bodies on proposed appointments in 
August 2017. The PSAA Board would consider all the 2018/19 appointments for approval 
at its meeting in December 2017, and confirmation letters would then be sent to opted-in 
bodies. 

Page 10



13 
20.09.2017 Audit Committee 
 

 

 
Note – Members voted to exclude the press and public to discuss details of the 
proposed external auditor. 
 

AUD/29 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated. 
 

AUD/30 UPDATE ON APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS - APPENDIX 1 
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Members considered details of the proposed external auditor. 
 
Note – Following this discussion, Members voted to re-admit the press and public. 
 

AUD/31 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 

AUD/32 UPDATE ON APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
RESOLVED – That the proposal by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd to appoint the 
External Auditors identified in the Part II Appendix 1 to the report be endorsed. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.00 p.m. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



20/9/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year 
Shelagh 

McGregor 
   √ 

Review progress against work programme 
this document 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

√ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 

Helen 
Smith/Chair 

   √ 

AGS Action plan progress report (Ext Audit 
Recs if relevant) 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

 
√ (see Statement 
of Accounts report 

Appendix 3) 

√ (see Review 
Local Code of 
Governance 
Appendix 3) 

√ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

2016/17 Annual Audit Letter Daniel Watson   √  

2016/17 Grant Certification Report Daniel Watson    √ 

P
age 13

Item
 N

o.5



20/9/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

2017/18 Opinion Audit Plan Daniel Watson    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Daniel Watson    √ 

External Auditor Update Daniel Watson √  √ √ 

Appointment of External Audit Helen Smith As required 

Internal Audit 

2016/17 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison √    

2017/18 Internal Audit Plan Progress & 
Individual Internal Audit Reports 
Recommendation Follow Up Report  

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

2018/19 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith  √   

Accounts 

2016/17 Note the pre external audit Statement 
of Accounts and Annual Governance 
Statement July 

Approve the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts 
Sign letter of representation Sept this yr July 
next year 

Helen 
Smith/Pete 

Notley 
√ √   

P
age 14



20/9/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

2016/17 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Dan Watson  √   

Review Accounting Policies for 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley   √   

Review 2017/18 AGS Pete Notley    √ 

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Peter Notley Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen 
Smith/Katie 

Booth 

 √   

Review Whistleblowing Policy  √   

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  
√ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

P
age 15



20/9/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Introduction of General Data Protection 
Regulations and Data Protection Bill 

Paul Mountford   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 

P
age 16



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Wednesday 6 December 2017 

Preparing for the introduction of the General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data 

Protection Bill 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Jonathan Brook - Housing and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Paul Mountford - Principal Performance and Intelligence 
Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

FORWARD PLAN: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Set new standards for protecting general data, in accordance with the General Data 
Protection Regulation, give people more control over use of their data, and 
implement new rights to move or delete personal data.  Provide a comprehensive 
and modern framework for data protection across South Lakeland District Council. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the members of Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation and the 
principles underpinning the regulations, in particular the need to adopt 
a ‘Privacy by Design’ approach, and 

(2) note the approach set out in the report for General Data Protection 
Regulation implementation. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The overarching aim of the General Data Protection Regulation is to harmonise data 
protection law across Europe, and bring it up to date with technological 
advancements.  It aims to promote a more compliance-based approach to data 
protection, with a focus on transparency, accountability and ‘data protection by 
default and design’.  

3.2 The focus is shifting away from enforcement purely against security breaches and 
data loss towards ensuring an overall compliance culture, requiring a more 
comprehensive framework of policies and procedures.  

 
  

Page 17

Item No.6



2 
 

3.3 In summary, the key provisions and changes within the regulation relate to:  

 a need to demonstrate accountability and active regulation compliance;  

 changes to the definition of ‘Personal’ and ‘Sensitive Personal’ Data;  

 changes to the requirements in relation to informing and consent  

 a right to be forgotten;  

 reduction in timescales for processing Subject Access Requests;  

 the introduction of the concept of “Data Portability” which relates to electronic 
forms and automated data collection;  

 a significant increase in the financial penalties from Data Breaches; 

 a need to minimise data held on individuals;  

 obligations on the council where data processing is to be carried out on by a 
third party processor;  

 a requirement to conduct Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) where 
processing may have an impact on the rights of individuals;  

 strengthened approach to privacy by design with a need to give early 
consideration of data protection issues;  

 the requirement to maintain a record of processing activities; and  

 a requirement to designate and publish contact details of the council’s Data 
Protection Officer.  

3.4 Implementing the General Data Protection Regulation will require a corporate, cross 
organisational approach.  All Operational Areas will understand the requirements of 
the General Data Protection Regulation and the significant implications of non-
compliance and take an active role in preparing for this.  

3.5 The General Data Protection Regulations Project Initiation Document (Appendix 1) 
sets out the scope, objectives, outcomes and deliverables of the project. 

3.6 A General Data Protection Regulation Project Board as outlined in the General Data 
Protection Regulations Project Initiation Document has been established to ensure 
senior leadership, drive and accountability. 

3.7 An implementation Action Plan is provided in Appendix 2.  A summary of actions 
underway and key actions planned is provided below.  

 Initial Assessment - an initial assessment has already been conducted based on 
the Information Commissioner’s General Data Protection Regulation 
Preparedness Questionnaires.  The questionnaire focus areas are: General Data 
Protection Regulation, CCTV, Information Security, Data Sharing and Subject 
Access; and Information and Records Management.  These form the basis of the 
work packages that make up the General Data Protection Regulation Project  

 Baseline Assessment - whilst an initial assessment has been conducted 
internally, it is proposed that Zurich Municipal is engaged (as part of the Council’s 
current insurance arrangements) to support the Council to identify any specific 
risks relating to the main changes to be implemented and more general risks to 
the delivery of the General Data Protection Regulation implementation 
programme.  The baseline assessment should focus specifically on the following 
areas (identified through the initial assessment) to review the council’s 
preparedness: Data Breach Reporting, Subject Access, ICT Preparedness to 
handle enhanced individual rights i.e. erasure, portability and contractual 
requirements.  The findings will further shape the proposed General Data 
Protection Regulation Project.  

  

Page 18



3 
 

 Systems Review - the council will also need to conduct a General Data Protection 
Regulation Systems Review to establish what personal data it holds, who it is 
shared with, the purpose or legal basis for processing, contractual requirements, 
data sharing agreements and privacy notices. This is essential to not only 
demonstrate compliance but also to increase organisational confidence to 
respond to the demands of General Data Protection Regulations.  The Council (in 
partnership with Eden District Council) procured the services of Inform Consult to 
compile the required record of processing activities, create a single 
comprehensive Information Asset Register (IAR) and the identify Information 
Asset Owners (IAOs). 

 Data Protection Officer - the General Data Protection Regulation defines the new 
requirement for Data Protection Officers.  The current Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer has been appointed as the Council’s Organisational Data 
Protection Officer.  The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer completed 
the General Data Protection Regulation Practitioner course on 26 November 
2017. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The result of over 2 years debate and ongoing negotiations between member states 
is that the new General Data Protection Regulation was signed off in May 2016 and 
is due to come into force in May 2018 replacing the Data Protection Act 1998.  This 
transitional period is to allow organisations that process personal information the time 
they need to adapt their Data Protection management practices. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 As the Council is already compliant with the requirements of the Data Protection 
Act 1998, it is in a positive position to adapt to the enhanced obligations of the 
General Data Protection Regulation.  However, although the General Data 
Protection Regulation contains some familiar concepts it also introduces several 
new ones that the council will need to review, introduce and comply.   

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The General Data Protection Regulation forms part of the overall Information 
Governance Framework.  The framework links directly to the Council Plan 2014 -
2019, under the strategy heading of Innovation - as it will improve customer service 
and access to Council services. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 At present there is no dedicated budget required for the work to support 
implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation.  The Principal 
Performance and Intelligence Officer, as project lead, is continuing to monitor the 
deliverability of the actions within existing resources.  No additional resource is being 
requested at this stage in the project as the scale of work required is yet to be fully 
defined.  

  

Page 19



4 
 

7.1.2 The current resource assessment is that implementation should be managed within 
existing budgets and this is consistent with the approach taken by other authorities at 
this stage, however the scale and potential cost of changes remains unknown and 
therefore difficult to quantify with any certainty.  There are two potential areas of 
concern that will be closely monitored:  

 the financial impact of variance to contracts or processor agreements to 
ensure they are compliant with the General Data Protection Regulation; and, 

 changes to the council’s ICT Infrastructure to ensure security requirements 
and individual rights can be met.  

7.1.3 Under the Data Protection Act 1998 the maximum fine is £500,000.  If the Council 
fails to notify a breach to the Information Commissioner’s Office within the 72 hour 
period or if the Council fails to comply with any aspect of the General Data Protection 
Regulation then the Council could be facing significant fines of up to €10 million or 
2% of total worldwide annual turnover (whichever is the greatest) for level 1 fines, 
and fines of up to €20 million or 4% of total worldwide annual turnover (whichever is 
the greatest) for level 2 fines. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The implications for the Council are significant and will have an impact on the 
working practices of all employees, members and contractors.  It is essential that 
anyone working for the Council (including contractors and partners) who handles 
personal data is aware of the procedural requirements and responsibilities of the 
General Data Protection Regulation - whether that is responding lawfully to requests, 
preventing data breaches or proactively adopting privacy by design in everyday 
working practices.  

7.2.2 A lack of preparedness and understanding of the requirements of the General Data 
Protection Regulation may lead to data breaches and enforcement action.  Given the 
scale of the new financial penalties for breaching the General Data Protection 
Regulation principles, this could be costly and also damage the Council’s reputation 
as individuals may lose confidence in the council’s ability to safeguard and protect 
personal data.  

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Data Protection Act 1998 came into force in 1998 and was enacted to bring UK 
law in line with the Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC.  The Act has a dual focus as 
it not only places responsibilities on organisations (‘Data Controllers’) and their 
employees to safeguard, collect, manage and share personal data in accordance 
with the Data Protection Principles; it also gives individuals (‘Data Subjects’) certain 
rights in relation to the data the Council hold about them. 

7.3.2 The Data Protection Act 1998 has remained largely unchanged since the start of the 
millennium meaning that vast amounts of data can now be collected, transferred, 
analysed and used with relative ease.  Consequently, there is a growing concern 
that, in order to maximise the hidden potential of all of that data, the legislative 
burden imposed on those who control or process data should be lightened.  
However, the European Union has remained steadfast in its approach to data 
protection to ensure individuals have a right to control their own personal data. 

  

Page 20



5 
 

7.3.3 General Data Protection Regulation - the European Union General Data Protection 
Regulation replaces the Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC and comes into force on 
25 May 2018.  The General Data Protection Regulation is designed to:  

 harmonise data privacy laws across Europe; 

 protect individual data privacy rights; and 

 reshape organisational approaches to data privacy and reduce data 
breaches.  

7.3.4 United Kingdom Data Protection Bill - This Bill was included in the 2017 Queen’s 
Speech and it is understood this will seek to ensure the United Kingdom has a data 
protection regime that is fit for the 21st Century.  The Bill will:  

 establish a new data protection regime for non-law enforcement data 
processing, replacing the Data Protection Act 1998;  

 ensure the UK data protection framework is suitable for the digital age; and, 

 strengthen rights and empower individuals to have more control over their 
personal data including a right to be forgotten when individuals no longer 
want their data to be processed, provided that there are no legitimate grounds 
for retaining it. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 The new General Data Protection Regulation contains no specific reference to 
health, social, economic and/ or environmental considerations, so at this stage there 
are no issues to consider beyond those associated with the current Data Protection 
Act provisions. 

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

Analysis of these implications will be 
included as part of the wider project plan 
when considering the impact the 
Regulations will have on each service. 
These will be included in future reports on 
the implementation of the new 
Regulations. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 The new General Data Protection Regulation contains no specific reference to 
equality considerations, so at this stage there are no issues to consider beyond those 
associated with the current Data Protection Act provisions. 

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

Analysis of equality implications will be 
included as part of the wider project plan 
when considering the impact the 
Regulations will have on each service. 
These will be included in future reports on 
the implementation of the new 
Regulations. 

Page 21



6 
 

7.6 Risk  

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Information Governance 
Framework, and its 
policies and guidelines are 
not fit for purpose. 

Distress or harm to 
individuals or 
organisations. 

Reputational damage to 
the Council. 

Financial loss or monetary 
penalty imposed. 

Detrimental impact on 
Council business and 
service delivery. 

Non-compliance with 
legislation and potential 
litigation. 

Framework, policies and 
procedures are to be 
checked, tested and 
consulted upon with 
relevant users. 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author - Paul Mountford, Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer, 01539 
793271, p.mountford@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 General Data Protection Regulations Project Initiation Document 

2 General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

REGULATION (EU) 2016/679 OF THE 
EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE 
COUNCIL of 27 April 2016 on the protection 
of natural persons with regard to the 
processing of personal data and on the free 
movement of such data, and repealing 
Directive 95/46/EC (General Data Protection 
Regulation) 

http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-
content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:OJ.L_.2016.119
.01.0001.01.ENG&toc=OJ:L:2016:119:TOC  

The Data Protection Bill will update data 
protection laws for the digital age and was 
introduced to the House of Lords on 13 
September 2017 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/d
ata-protection-bill-2017  

 

  

Page 22

mailto:p.mountford@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:OJ.L_.2016.119.01.0001.01.ENG&toc=OJ:L:2016:119:TOC
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:OJ.L_.2016.119.01.0001.01.ENG&toc=OJ:L:2016:119:TOC
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:OJ.L_.2016.119.01.0001.01.ENG&toc=OJ:L:2016:119:TOC
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/data-protection-bill-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/data-protection-bill-2017


7 
 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

10/10/2017 16/10/2017 10/10/2017 12/10/2017 Not Applicable 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee 
(Audit) 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

Not Applicable 06/12/2017 Not Applicable 10/10/2017 10/10/2017 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

10/10/2017 Not Applicable Not Applicable   

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

1 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

Project Initiation Document 

Contents 

1. Background ......................................................................................................... 2 

Description of the background of the project .......................................................... 2 

Project objectives, outcomes and deliverables ....................................................... 3 

Project scope and exclusions ................................................................................. 4 

Stakeholders ........................................................................................................... 4 

2. Business Case outline ......................................................................................... 5 

3. Project Management Team Structure - Roles and Responsibilities ..................... 5 

What are the specific roles and responsibilities within the project? ........................ 5 

4. Project Controls ................................................................................................... 5 

5. Strategies and Assessments ............................................................................... 6 

Quality Management ............................................................................................... 6 

Configuration Management .................................................................................... 6 

Communications Plan ............................................................................................. 7 

Risk Management ................................................................................................... 7 

 

  

Page 25



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

2 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

1. Background 

Description of the background of the project 

 The council has taken proactive steps to develop an improved approach to 
data protection and information security under the recent project to 
establish and implement its Information Governance Framework, however 
in order to satisfy the requirements of the GDPR, the council will need to 
take further action. The introduction of the GDPR also provides the council 
with an opportunity to review and consolidate its approach to Data 
Protection  

 There has been some uncertainty nationally over whether the UK 
Government would implement the GDPR in light of the decision to leave 
the European Union. However, central Government confirmed its 
commitment to implementing a new data protection regime in the Queen’s 
Speech on 21 June 2017 announced through the Data Protection Bill. 

 The Data Protection Act 1998 came into force in 1998 and was enacted to 
bring UK law in line with the Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC. The Act 
has a dual focus as it not only places responsibilities on organisations 
(‘Data Controllers’) and their employees to safeguard, collect, manage and 
share personal data in accordance with the Data Protection Principles; it 
also gives individuals (‘Data Subjects’) certain rights in relation to the data 
the Council hold about them. 

 The Data Protection Act 1998 has remained largely unchanged since the 
start of the millennium meaning that vast amounts of data can now be 
collected, transferred, analysed and used with relative ease. 
Consequently, there is a growing concern that, in order to maximise the 
hidden potential of all of that data, the legislative burden imposed on those 
who control or process data should be lightened. However, the EU has 
remained steadfast in its approach to data protection to ensure individuals 
have a right to control their own personal data.  

 General Data Protection Regulation - the EU General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) replaces the Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC and 
comes into force on 25 May 2018. The GDPR is designed to:  

o harmonise data privacy laws across Europe;  
o protect individual data privacy rights; and 
o reshape organisational approaches to data privacy and reduce 

data breaches.  

 UK Data Protection Bill – This Bill was included in the 2017 Queen’s 
Speech and it is understood this will seek to ensure the UK has a data 
protection regime that is fit for the 21st century. The Bill will:  

o establish a new data protection regime for non-law enforcement 
data processing, replacing the Data Protection Act 1998;  

o ensure the UK data protection framework is suitable for the digital 
age;  

o strengthen rights and empower individuals to have more control 
over their personal data including a right to be forgotten when 
individuals no longer want their data to be processed, provided that 
there are no legitimate grounds for retaining it.  

 

Page 26



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

3 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

Project objectives, outcomes and deliverables 

 The overarching aim of GDPR is to harmonise data protection law across 
Europe, and bring it up to date with technological advancements. It aims 
to promote a more compliance-based approach to data protection, with a 
focus on transparency, accountability and ‘data protection by default and 
design’.  

 The focus is shifting away from enforcement purely against security 
breaches and data loss towards ensuring an overall compliance culture, 
requiring a more comprehensive framework of policies and procedures.  

 The key provisions and changes within the regulations relate to:  
o a need to demonstrate accountability and active regulation 

compliance;  
o changes to the definition of ‘Personal’ and ‘Sensitive Personal’ 

Data;  
o changes to the requirements in relation to informing and consent  
o a right to be forgotten;  
o reduction in timescales for processing Subject Access Requests;  
o the introduction of the concept of “Data Portability” which relates to 

electronic forms and automated data collection;  
o a significant increase in the financial penalties from Data Breaches. 

It should be noted that the maximum financial penalties increase 
from £500K under the DPA 1998 to either 20 Million Euros (or 
equivalent) or 4% of the organisations annual turnover (whichever 
is greater)  

o a need to minimise data held on individuals;  
o obligations on the council where data processing is to be carried 

out on by a third party processor;  
o a requirement to conduct Data Protection Impact Assessments 

(DPIA) where processing may have an impact on the rights of 
individuals;  

o strengthened approach to privacy by design with a need to give 
early consideration of data protection issues;  

o the requirement to maintain a record of processing activities; and  
o a requirement to designate and publish contact details of the 

council’s Data Protection Officer.  
 

Work Packages: 

GDPR_001 – Accountability and Governance 

GDPR_002 – Records Management 

GDPR_003 – Information Security 

GDPR_004 – Direct Marketing 

GDPR_005 – CCTV 

GDPR_006 – Data Sharing and Subject Access 

GDPR_007 – Learning and Support 

  

Page 27



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

4 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

Project scope and exclusions 

 As the council is already compliant with the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act 1998, it is in a positive position to adapt to the enhanced 
obligations of the GDPR. However, although the GDPR contains some 
familiar concepts it also introduces several new ones that the council will 
need to review, introduce and comply with over the next six months.  

 The implications for the council are significant and will have an impact on 
the working practices of all employees, members and contractors.  

 It is essential that anyone working for the council (including contractors 
and partners) who handles personal data is aware of the procedural 
requirements and responsibilities of the GDPR - whether that is 
responding lawfully to requests, preventing data breaches or proactively 
adopting privacy by design in everyday working practices.  

 A lack of preparedness and understanding of the requirements of the 
GDPR may lead to data breaches and enforcement action.  

 Given the scale of the new financial penalties for breaching the GDPR 
principles, this could be costly and also damage the council’s reputation 
as individuals may lose confidence in the council’s ability to safeguard and 
protect personal data.  

Stakeholders 

 Name 

Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) Debbie Storr 

Deputy Senior Information Risk Officer (DSIRO) Simon McVey 

Partnerships & OD Manager Claire Gould 

Shared ICT Service Manager Ben Wright 

HR Services Manager Andrew Reay 

Solicitor to the Council Anthea Lowe 

Community Engagement Officer Emma Nichols 

Principal Organisational Development Officer Jane Barker 

Procurements & Contracts Manager Karen Crump 

 

  

Page 28



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

5 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

2. Business Case outline 

 The General Data Protection Regulation is an important piece of 
legislation which ensures that the right for individuals to control their 
personal data is protected irrespective of future technological advances. 

 Complying with the GDPR will be challenging for local authorities and 
many are in the same position given the continuing economic conditions 
in the public sector.  

 The more the council does now to establish the extent of personal data 
held, to update policies and procedures and to educate key stakeholders, 
the smoother that transition will be. 

 Despite the announcement of the UK Data Protection Bill, we do not yet 
fully understand the extent of the new legislation. But it is very likely that it 
will contain most, if not all requirements of the General Data Protection 
Regulation and the council needs to be prepared to respond to this 
challenge.  

3. Project Management Team Structure - Roles and 

Responsibilities 

What are the specific roles and responsibilities within the project? 

 Project Board – Debbie Storr (SIRO), Simon McVey (DSIRO), Claire Gould 

(Partnerships & OD Manager), Anthea Lowe (Solicitor to the Council), Ben 

Wright (Shared ICT Manager), Andrew Reay (HR Manager) 

 Project Manager – Paul Mountford (Principal Performance & Intelligence 

Officer) 

 Project Team – Emma Nichols (Community Engagement Officer) 

 Portfolio Holder responsible – Councillor Jonathan Brook 

 Lead Responsible Officer – Debbie Storr (SIRO) 

 Advice & Support – Jane Barker (Principal Organisational Development 
Officer), Karen Crump (Procurements & Contracts Manager), Stuart 
Henderson (Business Development Manager), Claire Park (Senior Officer – 
Information Governance/ Data Protection Officer – Cumbria County Council) 

4. Project Controls 
 The Project Manager will report to the Lead Responsible Officer at regular 

intervals which will be agreed in the Initiation meeting with the Project Board. 

Any delays in the project schedule will be reported to the Lead Responsible 

Officer. 

 The Project Manager will confirm at the Initiation meeting the project plan 

based on the project schedule. They will monitor progress against this plan. 

Any changes or remedial action that may be needed will be agreed with the 

Lead Responsible Officer. 

  

Page 29



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

6 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

5. Strategies and Assessments 

Quality Management 

 The deliverables from this project will be considered of acceptable quality if 
they meet the following criteria: 

o Correctness: the deliverables contains no significant errors.  
o Completeness: the deliverables are substantially complete, or else 

omissions are justifiable.  
o Fitness for purpose: the deliverables contains the expected 

information.  
o Meaningful intellectual content: the deliverables contents are 

worthwhile, non-trivial, relevant and practicable in the context of the 
intended operating environment.  

o Internal and external consistency: where appropriate, the 
deliverables are consistent with guidelines and standards  

o Usefulness: usefulness of deliverables referring to the relevant 
audience(s), depending on the context.  

o Presentation: the deliverables are clear, the language used and 

diagrams are comprehensible to the relevant audience(s), and the 

deliverables are presented according to the agreed design and 

development standards. 

Configuration Management 

 The deliverables will be stored, managed and controlled by the Organisational 

development Team using the Partnerships and Organisational development 

SharePoint. 

 The deliverables will have the protective marking of UNCLASSIFIED. 

 Deliverable documents will be identified in the Work Packages. The Project 

Manager will maintain these documents. 

 The deliverables will be refreshed on an annual basis. 

  

Page 30



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

7 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

Communications Plan 

 A series of awareness sessions will be run at individual Team Meetings.  The 

deliverables will be published on the Council’s SharePoint and made 

available to all Council Employees.  The deliverables will be made available 

to all Elected Members. 

 The following table identifies who is Accountable, Responsible, Informed or 
Consulted with regards to this project.  

 The following definitions apply:  
o Responsible – the person(s) responsible for developing and 

implementing the project. 
o Accountable – the person who has ultimate accountability and 

authority for the project. 
o Consulted – the person(s) or groups to be consulted prior to final 

project implementation or amendment.  
o Informed – the person(s) or groups to be informed as part of project 

implementation. 

 

Responsible Principal Performance & Intelligence Officer 

Accountable SIRO 

Consulted SMT, Shared ICT Services, HR, Legal Services, 
Organisational Development, Procurements & Contracts, 
Audit Committee 

Informed All Council Employees, All Elected Members 

 

Page 31



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

8 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

Risk Management 

 

  

Risk 7 
Information Management is not effective 
 
Description 
The Council is required to have effective information governance procedures. 
It will be necessary to manage corporate information by implementing 
processes, roles and controls - including the Data Protection and Information 
Security Policies. 

Current Position of Risk 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Continue to reinforce key standards and 
policies via regular communication. 
Ensure Managers are appropriately 
trained and requirements are clearly set 
out in Job Descriptions and reinforced via 
appraisals. Ensure Internal Audit findings 
are acted on in a timely manner. 

This mitigation added on 
11/11/15.  
 
Update 07/06/17: Training 
schedule in early draft. Key 
standards to be agreed by 
Customer Connect Programme 
Board in autumn 2017 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

Autumn 2017 

Clear and ongoing communications to 
staff to reinforce policies and protocols. 
Regular review and monitoring of 
arrangements across services by 
Operational Managers supported by 
Information Security/ Governance Teams 
in Policy & Partnerships and ICT. 

This mitigation added on 
11/11/15.  
 
Update 07/06/17: Training 
schedule in early draft. Key 
standards to be agreed by 
Customer Connect Programme 
Board in autumn 2017 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

Autumn 2017 

P
age 32



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

9 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

The Information Governance (IG) 
Framework was approved by Cabinet on 
16 September 2015 and provides the 
structure to govern how the Council 
captures, creates, accesses, secures, 
manages and shares its information both 
internally and externally. In line with 
Customer Connect Programme, the 
Council had to its approach to 
information governance. 

This mitigation added on 
07/06/17  
 
In order to implement the 
Information Governance 
Framework it is proposed that a 
learning package deliverable is 
created. 
It is proposed that the learning 
package deliverable will be 100% 
e-learning.  Scope will be 
provided to design and develop 
workbooks for those members of 
staff without access to ICT 
equipment. 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

End of March 2018 

  

History  

of Risk 

Improveme

nt 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q2 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q3 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - Senior Management Team has reviewed as having Impact Serious and 
Likelihood Low. Likelihood has reduced due to progress with mitigations. Completed mitigations and early previous history have been archived. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. Risk name updated from ‘Information 
management’ to ‘Information Management is not effective’. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigation due dates updated. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four.  

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

  

P
age 33



General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

10 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 
Date: September 2017 
Version: Final 

Appendix 1 

 

 

Risk 17 
Cyber Security incident 
 
Description 
There have been many high profile examples of cyber security 
breaches across the World and in the UK recently. The Council has 
effective security in place to protect data and deliver services - 
however threats are becoming ever more sophisticated and 
organisations need to be one step ahead. Cyber-attacks can cross 
international boundaries and may be initiated by organised criminal 
groups, lone individuals or be state sponsored. Cyber criminals are 
broadening their efforts towards UK citizens, organisations and 
institutions. Terrorists are conducting low-level attacks and aspire to 
carry out more significant acts. Examples of threats are Botnets, 
Distributed denial-of-service, Hacking, Malware, Pharming, Phishing, 
Ransomware and Spam. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

  ?  

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
The date when this risk will be 
considered and reviewed 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

  ?  

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
The date that the risk must reach the 
target position – through the 
completion of mitigations. 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Cyber security actions within the ICT 
Risk Register  

Cyber security actions are 
on track 

Shared IT Service Manager In line with cyber security due 
dates  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  Audit Committee of 26/07/17 suggested that the Information management risks should be split to create this separate risk 
for Cyber Security. Agreed on 08/08/17 by the Monitoring Officer. 
Q2 2017/18 update: 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

P
age 34



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

1 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

Consent Sched 2 & 3 s.1 of the 
DPA defines consent as 
one the means by which 
data may be processed 
fairly.  The ICO has 
provided guidance on 
best practice for the way 
consent may be 
collected. 

Consent is more clearly 
defined. Art. 7 describes 
the conditions for 
consent.  It must be clear 
and unambiguous for 
each purpose.  We must 
keep records of consent 
received (so we can 
demonstrate we have 
received it). Data 
subjects must be able to 
withdraw consent at any 
time and as easily as it 
was to give it. 

Review all processing 
arrangements which are 
dependent on receipt of 
consent and ensure they 
are compliant with Art. 7. 
New mechanisms for 
withdrawal may need to 
be developed. 

 P&OD 

Data breach notification There is no requirement 
to inform the ICO or data 
subjects, but considered 
to be good practice.  
Failure to do so may 
have a bearing on the 
size of any fine levied. 
Data Breach Protocol 
managed by PP&IO. 

There is a requirement to 
inform both the ICO and 
affected data subjects for 
breaches which are ‘likely 
to result in a high risk to 
the rights and freedoms 
of natural persons’ Art. 
33(1). The ICO must be 
informed within 72 
hours. Art. 33(5) requires 
the data controller to 
keep records of 
breaches, so that the ICO 
can verify compliance 
with Art. 33. 

Review and update 
breach notification 
process. 

 
Data Protection 
Breach Procedures 
update as part of IG 
Framework – 
completed  

P&OD 

P
age 35



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

2 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

Data portability No provision. New right for data 
subject to be provided 
with their personal data 
in a portable format (Art. 
20). 

Monitor advice from ICO.  
Develop new process.  
Potentially impacts every 
information system 
processing personal data. 

 P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Data processing 
agreements 

There is a legal 
requirement in the DPA 
for data processing 
arrangements to be 
described in a written 
contract (Sched 1, Part II, 
s.12). 

Art. 28 details more 
precisely exactly what 
must be specified in the 
contract between the 
data controller and 
processor.  Processors 
also have liability under 
GDPR and can be fined 
for breaches of articles 
(Art. 83). 

Review data processing 
agreements.  Ensure all 
processing by third 
parties is covered by a 
written contract to the 
standard of Art. 28.  
Indemnity should reflect 
the increased risk to the 
organisation, and an 
expectation that 
processors have taken 
out insurance 

Initial discussions 
with Procurement 

P&OD/ Finance & 
Procurement 

Data protection officer 
(DPO) 

No requirement to have 
dedicated staff assigned 
to managing data 
protection.  At SLDC, 
there is PP&IO, SIRO & 
DSIRO 

Arts. 37-9 define the new 
requirements for DPOs.  
It is expected that SLDC 
will be required to 
appoint a DPO.  The DPO 
shall have expert 
knowledge of data 
protection law and 
practices, and must 
report directly to the 
‘highest management 
level of the controller’. 

DPO will require specialist 
training and an update to 
professional 
qualifications. 

PP&I Officer to 
attend training 
Sept/ Oct 2017 

P&OD 

P
age 36



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

3 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

Fines The ICO can fine up to 
£500K for breaches of 
the legislation.  Most 
fines have related to 
breaches of the 7th data 
protection principle. 

Art. 83 defines two tiers 
of fines for infringements 
of different articles.  The 
ICO will be able to fine up 
to:  
(a) 20M EUR or 4% of 
global turnover, e.g. 
failure to respond to SAR 
or act on request under 
‘right to be forgotten’ 
(b) 10M EUR or 2% of 
global turnover, e.g. 
failure to carry out PIAs 
Fines can be imposed on 
data controllers and data 
processors. 

Conduct risk assessment 
and raise awareness of 
the consequences of 
failure to meet 
requirements of GDPR. 

 P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Policy The Council has a DPA 
policy which details how 
the DPA is to be 
implemented. 

Local policy will still be 
required. 

The DPA policy will need 
to be reviewed and 
updated to reflect the 
requirements of GDPR. 

Data Protection 
Policy (2017) 
refreshed in line 
with arrangements 
under IG Framework 

P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Privacy Impact 
Assessments (PIA) 

Not required, but good 
practice.  Code of 
practice published by 
ICO.  

Required under Art. 35. Communication with all 
those affected.  Ensure 
PIA is embedded into all 
project and change 
management processes. 

 P&OD/ Committee 
Services 

Privacy notices We must inform data 
subjects of the 
processing of their data 

Art. 13 details much 
more precisely how data 
subjects should be 

Review privacy notices.  
Ensure all processing is 
covered by notices and 

 P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 

P
age 37



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

4 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

we will undertake and 
the purposes for that 
processing.  ICO 
publishes a code of 
practice for privacy 
notices. 

informed about the 
processing of their 
personal data (at the 
time their data are 
obtained). 

notices are written to 
GDPR standards.  Follow 
updated guidance from 
the ICO. 

Connect 

Records of processing The description of 
processing is supplied to 
the ICO as part of our 
registration as a data 
controller. 

Art. 30 requires the 
Council to keep detailed 
records of processing 
activities.  This includes 
details of recipients of 
data, transfers, and time 
limits for erasure and 
security measures. The 
GDPR presents a shift 
towards accountability 
and the need for the 
Council to prove its 
compliance with the 
regulation. 

Follow ICO guidance.  
Develop a fuller record of 
all processing activities 
across the Council.  Draw 
on recommendations 
from recent Data 
Assurance Audit. 

Initial Information 
Asset Register/ 
Records Retention 
Policy & Schedule 
monitored in line 
with IG Framework 

P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Right to rectification Principle 4 requires the 
data controller to ensure 
that the data are 
accurate and up to date. 

Art. 16 gives data 
subjects the right to have 
inaccuracies corrected 
and the completion of 
incomplete data. 

Monitor advice from ICO.  
Develop a new process.  
Potentially impacts every 
information system 
processing personal data. 

New Protocol – 
under IG Framework 

P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Right to be forgotten No direct provision, but 
continued processing of 
personal data must be 
justified. 

New right for data 
subject to have their 
personal data erased 
without undue delay and 

Monitor advice from ICO.  
Develop a new process.  
Potentially impacts every 
information system 

New Protocol – 
under IG Framework 

P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

P
age 38



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

5 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

we must take reasonable 
steps to tell others.  
There are some 
provisions under which 
data can be retained (Art. 
17). 

processing personal data. 

Security of personal 
data 

The 7th data protection 
principles requires 
‘appropriate technical 
and organisational 
measures shall be taken 
against unauthorised or 
unlawful processing of 
personal data and 
against accidental loss or 
destruction of, or 
damage to, personal 
data’.  Most fines issued 
by the ICO relate to 
breaches of this 
particular principle. 

Art. 32 defines the 
security of processing.  It 
explicitly addresses all 
aspects of security: 
confidentiality, integrity 
and availability.  
We are expected to 
regularly test our 
measures to ensure 
security of processing. 
Compliance with the 
article can be 
demonstrated by 
adherence to an 
approved code of 
conduct or certification 
scheme. 

Personal data held by the 
Council must be 
identified and secured to 
a set standard (at least 
SLDC IG Framework). The 
Customer Connect 
project will work closely 
with the implementation 
of GDPR.  We will 
monitor guidance from 
the ICO for indications of 
favoured certification 
schemes. 

 P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

Subject access rights Data subject have right 
of access to their 
personal data held by the 
Council.  Response must 
be provided within 40 
days.  We may (and do) 

Right of access 
preserved, but a 
response must be 
provided within a month 
(Art. 12). Complex 
requests can be 

Review and update SAR 
process.  There is a need 
for the Council to reduce 
the amount of material 
held about individuals – 
particularly that held in 

New Protocol – 
under IG Framework 

P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 

P
age 39



General Data Protection Regulations Action Plan 
 

Implementation Date: MAY 2018 

 

Area Current (DPA) Future (GDPR) Action(s) Current Activity Lead Operational 
Service 

 

6 
Version: 1.00 
Date: October 2017 

Appendix 2 

charge £10 admin fee. extended by a further 2 
months. Extra 
information must be 
provided in addition to 
the requester’s personal 
data.  No fee may be 
charged (unless the 
request is manifestly 
unfounded or excessive). 

mailboxes. 

Training (end user) The Council IG 
Framework requires all 
staff handling personal 
data to have completed 
training.  

Art. 39 specifies the tasks 
of the DPO, one of which 
is ‘awareness-raising and 
training of staff involved 
in processing operations’.  
The ICO routinely require 
organisations to mandate 
DPA training in 
undertakings issued 
following data breaches 
or examples of poor 
practice. 

Training courses will need 
to reflect the 
requirements of GDPR. 

 P&OD – 
implementation 
through Customer 
Connect 
 
To include as part of 
People Project in 
Customer Connect 

 

P
age 40



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

6 December 2017 

Risk Management Update 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Brenda Gray - Council Organisation and 
People Portfolio Holder 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

FORWARD PLAN: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The Audit Committee is updated with the Strategic Risk Register. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Audit Committee note the Strategic Risk Register in appendix 1 of 
this report 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Risk Management is a vital organisational control and is a key part of the 
Council’s governance arrangements.  

3.2 The Strategic Risk Register contains all those risks above and below the line 
of risk tolerance.  

3.3 All risks above the line of tolerance have mitigations listed. These mitigations 
are designed to reduce the risks in terms of likelihood or impact or both.  

3.4 The aim of mitigations is to reduce a risk from the current position on the risk 
matrix to the target position.   

3.5 A risk should reach its target position by the target date. For a risk to be 
managed on schedule the mitigations must be implemented by their due 
dates. Not completing mitigations on time places a risk in exception.  

3.6 Risks are highlighted with exception status as part of quarterly performance 
reporting arrangements. A risk is only removed from the register (archived) if 
there is no longer any risk. Please see the Risk Register at appendix 1. 

3.7 Audit Committee of 23 April 2015, Item AUD/55 required sight of the full 
register to satisfy the committee that strategic risks are being managed.  

Page 41

Item No.7



2 
 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by Senior Management Team each 
quarter as part of quarterly performance monitoring and reporting 
arrangements and the review informs this report. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options – the Audit Committee requires that risk management 
arrangements are effective. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Risk management arrangements underpin the achievement of all priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no financial or resource implications in updating Audit Committee 
on recent risk activity.  However, many of the risks identified relate to financial 
issues and are considered as part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Plan, budget preparation and monitoring process.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resource implications in updating Audit Committee on 
risk activity. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications in updating Audit Committee on recent risk 
activity. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Risk management arrangements underpin Health, Social, Economic and 
Environmental objectives. Therefore there is no requirement to carry out a 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Assessment.  

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

Risk management arrangements 
underpin Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental objectives. 

 
7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Risk management underpins equality and diversity objectives and therefore 
there is no requirement to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment. 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

Risk management arrangements 
underpin Equality and Diversity 
objectives. 

Page 42



3 
 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That actions to mitigate 
the strategic risks are 
not met 

The risks are not 
reduced or increase and 
impact on the Council’s 
delivery against 
budgets/services 

Risk mitigations are 
monitored as part of 
quarterly performance 
monitoring 
arrangements and 
appropriate action taken 
to reduce risks. 

That risks are not 
captured or kept under 
review 

Risks are not up to date 
or monitored leading to 
impact on service 
delivery 

Risks are reviewed each 
quarter by Senior 
Management Team as 
part of quarterly 
performance reporting 
arrangements. 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Strategic Risks Register Quarter 2 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Previous Audit Committee updates can be seen here 

Quarterly performance reports to Cabinet can be seen here 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

20/10/17 20/10/17 20/10/17 09/11/17  

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

 06/12/17  20/10/17 20/10/17 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

20/10/17     

 

Page 43

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=121


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Appendix 1 
 

1 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 

Strategic Risks Register - Quarter 2, 2017/18 
 

 
Introduction 
 
Risk Management is an essential element of corporate governance arrangements. The process of risk management allows the Council to identify, 
prioritise and mitigate risks which may have a negative effect on services. This is an important and underpinning process which ensures good value for 
money and also continuity of services.  
 
Risks are recognised as essential management information and so contribute towards decision making. This document lists all those risks which are 
considered as strategic in nature – in other words those risks that could have a wide impact or require senior management control. 
 
This Strategic Risks Register is reviewed and updated every quarter by Senior Management Team. Risks above the line of tolerance are a priority and 
so are reviewed every quarter – whilst those below tolerance are reviewed once a year. 
 
Strategic risks are by their very nature problematic and so can remain on the register for significant periods of time. 
 

P
age 45



Appendix 1 
 

2 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 

A summary of the risks contained within this report 
 
Performance – 2 risks above risk tolerance 
Good performance is vital if value for money services are to be provided. For example Risk 2 has a focus on contractual performance, ensuring that all 
major service delivery contacts are robust in terms of the required performance. Risk 13 controls and manages the introduction of new projects to 
ensure the delivery of priority projects - whilst Risk 14 (above risk tolerance) mitigates against the unintended consequeces brought about by the 
continual process of introducing internal improvements and efficiencies. Risk 15 (above risk tolerance) recognises the challenge involved with a major 
change to the way the council delivers services – the Customer Connect Programme. 
 
Performance via partnership working – 1 risk above risk tolerance 
Partnership working is recognised an an area of risk as it presents specific challenges of its own.  For example Risk 8 is about delivering the priorities 
for local infrastructure via partnership working and Risk 9 (above risk tolerance) is about the formation of new Strategic Health Partnerships and 
ensuring the best outcome for South Lakeland residents. Risk 4 is about affordable housing targets and this is a priority need within South Lakeland. 
 
Protecting the public – 2 risks above risk tolerance 
Many of the Councils services protect the public – for example Risk 3 ensures that strategic Business Continuity arrangements are effective - meaning 
that in a crisis the Council can always provide critical services for residents. Risk 7 focuses on data protection and information security – protecting 
residents personal details and information. Health and Safety arrangements also protect the public and Risk 12 (above risk tolerance) ensures that 
worksite health and safety checks are recorded for contractors on site. Also Risk 16 (above risk tolerance) ensures that health and safety mitigations 
for reversing on waste collection rounds are implemented on schedule. Risk 5, allows the Council to keep a whatching brief on welfare reforms and 
what impact this may have on residents in South Lakeland. 
 
Financial – 1 risk above risk tolerance 
Risk 6 (above risk tolerance) allows the council to monitor the constant challenge of maintaining a balanced budget - in the face of uncertainty over 
future funding. 

 
 

 
 

P
age 46



Appendix 1 
 

3 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 

How to understand this report: 
This register contains the full and complete list of the Council’s Strategic Risks. 
 
The risk matrix - risks are prioritised by considering their degree of likelihood and impact: 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next page shows how the information for each risk is presented.
 

 
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

  

x 
 

Low 

 

x 
  

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are 
unacceptable and require quarterly mitigation and 
management. Mitigation updates are listed for these risks.  
 

Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are 
acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. 
 

P
age 47



Appendix 1 
 

4 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

How to understand the layout of each risk in this report 
 

  

Risk No. & Name 
The risk name is a concise and clear title for the risk 
 
Description 
A description of the circumstances which help to generate risk 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
The date when this risk will be 
considered and reviewed 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the future 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
The date that the risk must reach the 
target position – through the completion 
of mitigations. 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

A mitigation is an action which is designed 
to reduce or eliminate the risk.  The 
mitigation can improve the likelihood or 
impact of the risk. 

A short update on progress made 
with the mitigation 

The person responsible for 
progressing the mitigation 

Mitigations should be implemented 
by their due dates for the risk to be 
improved effectively. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For each risk a history of risk review and improvement is shown: 
RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓  =  a risk review indicates that there is now less risk 
RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑  =  a risk review indicates that there is now more risk 
RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔  =  a risk review indicates that there is the same level of risk 
RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  a newly identified risk is entered onto this register 

  Risk Owner The person with sufficient authority to control this risk  Portfolio the Portfolio that this risk is relevant to  

 

P
age 48



Appendix 1 
 

5 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

Strategic Risks Register 
 

  Risk 1 was archived during quarter 1 2016/17 
 

  

Risk 2 

Contracts do not deliver the standards of performance required 
within the contract fee agreed. 
 
Description 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Mitigations are not applicable as this risk is 
below tolerance. 

n/a n/a n/a 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Risk 
ownership is allocated to each Assistant Director. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - risk reviewed as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Next review is Q4 2016/17 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - risk reviewed as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Next review is Q4 
2016/17 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. The required target position has been changed to Likelihood Very 
Low and Impact Marginal. 

P
age 49



Appendix 1 
 

6 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change as the Council has three new major contracts. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Directors Portfolio Finance Portfolio 
 

P
age 50



Appendix 1 
 

7 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 
 

Risk 3 
Business Continuity 
 
Description 
1/ Loss of South Lakeland House and Server room prevents access to systems and 
data: 
Loss of main office and server room due to major fire prevents access to systems and 
data. Likelihood is low due to fire prevention measures however impact is critical as 
affects all services at once, some at critical times. The remote access server that 
allows people to access systems and data from remote locations is based in South 
Lakeland House and if destroyed would severely limit services. A fire could also 
destroy most laptops. The delay in getting new laptops supplied with an SLDC 
configuration would again severely limit services.  
2/ Loss of telecommunications due to external or internal infrastructure failure: 
Likelihood is at least significant as telephony issues occur several times each year. 
Impact is serious as affects all services for up to a day and inevitably at critical times. A 
current work around in extremis allows public calls to be redirected to Eden and then 
to Canal Head Depot, however staff would have to use mobiles to make external calls. 
The Emergency Control Room (SLDC Contact Centre) has independent phone lines and 
WIFI internet access and mobile phone reception in place.  

Current Position of Risk 

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Review Date 
Quarterly 
 
 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 x   

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Resilient telephony network Complexity of technical solution 
requires amended due date. 
10/07/17: date requires amending to 
31/12/17 as procurement is now 
being progressed. 

IT Services Manager 31/12/17 
A solution has been found, the 
procurement route is being 
progressed for implementation by 
end December 2017 

Check the effectiveness of the generator 
installation and the external power supply 

This mitigation added on 03/04/17 
Update 10/07/17: Property Services 
have begun checks for the 

Performance and Risk Officer 01/09/17 
Completed – faulty sensor repaired 

P
age 51



Appendix 1 
 

8 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

generator. 
29/09/17: faulty generator sensor 
now repaired. 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. Previously completed 
mitigations and 2016/17 history have been archived – for this information please see Q1 2017/18 version of this risk register. 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation Portfolio Council Organisation and People Portfolio 
 

P
age 52



Appendix 1 
 

9 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  

Risk 4 
Affordable housing targets are not met. 
 
Description 
There is a risk that the Council may not achieve the Council Plan target: ‘By 2025 we 
will have enabled with the private sector the development of 1,000 new affordable 
homes for rent’. The Council will need to enable delivery of new affordable and open 
market housing particularly through private sector led development across the 
district. Performance is influenced by New Homes Bonus and Local Government 
Financing. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Mitigations are not applicable as risk is below 
tolerance 

n/a n/a n/a 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Very Low, 
performance monitoring indicates that housing targets are on track. 

Q4 2015/16: POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Very Low, performance 
monitoring continues to indicate that housing targets are on track. Next review is Q4 2016/17 

Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and 
Likelihood Very Low – to be reviewed in Q2. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17 RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑ - SMT review raises risk position to Likelihood Low and Impact Marginal due to changes to New Homes 
Bonus and Local Government Financing – description of risk updated.  
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Strategic Development Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 

P
age 53



Appendix 1 
 

10 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 
 

  

Risk 5 
Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities 

 
Description 
Welfare reform is a major element of recent government spending cuts - resulting in 
significant changes to taxes and benefits. Universal Credit may have an impact on the 
level of benefits. Welfare reform therefore impacts on low-income tenants and social 
landlords. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Mitigations are not applicable as this risk is 
below tolerance. 

n/a n/a n/a 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - reviewed risk is Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Next review is Q4 2016/17 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - reviewed risk is Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Next review to be in 
Q2. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17 RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑ - SMT review raises risk position to Likelihood Medium and Impact Marginal due to uncertainties around 
welfare support. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director & Chief Finance Officer Portfolio Culture, Wellbeing and Leisure Portfolio 

P
age 54



Appendix 1 
 

11 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 
 

  

Risk 6 
Medium Term Financial Planning – delivery of a balanced budget 
 
Description 
Current and future years proposed budget reductions (expenditure and income) are 
not achieved. Future year’s budget reductions (expenditure or income) are not 
identified. Significant existing income sources are not protected or effectively 
managed. Income from Central Government is reduced above the current 
assumptions. NDR income assumptions are not achieved. Other key factors are the 
Spending Review 2015-2020, Business Rates Retention and the Fair Funding Review. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
Annual – end of March 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

MTFP assumptions are reviewed, updated and 
reported on a quarterly basis 

Mitigation is in place and on track Assistant Director of Resources 
(Section 151) 

Each quarter 

Options to resolve any issues are provided to 
the Cabinet each quarter 

Mitigation is in place and on track Assistant Director of Resources 
(Section 151). Assistant Directors 
Directors 

Each quarter 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as having serious impact and significant likelihood. Assistant Directors and Directors 
have been added to mitigation ‘Options to resolve any issues are provided to the Cabinet each quarter’ to reflect cross council responsibility.  
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as having serious impact and significant likelihood. Early 
previous history is archived.  
Q2 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as serious impact and significant likelihood. The DCLG 4 year settlement application is 
completed. Early previous history is archived.        
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change.      
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION ↔ - SMT review indicates no change however uncertainty over future funding may influence future risk position. 

P
age 55



Appendix 1 
 

12 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Government have confirmed 4-year settlement offer will apply to 2018/19; 
Cumbrian authorities considering 100% business rate retention pilot for 2018/19. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director & Chief Finance Officer Portfolio Finance Portfolio 
 

P
age 56



Appendix 1 
 

13 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  

Risk 7 
Information Management is not effective 
 
Description 
The Council is required to have effective information governance procedures. It will 
be necessary to manage corporate information by implementing processes, roles and 
controls - including the Data Protection and Information Security Policies. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Continue to reinforce key standards and 
policies via regular communication. Ensure 
Managers are appropriately trained and 
requirements are clearly set out in Job 
Descriptions and reinforced via appraisals. 
Ensure Internal Audit findings are acted on in 
a timely manner. 

This mitigation added on 11/11/15.  
 
Update 07/06/17: Training schedule 
in early draft. Key standards to be 
agreed by Customer Connect 
Programme Board in autumn 2017 
 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

Autumn 2017 

Clear and ongoing communications to staff to 
reinforce policies and protocols. Regular 
review and monitoring of arrangements 
across services by Operational Managers 
supported by Information Security/ 
Governance Teams in Policy & Partnerships 
and ICT. 

This mitigation added on 11/11/15.  
 
Update 07/06/17: Training schedule 
in early draft. Key standards to be 
agreed by Customer Connect 
Programme Board in autumn 2017 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

Autumn 2017 

The Information Governance (IG) Framework 
was approved by Cabinet on 16 September 
2015 and provides the structure to govern 

This mitigation added on 07/06/17  
 
In order to implement the 

Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

End of March 2018 

P
age 57



Appendix 1 
 

14 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

how the Council captures, creates, accesses, 
secures, manages and shares its information 
both internally and externally. In line with 
Customer Connect Programme, the Council 
had to its approach to information 
governance. 

Information Governance Framework 
it is proposed that a learning 
package deliverable is created. 
It is proposed that the learning 
package deliverable will be 100% e-
learning.  Scope will be provided to 
design and develop workbooks for 
those members of staff without 
access to ICT equipment. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q2 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q3 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Policy and Partnerships has assessed the risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - Senior Management Team has reviewed as having Impact Serious and 
Likelihood Low. Likelihood has reduced due to progress with mitigations. Completed mitigations and early previous history have been archived. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. Risk name updated from ‘Information 
management’ to ‘Information Management is not effective’. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigation due dates updated. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four.  

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 

P
age 58



Appendix 1 
 

15 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  

Risk 8 
The infrastructure required to deliver the Council Plan priorities is 
not provided. 
 
Description 
Infrastructure is required to support businesses and housing development objectives. 
The Council will need to implement the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to 
provide funding stream for infrastructure delivery. There will need to be protocols for 
CIL Governance and an up to date Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 
Due to the impacts of Storm Desmond there may be implications associated with 
future flood resilience measures and infrastructure repairs. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Annual update of Infrastructure Delivery Plan. Review largely complete to be 
reported to Cabinet.  
Update 21/12/16: approach to 
meeting education needs in Kendal 
being worked up by Cumbria County 
Council. Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
will be reported to Cabinet in March 
2017. 
Update 04/04/17: extra time 
required for education aspect due 
date extended to 31/05/17 

Development Strategy and Housing 
Manager 

01/12/16 
Amended to 31/05/17 

Development of protocols for CIL Governance. To be reported to Cabinet 
Update 21/12/16: CIL Governance 
Protocols will be reported with 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan to 
Cabinet in March 2017. 
Update 04/04/17: extra time 

Development Strategy and Housing 
Manager 

01/12/16 
Amended to 31/05/17 

P
age 59



Appendix 1 
 

16 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

required for education aspect due 
date extended to 31/05/17 

CIL Review proposed as part of Development 
Management Policies process. 

To be undertaken when draft 
Development Management policies 
are consulted upon in Autumn 2016.  
Update 21/12/16: Viability study 
scheduled for mid 2017 – will update 
viability position in relation to 
affordable housing, CIL and impact of 
Development Management policies. 
Update 04/04/17: Viability study 
Commisioned. 

Development Strategy and Housing 
Manager 

01/03/18 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q3 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk remains unchanged at Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. Due dates of mitigations have 
been amended to tie in with scheduled timescales. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - Risk reviewed as Impact Serious and Likelihood Low. Significant CIL liabilities identified. Some Kendal 
Town Centre projects implemented. Air quality position improved. Next review is Q4 2016/17. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk remains unchanged at Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 
Description of risk is widened out to reflect implications associated with Storm Desmond. Completed mitigations and early previous history have 
been archived.             
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
21/12/16: Recommend closer to target position of risk - Kendal and Ulverston Transport Package proposals now being implemented; CIL resource 
beginning to accumulate with more than £150K with payments pending for a further £100K; will be in a position to make spending decisions in 
2017-18. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. There has been positive progress and further collaboration with 
partners on infrastructure needs is required. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Strategic Development Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 

P
age 60



Appendix 1 
 

17 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  

Risk 9 
Essential strategic partnerships required to deliver the Council Plan 
do not operate effectively. 
 
Description 
Where necessary robust agreements will be needed. Also opportunities and resource 
implications should be identified. Partnerships will need to work supportively to 
achieve Council Plan objectives. 
The introduction of NHS STP’s and the movement of South Cumbria CCG’s into 
Lancashire/Morecambe Bay by April 2017 requires new strategic partnerships to be 
formed with these groups to ensure SLDC and its communities gain maximum benefit 
from any changes. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Monitor resource, cost and reputational 
impact with established strategic partnerships 

No cost implications to the council in 
maintaining partnerships 

Partnerships & Organisational 
Development Manager 

31/03/18 annual review 
 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reprioritised risk as Serious Impact and Medium Likelihood. 
Q1 2015/16: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - following appraisal by Policy and Partnerships it has been decided that mitigations 1 & 2 are met. 
Policy and Partnerships confirm that the risk has reached the target position of Likelihood Low and Impact Marginal. Next review is now in Q4. 

Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - risk remains at Likelihood Low and Impact Marginal. Next review is Q4 2016/17 

Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - risk reviewed as Likelihood Low and Impact Marginal. Completed 
mitigations have been archived. Mitigation due date reset to reflect the next annual review. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑ - review prior to Audit Committee indicates an increase in potential impact to ‘Serious’. The introduction 
of NHS STP’s and the movement of South Cumbria CCG’s into Lancashire/Morecambe Bay by April 2017 requires new strategic partnerships to be 
formed with these groups to ensure SLDC and its communities gain maximum benefit from any changes. Risk description updated. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑- SMT review indicates an increase to Likelihood Medium and Impact Serious. The risk has its likelihood 
increased due to the complex nature and changes brought about by the NHS Strategic Transformation Plans arrangement now in place. This puts 
SLDC into the South Cumbria and Lancashire footprint. It is unclear at this time as to the advantages/disadvantages this may have on the 
community. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  There is a meeting planned for political leaders and officers within the 1st qtr of 2017/18 to raise 

P
age 61



Appendix 1 
 

18 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

and discuss this issue across partners and Morecambe Bay authorities. A governance review of the Cumbria LEP (Local Enterprise Partnership) is 
also underway. Positive collaborative relationships are being seen with Cumbria County Council locally, with Joint Districts in Cumbria, and now as 
a partner in the Northern Powerhouse Partnership at an Officer level. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  SMT review indicates no change to position of risk. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ -  SMT review indicates no change to position of risk. 

  Risk Owner Chief Executive  Portfolio Leader and Finance Portfolio 

P
age 62



Appendix 1 
 

19 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  Risk 10 and Risk 11 were archived during quarter 1 2016/17 
 
 

Risk 12 
Health and Safety management of contracts – records for on site 
checks 

 
Description of risk 
Health and safety management arrangements require a review for officer led 
contracts. Officers that are managing contractors are required to make safety checks 
and keep records. Safety checks should be proportional to risk. A review may indicate 
new requirements and resources.  

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Next Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Contracts Management Health and Safety 
training is provided 

Completed Principle Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Officer 

09/04/15 

Officer leads carry out onsite H&S monitoring 
which is proportionate to the risk 

ongoing All staff managing contracts Ongoing requirement 

Officer led contracts are subject to spot 
checks for onsite monitoring records. 

Q4 2015/16: Initial assessment 
indicates that evidence exists for 
H&S checks 
Q3 2016/17: A second assessment 
identifies training needs 

All managers with contracts. 
 

Ongoing requirement 

Promote training on active monitoring Building/property and all external 
contractors to be involved in the 
training 

All Managers with contracts 13/04/17, further training sessions 
to be completed by end of Qtr 1 
2017/18 

Further spot checks to be made for records of 
onsite contractor safety 

Mitigation added following SMT 
review on 06/07/17. 

Performance and Risk Officer 01/10/17 

P
age 63



Appendix 1 
 

20 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

Completed 
 

A further review will be completed by 
Assistant Directors in October 2017 

Mitigation added 12/10/17 Assistant Directors 01/11/2017 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - progress with mitigations has reduced this risk. Risk reviewed as Impact 
Critical and Likelihood Low. Early previous history has been archived. 
Q2 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as Impact Critical and Likelihood Low. Early previous history has been archived. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change The description of the risk has been expanded for clarity. A further 
mitigation around training has been added – action owner and due date to be agreed. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Action owner identified and training requirements in place. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ – impact reduced to reflect completion of training however likelihood increased to maintain the risk 
position as above tolerance ensuring regular quarterly reviews - and the focus on spot checks for evidence of on site safety monitoring. Risk name 
updated for the focus on records of onsite checks – likelihood medium and impact serious. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Additional mitigation added. 

Risk Owner Chief Executive Portfolio Finance Portfolio 

 
 

Risk 13 
Impact of new projects and initiatives on existing Council Plan 
priorities 

 
Description of risk 
There is a risk that new projects and initiatives take the resources required by other 
projects and initiatives currently in the programme.  

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 x   

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Next Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

P
age 64



Appendix 1 
 

21 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Ensure that potential new projects and 
initiatives are subject to a pre-assessment 
which measures their priority 

Completed and ongoing 
requirement. 
Update 10/11/16: Reinforce the 
assessment and prioritisation of new 
projects – review in six months. 
 

Director of People and Places Ongoing requirement 
 
Review on 31/03/17 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Flood Recovery activity is still significant and maintains the risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood 
Medium.  
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Flood Recovery activity continues. This risk is reviewed as Impact Serious 
and Likelihood Medium. Early previous history has been archived. 
Q2 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - This risk is reviewed as Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. Early previous history has been 
archived. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. Risk name updated from ‘Impact of new 
projects and initiatives’ to ‘Impact of new projects and initiatives on existing Council Plan priorities’. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - SMT review changes the risk position to Likelihood Medium and Impact Marginal. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change.  
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change however to be reviewed at quarter three subject to prioritisation of resources. 

Risk Owner Director of People and Places  Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 
 
 

P
age 65



Appendix 1 
 

22 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

Risk 14 
Unintended impacts of efficiencies and service changes 
 
Description of risk 
New efficiencies and changes brought about by one service can have unintended 
negative impacts on the efficiency and running of another service – especially if 
proposals are not consulted on until to late in the process. These impacts can increase 
the cost of running other services. Also the changes brought about by other 
organisations have the potential to influence Council resources and delivery. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

 
Next Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/18 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

This risk is managed via the Service Planning 
and Budgeting processes.  

Completed Operational Managers 
Senior Management Team 

Mitigations in place within 
existing Service Planning and 
Budgeting processes. 

Promote early discussions on potential change 
with external parties 

New mitigation on 10/11/16 
06/07/17: Mitigations underway and 
ongoing 

Director of People and Places 
 

31/03/17 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: RISK IDENTIFIED ● - risk separated from risk 013/14’ impact of new projects’. Reviewed by Senior managers as Marginal Impact and 
Medium Likelihood. On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Medium. 
Q4 2015/16: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - Service Planning activity has reduced the likelihood of this risk.  Risk reviewed as Impact Marginal and 
Likelihood Low. This risk will now be reviewed in Q4 2016/17. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. The risk 
description has been developed to include partner organisations. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑- SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates an increase in risk to Impact Serious and Likelihood 
Medium due to continued financial pressure on external parties and funding arrangements. New mitigation added. Risk name improved for clarity 
from ‘Impact of efficiencies’ to ‘Unintended impacts of efficiencies and service changes’. This risk is now above risk tolerance and will be reviewed 

P
age 66



Appendix 1 
 

23 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

each quarter. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk position reviewed as no change  - impacts are still possible due to Second Homes Bonus, 
Recycling Credits and the Council’s Customer Connect improvement programme. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigations are in progress. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change – this risk is linked to ‘Risk 15: Customer Connect’. 

Risk Owner Director of People and Places  Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Appendix 1 
 

24 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 
 

  

Risk 15 
Customer Connect Programme 
 
Description 
The programme fails to deliver what’s set out in the programme definition and 
customer contact strategy. 
Customer Connect is a challenging programme that requires significant change 
to ways of working for staff across the Council. There are currently 25 risks on 
the Customer Connect Risk Log. Of these 25 risks there are 14 risks with a score 
of 6-12. This quantity of risk is significant and therefore requires an escalation 
to the Strategic Risk Register. Mitigations are in place for the risks, however the 
main challenges to the programme are: Scope and Ambition, Staff resources 
and capacity, Skills and Workforce Planning, Buy in from Customers and 
Training and development for staff and Councillors. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Each quarter 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/18 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

The programme is being managed via the 
Programme Board with resources 
identified to deliver year 1 and 2 of the 
programme. 

Financial resources are set aside 
for the programme, but there is a 
requirement to identify all the 
staff needed over the next two 
years to support the projects 
 
Update 07/06/17: In May 2017 
membership of the Programme 
Boards was revised and updated 
to reflect the additional roles 
required to deliver the various 
projects within the programme.   
 
There is still significant work to 

Partnerships & Organisational 
Development Manager 

01/07/2017 

P
age 68



Appendix 1 
 

25 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

deliver the People element of the 
programme that requires a 
structure to be created to reflect 
the new operating model 

There is a risk log for the programme SMT have ownership of all the 
risks and identified mitigations -  
completed. 

Projects & Innovation Officer 01/07/2017 

  

History  
of Risk Improvement 

Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK IDENTIFIED ●  - The operational risk ‘Customer Connect Programme’ is escalated as Likelihood 
Medium and Impact Serious - Senior Management Team decide to include as a Strategic Risk on the Strategic Risk Register. 
Q2 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔   - Assessed as Likelihood Medium and Impact Serious. Mitigations are listed to control the 
risk. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Customer Connect risks are managed by the Programme 
Board. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates Likelihood Medium and Impact Serious. The project is making good 
progress in all three areas: Digital, People, and Places. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 

  
Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation - Senior 

Responsible Owner. 
Portfolio Housing & Innovation  and Council Organisation and 

People  

 

P
age 69



Appendix 1 
 

26 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

  

Risk 16  
Waste Collection – Reversing Manoeuvres 
 
Description 
Management of waste collection vehicle manoeuvres on recycling and waste 
collection rounds. 
There are many practical and advanced technological safety precautions in 
place including the following: 
Waste collection rounds have risk assessments and safe systems of work in 
place. 
All drivers and crews have been trained. 
All rounds are monitored to ensure that safe systems are adhered to. 
Vehicles have advanced technologies fitted e.g. reversing CCTV and 
sophisticated radar to assist the driver and crews manoeuvre safely 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

   X 

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Each quarter when above the line of 
risk tolerance 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

   X 

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/17 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Maintain and keep up to date the Safe 
System of Work, inspections and the 
utilisation of risk reducing technologies. 

In progress and reviewed by the 
Street Scene Health and Safety 
Working Group on a quarterly 
basis 

Street Scene Manager Continuous 

Commission specialist support to assist in 
the completion of a further review of 
vehicle movements including reversing on 
private drives, private roadways and 
narrow access highways  

Update 17/11/16: Support 
commissioned and interim report 
received. Considering key actions 
for the service within operational 
health and safety plans. 
Completed. 

Street Scene Manager 31/12/16 

Implement the priority findings of the 
above review  

Specific Action plan has been 
developed to implement the 
findings of the review. High 

Street Scene Manager 31/12/17 

P
age 70



Appendix 1 
 

27 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

Priority Areas have been 
identified and the 
implementation of necessary 
changes commenced and planned 
for completion by amended due 
date of 31/12/17. 

Implement the lower priority findings of 
the above review 

Planned for completion by 
31/12/17 

Street Scene Manager 31/12/17 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

Q2 2016/17:  RISK IDENTIFIED ● - Risk is currently managed operationally but following HSE visit it was suggested that the risk be 
included on the  Strategic Risks Register and has been assessed as Likelihood Low and Impact Critical. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 
Q3 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Many of the reviews are completed however there are a small 
number outstanding as this involves a policy change to collection points and methods, and these are not just reversing issues. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change – work is in progress. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services Portfolio Environment Portfolio 

 

P
age 71



Appendix 1 
 

28 
Version: 1 
Date: 29/09/2017 
Quarter: 2, 2017/18 
 

 

Risk 17 
Cyber Security incident 
 
Description 
There have been many high profile examples of cyber security breaches across 
the World and in the UK recently. The Council has effective security in place to 
protect data and deliver services - however threats are becoming ever more 
sophisticated and organisations need to be one step ahead. Cyber-attacks can 
cross international boundaries and may be initiated by organised criminal 
groups, lone individuals or be state sponsored. Cyber criminals are broadening 
their efforts towards UK citizens, organisations and institutions. Terrorists are 
conducting low-level attacks and aspire to carry out more significant acts. 
Examples of threats are Botnets, Distributed denial-of-service, Hacking, 
Malware, Pharming, Phishing, Ransomware and Spam. 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

   x 
Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
The date when this risk will be 
considered and reviewed 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

  x  

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
The date that the risk must reach the 
target position – through the 
completion of mitigations. 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Cyber security actions within the ICT Risk 
Register  

Cyber security actions are on 
track 

Shared IT Service Manager In line with cyber security due dates  

Review of Insurance  Mitigation added 12/10/17 Financial Services Manager Deputy 
Section 151 Officer 

31/12/17 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  Audit Committee of 26/07/17 suggested that the Information management risks should be split to create this separate risk 
for Cyber Security. Agreed on 08/08/17 by the Monitoring Officer. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION - ↔ - SMT review indicates likelihood very low and impact critical. Additional insurance mitigation added. ICT 
maintains up to date software patches. Staff have guidance on how to keep IT Networks Secure and what to do if a virus or malware is suspected. 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation Portfolio Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

P
age 72



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

The Annual Audit Letter for South 
Lakeland District Council
Year ended 31 March 2017

John Farrar
Associate Director
T 0161 234 6384
E john.farrar@uk.gt.com
Daniel Watson
Manager
T 0161 234 6344
E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com
Pam Swallowe
Associate
T 0161 953 6910
E pamela.s.swallowe@uk.gt.com

25 October 2017

P
age 73

Item
 N

o.8



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 2

Contents
Section Page
1. Executive summary 3
2. Audit of the accounts 4
3. Value for Money conclusion 7
Appendices
A Reports issued and fees 8

P
age 74



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 3

Executive summary
Purpose of this letter
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 
work we have carried out at South Lakeland District Council (the Council) for the 
year ended 31 March 2017.
This Letter provides a commentary on the results of our work to the Council and 
its external stakeholders, and highlights issues we wish to draw to the attention of 
the public.  In preparing this letter, we have followed the National Audit Office 
(NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and  Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 
07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.
We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit 
Committee (as those charged with governance) in our Audit Findings Report on 
20 September.
Our responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit 
Practice, which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 (the Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council’s financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 
three).

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we comply with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the 
NAO.

Our work
Financial statements opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 21 
September 2017.
Value for money conclusion
We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 
31 March 2017. We reflected this in our audit opinion on 21 September 2017.
Certificate
We certified that we had completed the audit of the accounts of South Lakeland 
District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code on 21 
September 2017.
Certification of grants
We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on 
behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on this claim is not 
yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2017. We will report the results 
of this work to the Audit Committee in our Annual Certification Letter.
During the year we completed our work on the 2015/16 housing benefit 
certification claim. As a result of our work the Council’s subsidy claim was 
qualified due to the identification of a small number of underpayments. The 
Council also amended the claim to reduce the subsidy claimed by £278.
We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
October 2017

P
age 75



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 4

Audit of  the accounts
Our audit approach
Materiality
In our audit of the Council's accounts, we applied the concept of materiality to 
determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and to evaluate the results of 
our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 
statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 
influence their economic decisions. 
We determined materiality for our audit of the Council’s accounts to be £935k, 
which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark, 
as in our view, users of the Council's accounts are most interested in how it has 
spent the income it has raised from taxation and grants during the year. 
We also set a lower level of specific materiality for related party transactions and 
senior officer remuneration at £20k due to the sensitive nature of these 
disclosures. 
We set a lower threshold of £47k, above which we reported errors to the Audit
Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining enough evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements to give reasonable assurance they are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes 
assessing whether: 
• the Council's accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently 

applied and adequately disclosed; 
• significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Finance Officer are 

reasonable; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.
We also read the narrative report and annual governance statement to check 
they are consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the accounts 
included in the Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.
We carry out our audit in line with ISAs (UK and Ireland) and the NAO Code 
of Audit Practice. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's 
business and is risk based. 
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response 
to these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 76



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 5

Audit of  the accounts
Risks identified in our audit 
plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions
Valuation of pension fund net 
liability
The Council's pension fund net 
liability, as reflected in its balance 
sheet, represents a significant 
estimate in the financial 
statements.

As part of our audit work we:
 Identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net liability 

was not materially misstated and assessed whether those controls were implemented as 
expected and whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council's 
pension fund valuation. 

 Gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out, 
undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 

 Reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the financial 
statements with the actuarial report from the Council’s actuary.

Our work did not identify any issues in 
relation to the valuation of the pension 
fund net liability.

Valuation of property plant 
and equipment
The Council revalues its assets 
on a rolling basis over a four year 
period. The Code requires that 
the Council ensures that the 
carrying value at the balance
sheet date is not materially 
different from the current value. 
This represents a significant 
estimate by management in the 
financial statements.

As part of our audit work we:
 Reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate.
 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.
 Reviewed the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work
 Held discussions with the Council's valuer about the basis on which the valuation was carried 

out, challenging the key assumptions.
 Reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it was robust and 

consistent with our understanding.
 Tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they were input correctly into the Council's

asset register
 Evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year

to assess how management satisfied themselves that these  were not materially different to 
current value.

The Council’s valuer identified a 
significant increase in the value of the 
Council’s car park assets (£8.3m and 
68%). The finance team reviewed the 
requirements of the Code and 
accounted for the increase as a change 
in estimation technique. We reviewed 
management’s rationale and we are 
satisfied the treatment is in line with the 
requirements of the Code.
Our work did not identified any other 
issues we wish to bring to your 
attention.
We obtained sufficient assurance that 
the valuation of property, plant and 
equipment is free from material 
misstatement.

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

P
age 77



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 6

Audit of  the accounts
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's accounts on 21 September 2017, 
in advance of the 30 September 2017 national deadline.
The Council made the accounts available for audit in line with the agreed 
timetable, and provided a good set of supporting working papers. The finance 
team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the audit.
Issues arising from the audit of the accounts
We reported the key issues from our audit of the accounts of the Council to the 
Council's Audit Committee on 20 September 2017. 
In addition to the key audit risks reported above, we identified a small number of 
disclosure adjustments during our audit that management amended in the audited 
set of accounts.
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are required to review the Council's Annual Governance Statement and 
Narrative Report. It published them on its website with the draft accounts in line 
with the national deadlines. 
Both documents were prepared in line with the relevant guidance and were 
consistent with  the supporting evidence provided by the Council and with our 
knowledge of the Council.

Other statutory duties 
We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to 
issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the 
Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give 
electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to 
raise objections received in relation to the accounts.
We did not identify any issues which would require us to use our additional 
powers or duties.

P
age 78



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 7

Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice 
(the Code), following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2016 which 
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources 
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 
identify the key risks where we concentrated our work.
In undertaking our risk assessment, we noted the work undertaken by 
management to refresh the medium term financial strategy. The Council delivered 
an underspend of £0.7m for the 2016/17 financial year after carry forwards of 
£3.5m. Given that the 2016/17 budget included £0.6m of savings, the outturn 
achieved demonstrates management have continued to take effective steps to 
reduce the Council’s net expenditure.
The latest financial monitoring reports for 2017/18 show the Council is on track 
to meet its budget with a current underspend of £0.2m giving assurance over the 
robustness of the budgeting process.
Overall VfM conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ending 31 March 2017. 

P
age 79



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 8

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees
Fees

Proposed 
fee

£
Actual fees 

£
2015/16 fees 

£
Statutory audit of the Council 55,851 55,851 55,851
Housing Benefit Grant Certification 7,545 TBC 7,552
Total fees (excluding VAT) 63,396 TBC 63,403

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services.

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA).

Reports issued
Report Date issued
Audit Plan 29 March 2017
Audit Findings Report 25 August 2017
Annual Audit Letter 9 October 2017

Fees for other services and non-audit servicesNo non-audit or audited related services have been undertaken for the 
Authority.

P
age 80



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served. 
'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions. 
grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 82



1© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Audit Committee Update
South Lakeland District Council
Progress Report and Update 
November 2017

John Farrar
Engagement Lead
T 0161 234 6384
E  john.farrar@uk.gt.com
Daniel Watson
Manager
T 0161 234 6344
E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com

P
age 83

Item
 N

o.9



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 
reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 
be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 
affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 
of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 84



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you 
can download copies of our publications and articles, including the reports mentioned in this update along with other items:
• Income generation is an increasingly essential part of providing sustainable local services; http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-

ready-to-be-more-commercial/
• Social enterprises are becoming increasingly common vehicles for delivering services that are not an ‘essential’ service for an authority but still important to the local community; 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-enterprise/
• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities; http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/
• New arrangements for appointing your Housing Benefit Subsidy auditor; http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-housing-benefit-subsidy-claims-webinar-summarised/
• Brexit and local government;   http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-global-britain-needs-more-local-government-not-less/ and  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/
If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please 
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on 
progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

P
age 85



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at November 2017
2016/17 

Planned 
Date Complete? Comments

Annual Audit Letter
We issued our Annual Audit Letter to the Council in October 2017. The 
report is included in papers for this committee.
Our work on certifying the Council’s Housing Benefits Subsidy return is 
ongoing. The work will be completed by the deadline of 30 November and 
we will report our findings in the certification report in January. October

2017 Yes

To date we have not identified any issues which would require a 
qualification, however the claim is due to be amended for a small 
number of errors where we have been able to review the complete 
population of testing.
For 2018/19 PSAA will no longer appoint the Council’s Housing 
Benefits auditor. The Council must follow its procurement process and 
notify the DWP of its appointed auditor by 1 March 2018. With the 
impending changes to the approach fast approaching, it is important 
that you have a clear view of what this means for the Council. In 
conjunction with the DWP we have recorded a webinar which takes you 
through the practicalities and considerations for appointing your auditor 
for this claim.  
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-housing-benefit-subsidy-
claims-webinar-summarised/ 

P
age 86



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

5© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at November 2017
2017/18 

Planned 
Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a ‘Planned fee letter for 2017/18’ by the end of 
April 2017. We issued a fee letter on 23 March 2017. This is the final audit 
year under the current contract. 
PSAA has awarded contracts to audit suppliers and is currently consulting 
on local appointments. Your audit supplier from 2018/19 will be confirmed 
by the end of December 2017.

April 2017 Yes Our fee for the 2017/18 audit has been set at £55,851 in line with 
PSAA’s scale fee.

Accounts Audit Plan
We will issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Council setting out our 
proposed approach  the audit of the Council's 2017/18 financial statements.  
This will be issued upon completion of our audit planning.  
The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2017/18 opinion is brought 
forward by two months to 31 July 2018.  We are discussing  with your 
officers our plan and timetable to ensure that we complete our work by this 
earlier deadline.  
We will discuss and agree with you arrangements for the issue of the draft 
Audit Findings Report, in view of the time available to complete our work 
and your committee report deadlines.

December 
2017 In progress

To inform our audit planning we hold regular meetings with senior 
management and the finance team. We also review Council minutes 
and remain alert to emerging sector issues which may impact upon the 
financial statements.  

P
age 87



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

6© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at November 2017
2017/18  

Planned 
Date Complete? Comments

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan will reflect the need to complete as much as possible 
earlier in the audit cycle.  Our work will include:
• review of the Council's control environment
• updating our understanding of financial systems
• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems
• early work on emerging accounting issues
• early substantive testing
• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

December 
2017 -

January 2018
Not yet started

We will once again be holding workshops for local 
government chief accountants, early in the new year. We 
will forward invitations to your finance team in the coming 
weeks.

Final accounts audit
• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts
• proposed Value for Money conclusion
• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts against the Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18  

June - July
2018 Not yet started

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our work is unchanged to last year and is set out in the final guidance 
issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; 'the Council has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources'.
The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; 'in all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people'.
The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:
• Informed decision making
• Sustainable resource deployment
• Working with partners and other third parties

December 
2017 – March 

2018
Not yet started

We will undertake early planning work to inform our VfM 
risk assessment and potential work to inform our 2017/18 VfM Conclusion.

P
age 88



Technical Matters

P
age 89



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Code of  Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 and forthcoming provisions for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2017/18 
CIPFA/LASAAC has issued the Local Authority Accounting 
Code for 2017/18. The main changes to the Code include:
• amendments to section 2.2 (Business Improvement 

District Schemes (England, Wales and Scotland), Business 
Rate Supplements (England), and Community 
Infrastructure Levy (England and Wales)) for the 
Community Infrastructure Levy to clarify the treatment of 
revenue costs and any charges received before the 
commencement date 

• amendment to section 3.1 (Narrative Reporting) to 
introduce key reporting principles for the Narrative Report 

• updates to section 3.4 (Presentation of Financial 
Statements) to clarify the reporting requirements for 
accounting policies and going concern reporting 

• following the amendments in the Update to the 2016/17 
Code, changes to sections 4.2 (Lease and Lease Type 
Arrangements), 4.3 (Service Concession Arrangements: 
Local Authority as Grantor), 7.4 (Financial Instruments –
Disclosure and Presentation Requirements)

Technical Matters

Questions: 
• Is your Finance team aware of 

the changes to the Code of 
Practice in 2017/18 and the 
forthcoming changes to lease 
accounting and revenue 
recognition?

Forthcoming provisions for IFRS 9  and IFRS 15
CIPFA/LASAAC has issued ‘Forthcoming provisions 
for IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers in the Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2018’. It sets out the changes to the 2018/19 Code in 
respect of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. It has been 
issued in advance of the 2018/19 Code to provide local 
authorities with time to prepare for the changes required 
under these new standards. 
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes a single 
classification approach for financial assets, a forward 
looking ‘expected loss’ model for impairment (rather 
than the ‘incurred loss’ model under IAS 39) and some 
fundamental changes to requirements around hedge 
accounting.
IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 
Construction Contracts. IFRS 15 changes the basis for 
deciding whether revenue is recognised at a point in time 
or over a period of time and introduces five steps for 
revenue recognition. 
It should be noted that the publication does not have the 
authority of the Code and early adoption of the two 
standards is not permitted by the 2017/18 Code.

P
age 90



Sector issues 

P
age 91



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

10© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Procurement of  external audit services
Procurement outcome
As a result of the highly successful procurement of auditor services, opted-in Local 
government and police bodies throughout England will collectively benefit from 
reduced fees for audit services in 2018/19 compared to 2016/17. Aggregate savings 
are expected to exceed £6 million per annum, equivalent to a reduction of 
approximately 18% in the scale fees payable by local bodies.
The results of the process announced on 20 June 2017 involve the award of the 
following contracts:
• Lot 1 of approx. £14.6 million per audit year was awarded to Grant Thornton 

LLP; 
• Lot 2 of approx. £10.9 million per audit year was awarded to EY LLP; 
• Lot 3 of approx. £6.6 million per audit year to awarded to Mazars LLP; 
• Lot 4 of approx. £2.2 million per audit year to awarded to BDO LLP; 
• Lot 5 of approx. £2.2 million per audit year to awarded to Deloitte LLP; and 
• Lot 6 with no guaranteed value of work to awarded to a consortium of Moore 

Stephens LLP and Scott-Moncrieff LLP.
Contracts were awarded on the basis of most economically advantageous tender with 
50% of the available score awarded to price and 50% awarded to quality.
The procurement strategy, agreed by the PSAA Board in December 2016, sets out the 
basis on which the procurement of audit services was carried out.
Having concluded the procurement, PSAA will commence the process of appointing 
auditors to opted-in bodies. For more information on the auditor appointment 
process click here.

Finalising and confirming appointments
The PSAA Board will approve all proposed appointments from 2018/19, 
following consultation with audited bodies, at its meeting in mid-December. 
The Board’s decision on the appointment of auditors is final. Following 
Board consideration, we will write to each audited body to confirm their 
appointment. We plan to send all confirmations on 18 December.

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2018/19: 
Module 1 Special Purpose Framework Instruction:
This Circular sets out the arrangements for the audit of the housing benefits 
subsidy for 2018/19. It is for the LA to appoint a reporting accountant to 
undertake this work and notify the DWP of this. A standard letter of 
notification for the LA use is set out in Appendix 1. This letter of 
notification must be issued to the DWP by the LA no later than the 1st 
March 2018.

Sector Issues

P
age 92



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

11© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Authority 2016/17 Revenue Expenditure and Financing  
DCLG has produced a summary of Local Authorities’ 2016/17 provisional revenue spending and financing. It notes that 
Local government expenditure accounts for almost a quarter of all government spending and the majority of this is through 
local authority revenue expenditure. The summary is compiled from the Revenue Outturn (RO) returns submitted by all 
local authorities in England. Coverage is not limited to local councils in England and includes other authority types such as
Police and Crime Commissioners and Fire authorities.
The headline messages include:
• Local authority revenue expenditure totalled £93.5 billion for all local authorities in England in 2016-17. This was 1.1% 

lower than £94.5 billion spent over 2015-16.
• Expenditure on Adult Social Care increased to £14.9 billion in 2016-17. This was £0.5 billion (3.6%) higher than in 2015-

16. 2016-17 was first year local authorities were able to raise additional funding for Adult Social Care through the council 
tax precept.

• The largest decrease in local authority expenditure was on Education services. This was £0.8 billion (2.4%) lower in 2016-
17 than in 2015-16. The majority of this decrease is due to local authority funded schools converting to academies.

• Local authorities are financing more of their expenditure from locally retained income. 40.4% of revenue expenditure was 
funded through council tax and retained business rates and 57.5% from central Government grants. The remaining 2.1% 
was funded by reserves and collection fund surpluses. These percentages were 38.7%, 60.4% and 0.9% respectively in 
2015-16.

• Local authorities used £1.5 billion (6.2%) of the £24.6 billion reserves balance held at the start of the 2016-17.
• Local authorities’ use of reserves was £1.1 billion higher in 2016-17 than in 2015-16. Due to changes in their capital 

programme, £0.5 billion of this increase is due to the Greater London Authority.
The full report is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/639755/Revenue_Expenditure_and_Fin
ancing__2016-17_Provisional_Outturn.pdf

Did you know….
This data set and many others are included in CFO 
Insights.
CFO Insights is the Grant Thornton and CIPFA online 

analysis tool. It gives those aspiring to improve the 
financial position of their organisation instant access to 
insight on the financial performance, socio-economic 
context and service outcomes of theirs and every other 
council in England, Scotland and Wales.
More information is available at:
http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/

Sector Issues

P
age 93



Grant Thornton publications

P
age 94



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

13© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Setting up a successful social enterprise
Local government continues to innovate as it reacts to 
ongoing austerity. An important strand of this 
response has been the development of alternative 
delivery models, including local authority trading 
companies, joint ventures and social enterprises. 
This report focuses on social enterprises in local 
government; those organisations that trade with a 
social purpose or carry out activities for community 
benefit rather than private advantage. Social 
enterprises come in a variety of shapes and sizes as 
they do not have a single legal structure or ownership 
rule and can adopt any corporate form as long as it 
has a social purpose. 
In this report we explore what social enterprises look 
like, the requirements for setting one up, how they 
should be managed to achieve success and how they 
can be ended. 
We have complemented this with a range of case 
studies providing inspiring ideas from those that have 
been successful and some lessons learned to take into 
consideration.

Key findings from the report:
•Austerity continues to be a key driver for change: social 
enterprises are a clear choice where there is an 
opportunity to enhance the culture of community 
involvement by transferring these services into a 
standalone entity at its centre
•The social enterprise model tends to lend itself more to 
community services such as libraries, heritage 
management and leisure, but not exclusively so
•Social enterprises can open up new routes of funding 
including the ability to be flexible on pricing and access 
to pro bono or subsidised advice
•Some local authorities have converted exiting models 
into social enterprises; for example where a greater focus 
on social outcomes has been identified
Striking a balance between financial and social returns
If you are a local authority looking to transition a public 
service to a social enterprise model certain factors will be key 
to your success including: leadership, continuing the culture, 
branding, staff reward and secure income stream.
Download our guide to explore how to handle these factors 
to ensure success, the requirements for setting up a social 
enterprise; and how social enterprise can be ended. The guide 
also showcases a number of compelling case studies from 
local authorities around England, featuring inspiring ideas 
from those social enterprises that have been a success; and 
lessons learned from those that have encountered challenges.

Grant Thornton publications

Questions: 
• Is your Council exploring  

options for delivery of services? 
• Have you read our report? 
• Have you downloaded our 

guide?  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insight
s/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-
enterprise/

P
age 95



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

14© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

A Manifesto for a Vibrant Economy
Developing infrastructure to enable local growth
Cities and shire areas need the powers and frameworks 
to collaborate on strategic issues and be able to raise 
finance to invest in infrastructure priorities. Devolution 
needs to continue in England across all places, with 
governance models not being a 'one-size-fits 
all'. Priorities include broadband, airport capacity in the 
North and east-west transport links. 
Addressing the housing shortage, particularly in London 
and the Southeast, is a vital part of this. There simply is 
not enough available land on which to build, and green 
belt legislation, though designed to allow people living in 
cities space to breath, has become restrictive and is in 
need of modernisation. Without further provision to 
free up more land to build on, the young people that we 
need to protect the future of our economy will not be 
able to afford housing, and council spending on housing 
the homeless will continue to rise.
Business rates are also ripe for review – a property-based 
tax is no longer an accurate basis for taxing the activity 
and value of local business, in particular as this source of 
funding becomes increasingly important to the provision 
of local authority services with the phasing out of the 
Government’s block grant. 
Demographic and funding pressures mean that the NHS 
no longer remains sustainable, and the integration of 
health and social care – recognised as critical by all key 
decision makers – remains more aspiration than reality. . 

Grant Thornton publications

Question: 
• Have you read our manifesto?

There is an opportunity for communities to take a more 
holistic approach to health, for example creating healthier 
spaces and workplaces and tackling air quality, and to use 
technology to provide more accessible, cheaper diagnosis 
and treatment for many routine issues 
Finding a better way to measure the vibrancy of places
When applied to a place we can see that traditional indicators 
of prosperity such as GVA, do not tell the full story. To 
address this we have developed a Vibrant Economy Index to 
measure the current and future vibrancy of places. The 
Index uses the geography of local authority areas and 
identifies six broad objectives for society: prosperity, 
dynamism and opportunity, inclusion and equality, health 
wellbeing and happiness, resilience and sustainability, and 
community trust and belonging. 
The city of Manchester, for example, is associated with 
dynamic economic success. While our Index confirms this, it 
also identifies that the Greater Manchester area overall has 
exceptionally poor health outcomes, generations of low 
education attainment and deep-rooted joblessness. These 
factors threaten future prosperity, as success depends on 
people’s productive participation in the wider local economy, 
rather than in concentrated pockets.
Every place has its own challenges and 
opportunities. Understanding what these are, and the 
dynamic between them, will help unlock everybody’s ability 
to thrive. Over the coming months we will continue to 
develop the Vibrant Economy Index through discussions 
with businesses, citizens and government at a national and 
local level.
Guy Clifton – Head of Local Government Advisory

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-
firms/united-kingdom/pdf/documents/creating-manifesto-
vibrant-economy-draft-recommendations.pdf

P
age 96



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

15© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The Board: creating and protectingvalue
In all sectors, boards are increasingly coming under 

pressure from both the market and regulators to improve 
their effectiveness and accountability. This makes 
business sense given a strong governance culture in the 
boardroom produces better results, promotes good 
behaviour within the organisation and drives an 
organisation’s purpose. 
Grant Thornton’s new report ‘The Board: creating and 
protecting value’ is a cross- sector review of board 
effectiveness, based on a survey of executives and non-
executives from a range of organisations including 
charities, housing associations, universities, local 
government, private companies and publically listed 
companies. 
It considers the challenges faced by boards, ways in 
which they can operate more effectively; and how to 
strike the right balance between value protection and 
value creation. 
This report uses the DLMA analysis which categorises 
skills into four areas: Directorship, Leadership, 
Management and Assurance. This powerful tool provides 
a framework (see graph 1) with which to evaluate how 
well an organisation is performing in balance of skills and 
understanding of roles; and responsibilities between the 
executive and Board. It helps align risk (value protection) 
and opportunity (value creation) with overarching 
strategy and purpose. 

Graph 1 - Value creation and protection framework 

Grant Thornton publications

Question: 
• Have you read our report?

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-
firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/board-effectiveness-
report-2017.pdf

Source: The Board: Creating and protecting value, 2017, Grant Thornton

P
age 97



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

16© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

International Consortium on Governmental Financial Management
Introduction
Grant Thornton and the International Consortium on Governmental Financial Management (ICGFM) 
partner every other year to perform an international survey of Public Financial Leaders. 
In 2015 the theme was innovation in public financial management. The 2017 survey  has been designed to 
identify and describe emerging issues around transparency and citizen engagement – building on the themes 
highlighted in the 2015 report. The insights will be published in a report later in 2017.

We have again partnered with the 
ICGFM to survey Financial Leaders

P
age 98



17© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 
provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 
more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 
omissions. 
grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 100



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

6
 
December 2017 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer  

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison - SLDC Internal Audit Manager 
(Director, TIAA Limited) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

  

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1. This report provides a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit 
Annual Plan to date in 2017/18. It provides the Committee with assurance 
through the individual internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 
Internal Audit has also validated the status of the implementation of previous 
internal audit recommendations.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

(1) The progress achieved in 2017/18 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1.  

(2) The attached audit reports at Appendix 2. 

(3) The status of outstanding recommendations contained in the follow 
up report at Appendix 3.  

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with 
the 1972 Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the 
Council’s senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control. 

Page 101

Item No.10



3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control 
systems and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks 
appropriately managed and that outcomes are achieved. Management is 
responsible for the system of internal control and should set in place policies 
and procedures to ensure that controls are operating effectively.  

4. PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2017. Seven 
reviews have been finalised in the year-to-date with fieldwork having 
commenced on the review of awarding of grants.  

4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of 
the position as at December 2017. The executive summaries for each review 
are included at Appendix 2.   

5. AUDIT REPORTS COMPLETED IN THE PERIOD 

5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the four audit reports 
completed in the period: 

 Insurance; 

 Building Control; 

 Payroll; and 

 ICT Disaster Recovery 

6. FOLLOW UP OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 TIAA has assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 
recommendations have been implemented. The report at Appendix 3 
illustrates progress. 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS). 

8. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements 
for governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of 
the Council’s strategic priorities.  

9. IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Financial and Resources 

There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

9.2 Human Resources 

9.2.1 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

Page 102



9.3 Legal 

9.3.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

9.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4.1 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

9.5 Equality and Diversity 

9.5.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report. 

9.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not 

comply with legislative 

requirements as laid out 

under the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations 2011  

The Council does not 

receive adequate 

assurance over the 

internal control 

environment.   

Regular progress reporting 

to senior management and 

Audit Committee each 

quarter. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison, TIAA Limited  

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 

No. 
 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 

Audit Reports – Executive Summaries. 

2a. Insurance. 

2b. Building Control. 

2c. Payroll. 

2d. ICT Disaster Recovery. 

3 Follow Up Report 

 

 

Page 103



TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 

Director 

Portfolio 

Holder 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

SMT Scrutiny 

Committee 

06/11/2017 n/a n/a  09/11/2017 n/a 

Executive 

(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 

Officer 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a 06/12/2017 n/a 15/11/2017 15/11/2017 

Human 

Resource 

Services 

Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 

Councillor(s) 

 

    

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 104



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 1 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 
 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report  

2017/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit 

P
age 105



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 2 

 

 

 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at South Lakeland District Council as at 21
st
 November 2017. The 

report is based on internal audit work carried out by TIAA and management representations that have been received during the period since the last meeting of the 

Audit Committee. 

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2017/18 ANNUAL PLAN 

2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18 is set out in Appendix A. 

AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 

3. The table below sets out details of audits carried out since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee. 

  Report history Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation 
Draft 

issued 
Responses 
Received 

Final issued 1 2 3 OE 

Insurance Reasonable 09/10/2017 24/10/2017 14/11/2017 - 1 1 - 

Building Control Substantial 03/11/2017 06/11/2017 14/11/2017 - - - - 

Payroll Substantial 31/10/2017 03/11/2017 14/11/2017 - 1 1 - 

ICT Disaster Recovery Reasonable 06/11/2017 20/11/2017 21/11/2017 - 3 1 - 

Follow Up NA 06/11/2017 09/11/2017 14/11/2017 - - - - 

CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2017/18 

4. There are no proposed changes to the annual plan at this stage. The high level scopes of the 2017/18 plan are set out at Appendix B.  

FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES 

P
age 106



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 3 

 

5. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities that require the involvement of internal audit in the period since the last summary report was issued. 

PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

6. We  have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately).   

RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 

7. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written 

consent. The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. 

No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any 

duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is 

caused by their reliance on our report. 

P
age 107



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 4 

 

Appendix A 

Progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18 
 

System Days Current Status Comments Date of Audit Committee 

Creditor Payments 10 Final report issued  September 2017 

Licensing – Premises and Clubs 10 Final report issued  September 2017 

Development Control 20 Final report issued  September 2017 

Insurance 10 Final report issued  December 2017 

Building Control 20 Final report issued  December 2017 

ICT Disaster Recovery 5 Final report issued  December 2017 

Payroll  15 Final report issued  December 2017 

Awarding of Grants 10 Commenced 06/11/2017  March 2017 

Performance Monitoring 10 Commencing 29/01/2018  March 2017 

Council Tax 20 5
th
 March 2018  March 2017 

Asset Management 10 To be confirmed  March 2017 

Lake Services – Moorings and Encroachments 10 Commencing 18/12/2017  March 2017 

Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate 

Governance 
10 Commencing 04/12/2017  March 2017 

Follow Up 10 Ongoing  Each meeting 

 
KEY:  

  = To be commenced 

 = Site work commenced 

 = Draft report issued 

 = Final report issued 

P
age 108



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 5 

 

Appendix B 

Annual Plan – 2017/18 
 

 

Audit Type Days Scope 

Performance Monitoring Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements in place for measuring and reporting 

performance across the Council. This will include the reporting of KPIs, delivery of 

Service Plans and delivery of the Council Plan. 

Compliance with the Local Code of 

Corporate Governance 

Compliance 10 The review will assess compliance with selected elements of the Local Code of 

Corporate Governance to assess the extent the Council can demonstrate that it 

complies.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key governance audits. 

Awarding of Grants Assurance 10 The importance of ensuring that the awarding of grants aligns with council priorities, are 

supported by a robust business case and do not breach any rules on state aid is 

illustrated by recent events involving Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council. The review 

will consider the process for authorising and awarding grants, including the gate-keeping 

processes that ensure the awarding of grants does not breach any rules.     

ICT Disaster Recovery Assurance 5 Organisations are increasingly reliant on ICT systems for everyday operations and 

service delivery. The review will consider the arrangements in place to deal with a loss of 

service and how the restoring of service is to be managed. 

Payroll  Assurance 15 Payroll represents a significant expenditure stream for the Council. The review will 

include travel and subsistence claims and the treatment of contractors/consultants in light 

of recent changes in IR35 requirements.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.  

Creditor Payments Assurance 10 The review will assess the arrangements in place for processing creditor payments, 
including the process of authorisation and the measures in place to guard against internal 
and external fraud. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

P
age 109



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 6 

 

Audit Type Days Scope 

Council Tax Assurance 20 Council Tax represents a significant source of revenue for the Council. The review will 
look at the end-to-end process covering setting, discounts, billing, income collection, 
recovery action, write-offs and reporting.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

Insurance Assurance 10 South Lakeland District Council is required to have appropriate levels of insurance cover 
in place to mitigate against insurable risks, or has explicitly determined those areas where 
it does not consider it needs cover. The review will look at the process of procuring 
insurance cover and the levels required, as well as how it handles insurance claims and 
takes mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood of insurance claims arising.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

Asset Management Assurance 10 The objective of the audit is to seek assurance that controls and procedures are effective 
and ensure that all land and property assets are identified and recorded, valuations are 
made in accordance with Accounting Standards and that the accounts accurately reflect 
the value of identified assets.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

Lake Services – Moorings and 
Encroachments 

Assurance 10 Moorings and encroachments represent a valuable income stream for the Council. The 
review will consider the process in place for setting fees and charges, service provision, 
enforcement and income collection.  

Licensing – Premises and Clubs Assurance 10 The review will cover: dealing with applications and renewals; whether activities are 

appropriately licensed in accordance with relevant legislation; whether licensed activities 

are monitored to ensure compliance with appropriate conditions; that enforcement action 

is undertaken as necessary and in accordance with relevant legislation and/or best 

practice guidance; and that accurate and appropriate records are maintained. 

This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 

Committee requested coverage.  

Development Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its planning function 
meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review will also consider the transition 

P
age 110



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2017/18 

 

 Page 7 

 

Audit Type Days Scope 

of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks.  

This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 
Committee requested coverage. 

Building Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its building control 
function meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review will also consider the 
transition of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks.  

This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 
Committee requested coverage. 

Follow Up Follow Up 10 The review will provide an independent update on the implementation of internal audit 

recommendations and their current status. Follow up work will be on-going throughout the 

year and incorporate the recommendations made by the previous internal audit provider.  

Audit Management  20 This includes overall contract management, attendance at Audit Committee, planning and 

reporting, including the Internal Audit Annual Report and opinion for 2016/17.  

It also includes attendance at SMT and other groups/forums as required, ad-hoc 

management advice and support relating to risk, internal control and governance.   

 Total days 190  

 

 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 112



 
Internal Audit 

 

  

November 2017 FINAL 
 

 

 

APPENDIX 2a 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance 

2017/18 

 

P
age 113



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

  

Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

Procedures surrounding the annual insurance premium renewal are properly 

documented and operate effectively. 

Claims are well managed by an experienced team. 

There remains an ongoing, high-impact risk that the Council is uninsured 

whenever contract work with third parties is begun without a valid contract in 

place. 

Controls would be improved if the fleet management system was reconciled 

to the claims system operated by the Insurance Team. 
 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

South Lakeland District Council is required to have appropriate levels of insurance 

cover in place to mitigate against insurable risks, or has explicitly determined those 

areas where it does not consider it needs cover. The review looked at the process of 

procuring insurance cover and the levels required, as well as how it handles 

insurance claims and takes mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood of insurance 

claims arising.  

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 1 0 

 

P
age 114



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Discussions with the Financial 

Services Manager indicated that five 

contracts were identified by 

management, between the Council and 

third parties, whereby work was 

commenced prior to a contract having 

been signed. This has therefore 

exposed the Council to the risk that no 

insurance arrangements were in place 

from commencement of work up to the 

point when the contract was signed.  

The Contract Procedure Rules, 

which form part of the Constitution, 

be followed whenever contracts 

between third parties and the 

Council are contemplated. In 

particular, no work be commenced 

in advance of a valid, signed 

contract being in place which 

properly considers the insurance 

arrangements for the scope of 

work. 

2 All operational managers have 

been reminded of the requirement 

to complete contract documentation 

before works commence. This 

message will be reinforced as part 

of the process to prepare the 

Procurement Schedule for 2018/19. 

30/01/2018 Financial 

Services 

Manager 

2 Compliance There is no reconciliation between the 

system operated by Fleet and the 

claims system maintained by the 

Insurance Team. There is a risk that 

motor insurance work is not properly 

claimed. 

A periodic reconciliation be 

performed between the system 

operated by Fleet and the claims 

system maintained by the 

Insurance Team to help ensure that 

all motor insurance work is properly 

claimed. 

3 We will work with Fleet to carry out 

reconciliations and will monitor the 

effectiveness of these. 

30/01/2018 Financial 

Services 

Officer 

 

P
age 115



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

Page 3 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 116



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

  

Page 4 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in September 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2017/18. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

MATERIALITY 

2. Insurance premiums for 2017/18 are £480K, representing 1.6% of the overall Service Expenditure budget of £29.4 million and an increase of 7.2% over the 

previous year's premium. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

3. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

4. South Lakeland District Council is required to have appropriate levels of insurance cover in place to mitigate against insurable risks, or has explicitly determined 

those areas where it does not consider it needs cover. The review looked at the process of procuring insurance cover and the levels required, as well as how it 

handles insurance claims and takes mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood of insurance claims arising. This review forms part of the rolling three-year 

programme of key system audits. 

5. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the 

report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this 

report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 117



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

  

Page 5 

 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk 

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

P
age 118

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Insurance  2017/18 

 

  

Page 6 

 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 9
th

 October 2017  

Date management responses received: 24
th

 October 2017  

Date final report issued: 14
th

 November 2017  

 

 

 

 

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 120



 
Internal Audit 

 

  

November 2017 FINAL 
 

APPENDIX 2b 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 

2017/18 

 

P
age 121



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

  

Page 1 
 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

The Building Control service is fulfilled by a very knowledgeable, experienced 

and appropriately qualified team. 

Although Building Control has let lapse its ISO Quality Standard 

accreditation, this has had no adverse effect on the professional and timely 

service delivery. 

New Building Control Standards and ISO accreditation are anticipated in 2018 

and the team intends to ensure full compliance to again achieve accreditation. 

The Budget Monitoring Report to Period 6 2017/18 showed Building Control to 

be performing ahead of budget. 
 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place to ensure that its building control 

function meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review also considered 

the transition of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks.  

This review provides assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 

Committee requested coverage. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 0 0 

 

P
age 122



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 2 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

There are no recommendations arising from this review. 

 

P
age 123



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

Page 3 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters have been identified. 

 

P
age 124



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

  

Page 4 
 

Detailed Findings 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in October and November 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2017/18. Based on the work carried out an overall 

assessment of the overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

BACKGROUND 

2. By virtue of The Building Act 1984, the Council is the Building Control Authority within its geographical area and is therefore required to enforce building 

regulations. 

MATERIALITY 

3. The Building Control budget for 2017/18 is £240k. This is net of £309k income from customers and including £236k for Central Support Recharges In. The Building 

Control net budget is less than 1% of the Council's total Service Expenditure Budget of £29,434k. Up to 30
th
 September 2017, Building Control reported a 

favourable variance against budget of £5.4k, mainly due to higher than budgeted income. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

5. The review considered the arrangements in place to ensure that its building control function meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review also 

considered the transition of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks. This review provides assurance in one of the key areas of 

compliance that the Audit Committee requested coverage. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

DISCLAIMER 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the 

report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this 

report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

P
age 125



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

  

Page 5 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk  

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

P
age 126

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Building Control 2017/18 

 

  

Page 6 
 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Ian Hassall, Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Mark Shipman, Development Management Group Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 3
rd

 November 2017 

Date management responses rec’d: 6
th

 November 2017 

Date final report issued: 14
th

 November 2017 

 

 

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 128



 
Internal Audit 

 

  

November 2017 FINAL 
 

APPENDIX 2c 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll  

2017/18 

 

P
age 129



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

  

Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

The payroll service is operated effectively and efficiently by 

knowledgeable and experienced staff. 

Established procedures are thorough and are consistently applied. 

Human Resources provide an essential and professional support 

service to the payroll function. 

Existing Right to Work checks be enhanced to ensure compliance with 

Home Office guidance. 

Payroll reconciliations with the finance system be prepared more 

regularly, ideally on a monthly basis, and independently reviewed. 
 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

Payroll represents a significant expenditure stream for the Council. The review 

included travel and subsistence claims and the treatment of contractors/consultants 

in light of recent changes in IR35 requirements. This review forms part of the rolling 

three-year programme of key system audits.  

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 1 0 

 

P
age 130



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance In August 2017 the Home Office issued 

An Employer's Guide to Right to Work 

Checks. This states that "simply writing 

a date on the copy document does not, 

in itself, confirm that this is the actual 

date when the check was undertaken. 

If you write a date on the copy 

document, you must also record the 

fact that this is the date on which you 

conducted the check." It further states 

"this date may be written on the 

document copy as follows: ‘the date on 

which this right to work check was 

made: [insert date]’". These 

requirements apply to all staff under a 

contract of employment, service or 

apprenticeship, whether expressed or 

implied and whether oral or in writing. 

Home Office Guidance further 

recommends that their Right to Work 

Checklist is used. No such checklist 

was evidenced within the sample 

tested. 

The Council's existing Right to 

Work checks be enhanced to 

include the line "the date on which 

this right to work check was made: 

[insert date]" on each copy 

document retained. A Right to 

Work checklist be completed for 

each check. 

2 Management acknowledge the 

importance of following Home 

Office guidance. A date stamp in 

the correct formant will be used on 

each relevant document in 

accordance with the new updated 

guidance.  

Officers will review the Home Office 

checklist to ensure that it fits in with 

our pre-employment checking 

process, and we will adopt the list 

or a variant of. 

 

31/12/2017 HR Manager 

P
age 131



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Compliance Reconciliations from the payroll system 

to the finance system are prepared by 

the Financial Services Officer. These 

are not currently subject to an 

independent review. One reconciliation 

had been prepared during 2017/18, 

covering the four months to July 2017. 

Balance sheet control accounts are 

properly reconciled. Expense items are 

not currently reconciled to their 

relevant general ledger codes in the 

finance system. 

Payroll reconciliations for the iTrent 

automatic interface to the financial 

system be completed on a monthly 

basis and independently reviewed 

by a senior member of staff. 

Expense items be included in the 

reconciliations. 

3 Management acknowledge the 

importance of regular reconciliation 

between the payroll system and the 

general ledger. The current 

processes are judged adequate in 

terms of controlling the overall risk 

of misreporting payroll figures in the 

general ledger, however, an item 

will be included in the current 

month end systems checklist, to be 

completed by the Financial 

Services Officer and reviewed by 

the Chief Accountant. 

With immediate 

effect 

Financial 

Services 

Officer    

(preparer). 

Chief 

Accountant 

(reviewer). 

P
age 132



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

Page 4 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 133



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

  

Page 5 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in October 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2017/18. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. Payroll represents a significant expenditure stream for the Council. The review included travel and subsistence claims and the treatment of contractors/consultants 

in light of recent changes in IR35 requirements. This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.  

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. The 2017/18 budget for employee costs is £13.6 million (24%) from a total budget of £56.8 million. The actual employee cost to quarter two is £6.9 million, 

representing a variance above the apportioned budget of less than 1%. Actual cost for 2106/17 was £13.3 million. Employee costs are therefore expected to rise 

by 2.3% over the prior year cost. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the 

report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this 

report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 134



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

  

Page 6 

 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk 

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

P
age 135

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Payroll 2017/18 

 

  

Page 7 

 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 31
st
 October 2017  

Date management responses received: 3
rd

 November 2017  

Date final report issued: 14
th

 November 2017  

 

P
age 136



 
Internal Audit 

 

  

November 2017 FINAL 
 

APPENDIX 2d 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 

2017/18 

 

P
age 137



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

  

Page 1 
 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

The Council has robust operational arrangements for ICT Disaster Recovery. The 

key findings of the review are: 

Recovery time objectives should be specified more precisely and consistently 

in the Strategic Business Continuity Plan, Departmental Business Continuity 

plans and in the ICT DR plan 

A programme of periodic testing which will ensure that all aspects of the DR 

arrangements are covered is required. 

Some updates to the ICT DR plan and operational ICT risk assessment are 

required.  
 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the extent to which the organisation has put into place 

arrangements which provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that the impact 

on the organisation of any major incident will be minimised. The scope of the review 

did not include providing assurance that the actual testing of hardware/software etc 

has been carried out effectively. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 3 1 0 

 

P
age 138



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 2 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The arrangements for ICT disaster 

planning are set out in an ICT&D 

Disaster Plan. The Plan identifies the 

procedures for invoking the DR 

arrangements for various scenarios 

ranging from partial to complete failure 

of the ICT infrastructure, however, a 

description of what constitutes a 

disaster (as opposed to a significant 

local incident), the arrangements for 

ICT DR testing, training and for 

standing down the plan and returning 

to business as usual are not detailed in 

the plan. 

A definition of what constitutes a 

disaster and arrangements for ICT 

DR testing, training and for 

standing down the plan and 

returning to business as usual be 

detailed in the ICT DR plan. 

2 Information covering this will be 

added to the plan which is 

scheduled for review in the first 

quarter of 2018. 

31/03/2018 Shared IT 

Manager 

3 Directed The Strategic Business Continuity Plan 

identifies ten services which require 

continuity of provision i.e. no 

disruption. The requirements for ICT 

recovery outlined in the SBCP are 

broadly in line with the ICT recovery 

plan, however, in both documents 

these are only described in broad 

terms. Furthermore the meaning of or 

reason for 'no disruption’ is not always 

clarified in departmental business 

Recovery time objectives be 

specified more precisely and 

consistently in the Strategic 

Business Continuity Plan, 

Departmental Business Continuity 

plans and in the ICT DR plan. The 

feasibility of achieving the required 

recovery timescales be 

demonstrated by ICT DR planned 

testing. 

2 The Strategic Business Continuity 

plan and the departmental business 

continuity plans will be reviewed 

and amended to provide more 

clarity as suggested.  

In relation to the recovery times, we 

can estimate the restore times 

based upon system sizing 

information and use this to update 

the plans. 

30/04/2018 Shared IT 

Manager 

Principal 

Performance 

& Intelligence 

Officer, 

Partnerships 

and 

Organisation

al 

P
age 139



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken. 

          Page 3 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

continuity plans.  Development 

4 Compliance The Disaster Recovery contract 

includes one pre-organised failover 

test to the ITPS datacentre per year, 

however, DR testing has not been 

undertaken to date during 2017.  

A programme of periodic testing be 

devised, approved and results and 

lessons learnt recorded.  

2 A programme of testing will be 

devised and added to the plan as it 

is reviewed. The test for financial 

year 2017 will be completed. 

Any lessons learnt will be fed into 

future revisions of the plans.  

31/03/2018 Shared IT 

Manager 

2 Directed There is an operational ICT risk 

analysis which treats a number of DR 

related issues, however, this needs 

updating and is not referenced within 

the DR plan. 

The ICT risk analysis be updated 

and reference be made to it within 

the ICT DR plan indicating how DR 

related risks are controlled and/or 

will be treated.     

3 The Risk Register will be updated.  31/03/2018 Shared IT 

Manager 

 

P
age 140



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

Page 4 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters have been identified. 

 

P
age 141



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

  

Page 5 
 

Detailed Findings 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in October and November 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2017/18. Based on the work carried out an assessment of 

the overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

BACKGROUND 

2. The Council relies heavily on the continued availability of its ICT network, applications and work stations. Should an incident occur, it is essential that appropriate 

plans are in place to minimise the impact of this on the organisation and facilitate an effective and efficient recovery from the incident. 

MATERIALITY 

3. South Lakeland District Council places significant reliance on its ICT systems for day to day operations and to fulfil its business development objectives. ICT DR 

arrangements are therefore an essential aspect of the organisation’s governance and business continuity arrangements. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

5. The review considered the extent to which the organisation has put into place arrangements which provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that the impact 

on the organisation of any major incident will be minimised. The scope of the review did not include providing assurance that the actual testing of 

hardware/software etc has been carried out effectively. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

DISCLAIMER 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the 

report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this 

report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 142



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

  

Page 6 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 

peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  

07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

P
age 143

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of ICT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 

 

  

Page 7 
 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Ben Wright, IT Services Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 6
th 

November 2017 

Date management responses rec’d: 20
th

 November 2017 

Date final report issued: 21
st
 November 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 144



 Internal Audit 

 

November 2017 FINAL 
 

APPENDIX 3 

 
 
 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 

2017/18 

 
 

P
age 145



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 1 
 

 

Executive Summary  
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed 

below at South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in October and November 2017. 
 

Review Year 

Agency and Interim Staff 
 

2015/16 

Asset Management 
 

2015/16 

Bereavement Services 
 

2015/16 

General IT Controls 
 

2015/16 

Lake Windermere Services 
 

2014/15 

Taxi Licensing 2016/17 

Risk Management  2016/17 

ICT Network Security 2016/17 

Local Government Transparency Code 2016/17 

Data Assurance 2016/17 

Debtors 2016/17 

Cash Receipting – Car Parking 2016/17 

P
age 146



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 2 
 

Contract Management 2016/17 

Procurement 2016/17 

KEY FINDINGS 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation 

of these recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following 

evaluations of the progress of the management actions taken to date have been identified.  

Status Progress in implementing recommendation Number of recommendations 

Outstanding The recommendation has not yet been implemented but is still on target to meet its target 
.date. 

19 

Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date has not been met. 1 

Outstanding There is no tangible evidence that the recommendation is being progressed. - 

Completed The recommendation has been implemented and is now considered closed. 4 

3. The previous report identified a number of recommendations where implementation had slipped and revised deadlines had been set. This review identifies that 

implementation remains by and large on track, with positive confirmation from those with responsibility for recommendations that agreed target dates will be met.  

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

4. The review considers the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and to establish the extent to which 

management has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 

strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of f raud or irregularity, should there be 

any, although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal 

control may not be proof against collusive fraud 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions 

and to ensure the authenticity of these documents. 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

7. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

P
age 147



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 3 
 

 

Date draft report issued: 6
th

 November 2017 

Date management responses recd: 9
th

 November 2017 

Date final report issued: 14
th

 November 2017 

 

 

P
age 148



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 4 

 

Detailed Report  
 

FOLLOW UP 

8. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations. Only limited testing has been carried out to confirm these 

management representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS REMAIN OUTSTANDING 
         

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management 

Response 

Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  

Due Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

1. Agency and 
Interim Staff 

A corporate purchasing 
arrangement should be put 
in place for the supply of 
agency / interim workers 
which provides value for 
money, is reviewed for best 
value on a regular basis, 
meets the needs of all 
service areas, and which is 
then used for the recruitment 
of all agency / interim 
workers. Following the 
introduction of a corporate 
purchasing arrangement 
relevant monitoring of 
compliance with this and 
appropriate contract 
management arrangements 
should be established as 
necessary. 

2 Improvements to this area 
have already been 
implemented. These will be 
reviewed and updated as 
necessary as part of the 
above procedure and 
guidance manual. Update 
23/08/16: Working with 
procurement to develop 
arrangements - progress is 
slower than anticipated due 
to the vacancies in the HR 
section which were recruited 
to in early Sept. Update 
17/11/16: Discussions 
started.  Operational 
Managers have been 
approached to ensure 
existing arrangements are 
captured in the procurement 
process.  Potential use of 
frameworks being examined. 

HR Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

31/03/2017 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The arrangements are 
still being developed that 
enables the use of 
main/national agencies 
for the majority of posts 
as well as local 
arrangements when the 
need for spot hire arises.  
A meeting is to be 
arranged with a 
recruitment agency by 
the middle of November 
2017, with a view to 
having the 
recommendation 
implemented by 31

st
 

March 2018. 

2. Asset 
Management 

The Council should have an 
overarching strategy of what 
is required / expected from 
its investment property 
portfolio. 

2 Follow up Conclusion: The 
recommendation will be 
implemented as part of the 
property/asset management 
strategy review. Update 
14/03/16: Preparation of a 

Asset Manager 

Assistant 
Director –   
Strategic 
Development 

30/09/2017 15/12/2017 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The new property 
services contractor, LSH, 
is undertaking a strategic 
review of property 
assets. The review is 
expected to go to SMT 

 

P
age 149



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 5 

 

comprehensive medium term 
Strategic asset management 
Plan is a key action in year 1 
of the re-tendered Property 
Management contract which 
commences in 2016/17. 
Ahead of that the Council 
has already commissioned a 
Town Centre masterplan 
exercise for Kendal, this will 
also inform strategic 
decisions about the 
investment portfolio. 

Update 13/06/16: The new 
Property Services 
Management Provider will 
undertake a strategic review 
of the whole of the Council's 
portfolio in the first twelve 
months of the new contract. 
Update 23/08/16: The 
contract starts on 1st 
October 2016 and will deliver 
recommendations in first 
twelve months. 

Update 17/11/16: contract 
commenced, work 
commenced, draft will be 
delivered by 30/6/17 

and Informal Cabinet by 
the 15

th
 December 2017. 

3. Asset 
Management 

Management should review 
the process to log and follow 
up rent review cases to 
ensure rent reviews are 
undertaken and enforced on 
a timely basis. 

2 Update 14/03/16: There is a 
performance indicator in the 
new property management 
contract which highlights 
performance on completion 
of rent reviews over set time 
periods from giving 
instruction. It should be 
noted however that some 
tenants are less than 
constructive in seeking to 
agree rent reviews, in which 
case an independent 
process has to be actioned 

Asset Manager  

Assistant 
Director –   
Strategic 
Development 

31/03/2017 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 KPIs have been 
introduced since August 
2017. It is expected that 
the implementation date 
of March 2018 will be 
met.   

P
age 150



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 6 

 

in order to reach a 
conclusion on those rent 
reviews. In the meantime 
progress on faster 
completion is being 
monitored with the property 
services contractor at the e 
monthly meetings. Update 
13/06/16: Monthly review 
meetings have commenced 
between Legal and the 
Property Services provider to 
progress these issues. 
Update 23/08/16: Progress is 
on track - process 
improvements are 
embedded in the new 
contract. Update 17/11/16: 
monthly list now submitted to 
Corporate Asset Manager for 
action. 

4. Bereavement 
Services 

Management should make 
arrangements to develop 
comprehensive documented 
procedures for Bereavement 
Services. 

2 The development and 
documenting of procedures 
has been set as a target for 
the Bereavement Services 
Officer, as part of the 
appraisal process.  The 
target date for achievement 
was July 2015.  Whilst some 
procedures have been 
documented Further work is 
required to complete this 
task and a new timescale will 
be set. Update 23/08/16: Six 
procedures have been 
identified to document and 
these will be completed by 
31/03/17. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer / 
Bereavement 
Services Officer 

Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

31/03/2017 31/12/2017 Outstanding 03/11/2017 The Projects Officer is 
now in post and will be 
tasked with completing 
the procedural update. 
The timescale will be 
met. 

5. Bereavement 
Services 

Management should assure 
themselves that efficiencies 
relating to future service 
planning opportunities have 
been fully explored and 

2 Fees and charges for this 
service area are reviewed 
annually. Emerging best 
practice and service 
enhancements are 

Community and 
Leisure 
Manager/ 
Principal 
Community 

31/12/2016 31/03/2018 Outstanding 03/11/2017 Action considered 
partially complete. The 
ground maintenance 
contract extension has 
been approved for a 7-

P
age 151



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 7 

 

actions identified and 
progressed as appropriate. 

considered including 
alternative burial options in 
light of customer need and 
appropriate legislation at the 
time. These will additionally 
be considered in the drafting 
of the Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy. Update 
23/08/16: A draft Parks and 
Open Spaces Strategy will 
be in place by December 
2016.Update 17/11/16: 
Parks and Open Spaced 
Strategy to be finalised for 
31/3/17 so concurrent with 
the commencement of 
grounds maintenance 
contract extension. 

Spaces Officer / 
Bereavement 
Services Officer 

Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

year term from July 2017 
which involved detailed 
consideration being given 
to the future service 
provision of bereavement 
services and the 
inclusion of detailed 
performance 
requirements.   

A consultant is to be 
engaged to complete the 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Strategy, with the 
appointment currently 
being out to tender.  

The recommendation 
remains on target to be 
met. 

6. Bereavement 
Services 

Management should ensure 
that adequate arrangements 
are in place to review and 
assess the Services future 
planning arrangements.  
This could include ensuring 
provision can be maintained, 
identifying ways of improving 
the service and possible cost 
reductions for the Council. 

1 Update 23/08/16: risks will 
be identified and developed 
as part of the service 
planning process by Dec 
2016.Update 17/11/16: 
Service planning process to 
commence in early 2017 for 
completion by March 2017 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

31/12/2016 31/03/2018 Outstanding 03/11/2017 This will form part of the 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Strategy that is to be 
produced by a 
consultant. Whilst a 
consultant has not yet 
been appointed, the 
Principal Community 
Spaces       Officer has 
confirmed that the 
implementation date is 
still expected to be met 
as this is the next priority 
once the PSPO report 
has been taken to 
Cabinet in November 
2017. 

7. General IT 
Controls 

All system users should be 
requested to complete a 
declaration to confirm their 
receipt, understanding of 
and compliance to the IT 
Acceptable Use Policy. 
These declarations should 

2  All new staff read and sign 
the appropriate policies prior 
to being given access to the 
council network - we haven't 
requested all users resign as 
yet because the policies still 
need to be reviewed and 

IT Services 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

30/09/2016 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 There has been a delay 
in procuring the e-
learning package. A 
statement of 
requirements is being 
produced so a tender 
process can start for the 

P
age 152



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 8 

 

be retained. Consideration 
may also be given to the 
automation of this 
declaration through the 
network log on process. 

updated. Update 13/06/16: 
Policies are being prepared 
for HR Committee in 
September as part of the 
information Governance 
Project. Due date amended 
to 30/09/16.Update 23/08/16 
The IT Acceptable Use 
Policy was approved by the 
HR Committee on 
06/09/16.This will be 
communicated to staff and 
managers. 

software package. It is 
likely that the solution 
won’t be in a 
development stage until 
February 2018. At 
present all new members 
of staff are required to 
sign an Authorised User 
Agreement form as part 
of their IT induction which 
confirms they have read 
the relevant IT policies 

8. General IT 
Controls 

Once all policies are 
refreshed, the procedure to 
be applied in the event of 
potential / known IT security 
breaches should be defined 
and documented. These 
arrangements should be 
made available to key staff. 

2 Agreed that this will be part 
of the new policies that are 
created as part of the wider 
Information Governance 
project. The project has 
created the high level 
governance framework but 
the policies at this level 
haven't been updated as yet. 
We are aiming to have the 
newly amended policies 
presented at the Sept HR 
Committee.  They will be 
rolled out after they have 
been approved. 

IT Services 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

31/03/2016 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer has 
confirmed that 
implementation remains 
on target for 
implementation by 
31/03/2018. 

9. Cash 
Receipting – 
Car Parking 

Mystery shopping exercises 
in respect of parking charges 
paid for via mobile phones, 
debit and credit card 
including contactless 
payments should be 
conducted at least quarterly 
using various amounts 
(which correspond to the 
increments of the parking 
tariffs), from various mobile 
phone numbers, and for 
various parking spaces. The 
payments then be reconciled 
to income processed by 

2 We have considered this and 
will agree dates for trial using 
the pre-existing Council 
VISA Card and Mobile 
Phone systems.  The VISA 
card will be subject to 
approval of the use by 
finance.  Mobile Phone 
options will be agreed 
following roll out of new 
mobile devices by IT. 

Community and 
Leisure 
Manager with 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services Officer 

Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

30/06/2017 31/12/2017 Outstanding 24/10/2017 A pay by phone account 
has been set up. The first 
transaction took place on 
the 27/09/2017 and this 
has been confirmed and 
reconciled by The Car 
Park Finance Officer. 
This mystery shopping 
exercise has been fully 
documented and all 
details are held by The 
Car Park Finance Officer. 
The Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhood Services 
has confirmed that this 

P
age 153



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 9 

 

PayByPhone and CreditCall. 
Each mystery shopping 
exercise should be fully 
documented, and any 
supporting records should be 
retained. 

recommendation will be 
fully met within the 
timescales. 

10. Contract 
Management 

Oversight of compliance with 
the Contract Management 
Policy be undertaken either 
by a reconvened Contract 
Management Group or by 
the Procurement Team. 

2 Contract Management 
compliance will be reviewed 
by Procurement Team, 
including attendance at 
monitoring meetings held 
with suppliers.  Issues to be 
incorporated into quarterly 
procurement monitoring 
report to SMT 

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 24/10/2017 This recommendation 
remains on target. The 
Procurement and 
Contracts Manager has 
participated in and 
reviewed the Leisure, 
Grounds Maintenance, 
Schedule of Rates and 
Bloom Procurement 
Services contract 
meetings. 

11. Contract 
Management 

Clear planning timeframes 
for major contract extensions 
be established and be co-
ordinated by the 
Procurement Team. 

2 Major contract extensions 
will be treated as projects 
under the Council's Project 
Management process, with a 
board led by the relevant 
Assistant Director, and 
including the Operational 
Manager, legal, procurement 
and finance staff.  Progress 
will be included in the 
quarterly procurement 
monitoring reports to SMT. 

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 24/10/2017 The Procurement 
Schedule will be 
refreshed and in place by 
November 2017 as part 
of the budget cycle. This 
will be used to determine 
whether there are any 
extensions required. This 
recommendation remains 
on target for 
implementation 

12. Contract 
Management 

It be ensured that key 
performance indicators are 
developed and consistently 
maintained and that they are 
"SMART" based to enhance 
the monitoring of service 
delivery and performance for 
the Council's major 
contracts. 

2 The need for SMART KPIs is 
included in 
procurement/project training 
being delivered during 
2017/18.  Contract managers 
will be assisted and advised 
on KPIs by the Procurement 
Team as part of the 
procurement process for new 
contracts.  Existing contract 
KPIs will be reviewed as part 
of the refresh of the contract 
monitoring process and SMT 

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 24/10/2017 KPIs are in place for the 
Schedule of Rates, 
Property Services and 
Leisure contracts. The 
Grounds Maintenance 
KPIs were agreed at the 
September Partnership 
Board Meeting. These 
will be reviewed by the 
Procurement and 
Contracts Manager to 
ensure they are fit for 
purpose. 

P
age 154



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 10 

 

will be informed as part of 
the quarterly procurement 
monitoring process of 
compliance with KPI 
monitoring. 

13. Contract 
Management 

Contract Management 
arrangements in respect of 
reviewing contractor 
performance and the receipt 
of annual and six monthly 
reports from the Grounds 
Maintenance contractor be 
more robustly enforced 
within the new contract 
extension. 

2 See also Recommendation 
2.Contract Management 
compliance will be reviewed 
by Procurement Team, 
including attendance at 
monitoring meetings held 
with suppliers.  Issues to be 
incorporated into quarterly 
procurement monitoring 
report to SMT 

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 24/10/2017 The six monthly report 
will be achieved by the 
implementation date, 
however, the first annual 
report will be due after 
the implementation date 
of 31/03/18 as the 
contract extension was 
only extended on 
26/07/17. 

14. Data 
Assurance 

An information asset 
inventory detailing the types 
of confidential, personal and 
sensitive data held, both 
electronic and otherwise, be 
compiled and a central data 
sharing register be 
maintained recording the 
occasions when personal 
data is shared with third 
parties, including the reason 
and method of data transfer 
and nature of the data 
sharing agreement.    

2 Information Asset Inventory 
(Register) to be developed. 
Central Data Sharing 
Register to be developed. 

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

30/09/2017 31/12/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer has 
confirmed that the 
completion date for the 
recommendation remains 
on target for December 
2017.  

15. Data 
Assurance 

A Secure Data Transmission 
Policy be formulated and 
implemented.  

2 Agreed - Secure Data. 
Transmission Policy included 
as part Information Sharing 
Policy and associated 
protocols. 

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

31/05/2017 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer has 
confirmed that the 
completion date for the 
recommendation remains 
on target for December 
2017. 

16. Data 
Assurance 

Arrangements for the 
consistent application of the 
Records Retention Policy be 
agreed with managers within 

2 Agreed - Implementation 
Plan has been developed for 
the consistent application of 
Records Retention. 

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

30/09/2017 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer has 
confirmed that the 

P
age 155



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 11 

 

the Council. 
Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

completion date for the 
recommendation remains 
on target for March 2018. 

17. Debtors Periodic monitoring of the 
numerical sequencing of 
debtor accounts be 
undertaken and any breaks 
in sequence be investigated. 

2 The breaks in sequence 
have been investigated and 
relate to specific, non-
recurring system issues. 
Numerical sequencing will be 
reviewed as part of year end 
processes. 

Financial 
Services Officer 
(Systems) 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

 

27/03/2017 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The Financial Services 
Officer (Systems) has 
confirmed that the 
completion date for the 
recommendation remains 
on target for March 2018. 

18. Procurement The goods and services 
identified in Appendix A be 
reviewed to establish 
whether value for money is 
being achieved and whether 
formal tendering exercises 
should be initiated going 
forward. 

2 Of the six cases, two were 
one-off purchases so no 
further action is required.  
The remaining four cases 
have been reviewed and will 
be included in the 
procurement schedule. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The four remaining cases 
are included in the 
updated procurement 
schedule which is top go 
to Cabinet on 
29/11/2017. The 
recommendation remains 
on target. 

19. Risk 
Management 

Risk Management training 
be included in the Corporate 
Development Programme 
and refresher training on risk 
management be provided to 
all relevant officers. 

2 Risk Management Training 
will be listed in the Corporate 
Development Programme. 
The new staff intranet page 
on Risk Management and 
refreshed training material is 
in place to deliver training. 
Operational Managers will be 
trained as part of their review 
of their operational risk 
registers during December 
2016 and January 2017. 

Performance 
and Risk Officer 

Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation 

01/03/2017 31/12/2017 Outstanding 23/10/2017 Member training has 
been completed; staff 
training remains on 
course to be delivered by 
the end of December 
2017.  

20. Taxi Licensing Historical out-of-date driver 
and vehicle license details 
held on the Licensing 
Register on the council's 
website be deleted and the 
Register brought up to date.  

2 We are looking at moving off 
the current system as it is 
recognised that the 
functionality is limited in 
areas. The current supplier is 
onsite on the 23rd March 
2017 and we will pick up this 

Public 
Protection 
Manager 

Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 

01/10/2018 31/03/2018 Outstanding 23/10/2017 The implementation of 
this recommendation 
remains on-going and will 
be completed in line with 
the estimated date for 
replacing the current 
system. 

P
age 156



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 12 

 

issue with them. With the 
new system proposed, the 
register will update in real 
time and out of date records 
will be archived off the 
register as a specification 
requirement. The 
implementation date has 
been set to tie in with the 
estimated date of the system 
change.  

Services 

 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 157



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 13 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED  
         

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due 

Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last Update Latest Response 

1. Lake Windermere 
Services 

The Council should develop its 
operational service planning 
arrangements for Windermere 
Lake Services to more clearly link 
service objectives and associated 
performance measures to wider 
Council's priorities and the 
Strategic Vision of the partnership. 

2 Director of People 
and Places 

01/04/2017 31/10/2017 Completed 24/10/2017 The Director of People and Places: 
confirmed that the strategy has 
been approved by Lake 
Administration Committee and the 
relevant committee at the National 
Park Authority during October 
2017. This was confirmed through 
a review of the meeting report 
pack. 

2. ICT Network 
Security and 
Cybercrime 

The arrangements for server 
security patching be detailed in a 
Patching Policy.  

2 IT Services 
Manager  

Assistant Director- 
Performance and 
Innovation 

31/08/2017 01/09/2017 Completed 31/10/2017 A copy of the Patching Policy 
updated to include server security 
patching was provided by the 
Shared Infrastructure Manager to 
demonstrate that this 
recommendation has been 
implemented.  

3. Procurement Periodic monitoring occur by the 
Procurement Team to review 
whether Contract procedures are 
being complied with  and the 
outcome be reported to the Senior 
Management Team and Cabinet 
with a plan which prioritises those 
supplies which be subject to formal 
tendering exercises.  

2 Procurement and 
Contracts 
Manager 

Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer 

30/09/2017 30/09/2017 Completed 23/10/2017 The four examples of non-compliance 
identified in the Internal Audit Report 
have been added to the in-year 
Procurement Schedule 2017/2018. 
Monitoring has identified three 
additional examples of non-
compliance; these have also been 
added to the in-year Procurement 
Schedule for 2017/18. 

4. Taxi Licensing Clear procedures be established to 
destroy any hardcopy and 
electronic DBS certificates held on 
the Civica Flare system which are 
no longer required and should no 
longer be retained. 

2 Public Protection 
Manager 

Assistant Director 
– Neighbourhood 
Services 

15/04/2017 30/09/2017 Completed 23/08/2017 The Principal Environmental Health 
Officer confirmed that the procedure 
for checking and destroying copies of 
DBS certificates was emailed to 
relevant staff on 15/09/17. The email 
was reviewed as confirmation of this.  

 

------------- 

 

P
age 158



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 
2017/18 

 

 Page 14 

 

         

 

P
age 159



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 160



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee  

6 December 2017 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2017/18 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: All wards 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report presents the proposed accounting policies to be used for the closure of 
the 2017/18 accounts. These are prepared in line with CIPFA’s Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2017/18 (the Code). Adopting the 
proposed policies will support timely production of a high quality set of annual 
accounts.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee adopt the accounting policies at 
Appendix 1 for closure of the 2017/18 Accounts.  

3. BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
 

3.1 As part of its statement of accounts, the Council needs to disclose the accounting 
policies it has applied to all material balances and transactions. There is little 
discretion to the Council as the proper accounting practices, that all local 
authorities follow, are set down in the Code. There have only been minor changes 
in the Code with relevance to the Council after changes to the presentation of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the introduction of the 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis for the 2016/17 accounts. 

3.2 The proposed accounting policies are presented at Appendix 1. Apart from 
changes to the dates, these have not changed from the 2016/17 policies. These 
do not depart from the provisions of the 2017/18 Code.   

3.3 It is good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the 
production and approval of the draft accounts.  By statute, preparation of draft 
accounts has come forward to 31 May following the relevant year end, for financial 
years 2017/18 onwards. At the same time, the audited statements will need to be 
published by 31 July following the relevant financial year end: the Council 
successfully prepared the 2016/17 accounts to the new timetable. 

 

Page 161

Item No.11



4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 All local Authorities are consulted as part of CIPFA’s preparation of the Code. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options are proposed, the Council has no circumstances that would 
justify a material departure from the Code. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Robust and efficient reporting of financial performance and position supports all 
Council priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The policies in Appendix 1 underpin the Council’s reporting on its financial 
performance and position. There is little discretion to depart from the policies set 
down by the Code. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Code constitutes ‘proper accounting practices’ to be followed by a local 
authority under the terms of section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003.  

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your reasons. 

The accounting policies presented are 
in line with statutory guidance; there 
are no direct HSEE implications.  

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis, please explain your 
reasons. 

The accounting policies presented are in 
line with statutory guidance; there are no 
direct equality and diversity implications. 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council reports its financial 
performance and position on the 
basis of accounting policies that 
materially depart from the Code. 

Material errors are 
included in the draft 
statements or the accounts 
may be qualified. 

Officers review the 
Code annually and 
Committee adopt the 
updated Polices 

Page 162



 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147 , 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Accounting Policies 2017/18  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

2016/17 Final Accounts http://tinyurl.com/ya385bnb 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

6/11/2017 n/a n/a 9/11/2017 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 6/12/2017 n/a 6/11/2016 6/11/2017 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader  Ward 
Councillor(s) 

n/a n/a  n/a 

 

Page 163

http://tinyurl.com/ya385bnb


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



 

Appendix 1 
 
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the accounting policies to be used for 
preparation of the 2017/18 statement of accounts. These are identical to the 2016/17 
polices except to changes to the relevant dates. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this section is to explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts of South Lakeland District 
Council. Where individual transactions and other events are not covered by these 
policies they are accounted for in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice identified below. 
 
The accounting policies are the main principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
that specify how these transactions and other events are reflected in the financial 
statements of the Council.   
 
The accounts follow the appropriate accounting standards as required by the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 
(the Code of Practice). The Code constitutes a “proper accounting practice” under the 
terms of Section 21 (2) of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Code is based on 
approved international accounting standards, except where these conflict with specific 
accounting or legislative requirements, so that the Council’s accounts present a true and 
fair view of the financial position and transactions of the authority.  
 
The basic accounting convention adopted is historic cost, modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of tangible non-current assets and financial assets. 
 
The Accounting Policies that follow are presented in an order that, as far as possible, 
corresponds with the layout of the main statements. A full index of Policies follows. 
 
 
GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
Policy 1  Fundamental Accounting Concepts 
Policy 2  Estimation and Prior Year Errors 
Policy 3  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Policy 4  VAT 
 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
Policy 5 Revenue Grants and Contributions  
Policy 6 Employee Benefits 
Policy 7 Costs of Support Services 
Policy 8 External Interest 
Policy 9 Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
  Statement for the Use of Non-current Assets 
Policy 10 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
 
BALANCE SHEET 
Policy 11 Fair Value Measurement 
Policy 12  Definition of Capital Expenditure 

Page 165



 

Policy 13  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Policy 14 Heritage Assets 
Policy 15 Investment Properties 
Policy 16 Intangible Assets 
Policy 17 Non-Current Asset Disposal 
Policy 18  Leases 
Policy 19 Bad Debts 
Policy 19 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Policy 20 Capital Grants and Contributions 
Policy 21 Provisions 
Policy 22 Reserves 
Policy 23 Financial Assets 
Policy 24 Financial Liabilities 
Policy 25 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
OTHER 
Policy 26 Contingent Liabilities 
Policy 27 Contingent Assets 

 

 
1. FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS 
 
a) Underlying Assumptions 
 
Accruals 
The financial statements, other than the cash flow information, are prepared on an 
accruals basis.  This means that expenditure and income are recognised in the accounts 
in the period in which they are incurred or earned, not as money is paid or received.  
 
Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Council will 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. 
 
b) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Information 
 
Understandability 
These accounts are based on accounting concepts, treatments and terminology, which 
require reasonable knowledge of accounting and local government.  However, all 
reasonable efforts have been made to use plain language and where technical terms are 
unavoidable they have been explained as they occur. 
 
Relevance 
The accounts have been prepared with the objective of providing information about the 
Council’s financial performance and position that is useful to the reader in assessing the 
stewardship of public funds and for making future economic decisions. 
 
Materiality 
The Code permits the concept of materiality to be used in the preparation of the accounts. 
Omissions or mis-statements of items are material if they could, individually or 
collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the 
financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or mis-

Page 166



 

statement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a 
combination of both, could be the determining factor.  

 
Faithful Representation 
The financial information is complete, neutral and free from error in that it: 

 has been prepared so as to reflect the reality or substance of the transaction and 
activities underlying them, rather than their formal legal character; 

 represents faithfully the transactions and events it purports to or could reasonably 
be expected to represent; 

 is free from deliberate or systemic bias; 

 is free from material error; 

 is complete within the bounds of materiality and cost. 
 
Comparability 
The financial statements have been prepared to allow comparison of the Council’s 
financial position over time. In addition to complying with the Code, the Council’s 
statements also comply with the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP); this 
establishes proper practice with regard to consistent financial reporting and therefore 
aids comparability with other local authorities. 
 
Verifiable 
Information used to prepare the accounts can be verified. Where estimates have been 
used, the relevant assumptions underlying the estimation technique will be disclosed. 
 
Timely 
The statutory timeframe for preparation of the accounts will be adhered to. 
 
Primacy of Legislative Requirements 
Local Authorities derive their powers from statute and their financial and accounting 
framework is closely controlled by primary and secondary legislation.  It is a fundamental 
principle of local authority accounting that, where specific legislative requirements and 
accounting principles conflict, legislative requirements as shown in Appendix B to the 
Code shall apply. To satisfy the twin demands of accounting regulations and legislation, 
Local Authority accounts include a reconciling statement to disclose how legislation has 
had an impact on the general fund and other reserves (the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and supporting note). 
 
2. ESTIMATION AND PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 
 
In order to prepare the annual accounts by the specified deadline, it has been necessary 
to use estimation methods in relation to some transactions and events. The Council has 
applied the same methods this year as in previous years. 
 
The estimation techniques that have been used are, in the Council’s view, appropriate 
and consistently applied.  Should the effect of a change to an estimation technique be 
material, a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the 
current period and future years would be separately disclosed. 
 
Where errors have occurred in relation to previous years’ recognition, measurement, 
presentation, or disclosure of elements of financial statements, they are corrected 
retrospectively where material and disclosed in the notes to the statements. 

Page 167



 

 
3. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
In compliance with the Code, in all material respects both revenue and capital accounts 
of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis.  That is, sums due to or payable by 
the Council during the year are included in the accounts whether or not the cash has 
actually been received or paid in the year. In particular: 

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the 
date the Council provides the relevant goods or services 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, if material, 
they are carried as inventory on the Balance Sheet. Where not material, these will 
be expensed in year. 

 Employee Costs – see separate Employee Benefits Policy below 

 Interest payable on borrowings, and receivable on investments, is accounted for 
on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather 
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised, but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of 
debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might 
not be collected 

 
Accruals are largely based on known commitments and are assessed accurately. Where 
estimates are made, they are based on historical records, precedence and officers’ 
knowledge and experience. In all cases the Council adopts a prudent approach to avoid 
overstating its resources. 
 
4. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) 
 
Value Added Tax is included within the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable 
and therefore charged to revenue or capital expenditure as appropriate. VAT receivable 
is excluded from income. 
 
5. REVENUE GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Government grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Specific 
revenue grants and contributions are matched with the service expenditure to which they 
relate in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless there are 
conditions that have not been met. In such cases the income is credited to Receipts in 
Advance until the conditions are met. Once conditions are met the grant is transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding, but expenditure has not been incurred, the 
grant is transferred to an earmarked reserve until the expenditure is incurred. It is then 
transferred to the General Fund Balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Grants to cover general expenditure e.g. Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Council Tax 
Freeze grant are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
within the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line.  
 

Page 168



 

Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate, and are set-off against the previous entries in the accounts. 
 
6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
During Employment 
Short-term benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits for current 
employees. They are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council.  
 
An accrual is made at the end of each year for the cost of holiday entitlement and flexi-
time balances not taken at the year-end. The accrual is based on the salary rates for the 
year in which it will be taken. The accrual is charged to the cost of services, but then 
reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that benefits are charged to 
revenue in the year in which the holiday or flexi-time is taken. 
 
Termination Benefits 
These are benefits payable as a result of a decision taken by the Council to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or as a result of an 
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals 
basis to the relevant service in the period when the Council can no longer withdraw the 
offer of benefits made to the employee or when the criteria for recognising a provision to 
cover such costs are met, whichever is the earliest.  
 
Where termination benefits involve pension enhancements, statutory provisions require 
the amount charged to the General Fund to be the amount paid in the year and not that 
calculated in accordance with relevant accounting standards. The Movement in Reserves 
Statement therefore shows entries in and out of the Pensions Reserve to bring the 
treatment into line with the accruals requirements of Accounting Standards. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
The Council has adopted the accounting requirements under IAS19 – Retirement 
Benefits, as required by the Code. Employees of the Council are members of Cumbria 
County Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Local 
Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections 
of estimated earnings for current employees 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate and 
type of bond provided by the Actuary  

 The assets of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

- quoted securities at current bid price 
- unquoted securities by professional estimate 
- unitised securities at current bid price 
- property at market value 

 
 

Page 169



 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Component Detail Accounting Treatment 
Current service cost Increase in the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation resulting 
from employee service in the 
current period including interest on 
the current service cost. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement for appropriate 
service 

Past service cost / 
gains 

Change in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation for 
service in prior periods resulting 
from a plan amendment or 
curtailment and any gain or loss on 
settlement. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement, Non 
Distributed costs 

Net interest on the net 
defined benefit 
liability(asset) 

Change during the period in the net 
defined liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time. 

Financing and Investment 
Income and  Expenditure 
in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 

Other contributions to 
the Pension Fund 
including Gains/losses 
on 
settlements and 
curtailments 

Result of actions to relieve Council 
of liabilities or events that reduce 
expected future service or accrual 
of benefits of employees 

Debited to Net Cost of 
Services in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement, 
Non Distributed Costs 

Re-measurements  
(return on plan assets, 
actuarial gains and 
losses) 

Return on Plan assets not included 
in net interest. Changes in net 
pensions liability arising because 
events have not coincided with 
assumptions made at last actuarial 
valuation or changes to actuaries’ 
assumptions split between 
demographic and financial 
assumptions 

Accounted for in the Pensions 
Reserve and as part of Other 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

Contributions paid to 
the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme 

Cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund. 

Not accounted for as an 
expense in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement but charged against 
General Fund through 
Movement in Reserves 

Other administration 
costs 

Other costs of scheme 
administration 

Debited to other operating 
expenditure 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance 
to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement 
in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits, and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the 
fund but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Any prepayments into the pension fund will be treated as a reduction to the pension 
liability. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 

Page 170



 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of 
an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 
award, and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 
 
Residual Arrangements 
The Greater Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds charge the Council for the 
full pensions of a small number of pensioners of local authorities that were replaced by 
South Lakeland District Council in the 1974 Local Government Re-organisation. 
 
7. COSTS OF SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The accounting treatment for support services has been prepared in accordance with 
SeRCOP.  The costs of management and administration overheads have been allocated 
to all services.   
 
The following costs are accounted for as separate expenditure heads and are shown on 
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation 

 Non-Distributed Costs – cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees 
retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses on surplus assets 

 
The total absorption costing principle is used with the full cost of overheads and support 
services being shared between users on the following basis: 
 
Description 

 
Basis of Allocation 

Financial Services Gross revenue expenditure 
Budget 

Legal Services Time apportionment 
Human Resources/Payroll Staff Numbers 
Democratic Services Time apportionment 
Administrative Buildings Area occupied 
Information Services Number of PC Users 
Corporate Services Time apportionment 
  
  

8. EXTERNAL INTEREST 
 
Interest payments on external borrowings (Public Works Loans Board and other bodies) 
are fully accrued in order that each year bears the costs of interest related to its actual 
external borrowing.  External interest income is credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement over the period to which it relates. 
 
9. CHARGES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE   
STATEMENT FOR THE USE OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited or credited 
with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during 
the year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

Page 171



 

 Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on 
tangible non-current assets used by the service and other losses where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be 
written-off 

 Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses 
or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to 
an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with 
statutory guidance). Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced by MRP in the Movements in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two. 
 
10. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, 
but does not result in the creation of non-current assets owned by the Council 
(REFCUS), has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in 
the year. Examples include disabled facilities grants on private houses.   

 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from  capital 
resources, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, so there is no impact on the level of the Council Tax.  
 
 
11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Where asset and liability values on the balance sheet reflect their current value, these will 
be measured at Fair Value unless a different measurement basis is specified in the 
Code. This is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to 
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction, between market participants, at the 
measurement date.  
 
This definition will also be applied if disclosures about Fair Values are required for assets 
and liabilities measured on a  basis other than fair value. 
 
 
12. DEFINITION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
All expenditure on the acquisition, construction, replacement or restoration of a tangible 
non-current asset has been capitalised and classified as property, plant, equipment, 
heritage asset or investment property, where it is probable that future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and where the cost 
can be measured reliably. 
 
This will also include subsequent expenditure except where this only maintains the 
asset’s potential to deliver the level of service anticipated when the asset was acquired. 
In this case, the expenditure will be treated as revenue and will be charged to the service 
account. 

Page 172



 

 
Where a component of an asset is replaced or restored the amount in the accounts 
relating to the old component is de-recognised. Major overhaul or replacement 
expenditure can also be capitalised if it relates to a non-current asset that has previously 
been depreciated. 
 
A non-current asset is initially recognised at its cost, which is its purchase price plus any 
costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use.  Directly 
attributable costs are the labour costs of own employees (e.g. site workers, in-house 
architects and surveyors) arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the 
specific asset, the incremental costs to the Council that would have been avoided only if 
the particular non-current asset had not been constructed or acquired. 
 
Costs will be ineligible to the extent that they relate to activity that takes place before the 
intention to acquire or construct a particular non-current asset has been confirmed.  
Examples include project appraisals and feasibility studies. 
 
The Council has adopted an aggregate de-minimis level of £10,000 for expenditure on 
capital schemes; if expenditure in a single financial year is less than £10,000 it will still be 
capitalised if this is part of an ongoing scheme which in total is £10,000 or more. 
Expenditure on schemes below this level is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year it is incurred. 
 
 
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
 
Recognition and Valuation 
After initial recognition in the accounts at cost, non-current assets are valued on the basis 
required by International Standards and recommended by CIPFA and the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  
 
Operational Land and buildings have been valued by the Council’s external valuers at 
Current Value on the basis of market related evidence where available. Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) has been used on specialist assets where there is no active 
market. The basis of the valuation, including that for vehicles, equipment and plant, is the 
net realisable value in existing use.  Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy 
for Current Value for vehicles, plant and equipment.  
 
Infrastructure assets and assets under construction are held at depreciated historic cost; 
community assets are held at historic cost. 
 
Revaluations 
Revaluations of non-current assets are being carried out as part of a rolling programme 
over a four-year cycle. However, in addition material changes to asset valuations will be 
adjusted in the interim period as they occur, for example where there is enhancement 
expenditure in the year or as a result of an impairment review. Although a rolling 
programme is used, the Council’s valuers will consider the carrying amounts of all land 
and building assets at the balance sheet date for the potential of material misstatement. 
Revaluations of non-current assets also take place when an asset is classified as Held 
for Sale. 
 

Page 173



 

Any gains on revaluation will be credited to the Revaluation Reserve, unless it reverses a 
previous loss on the same asset that was charged to service expenditure. In that event 
the equivalent gain will be credited back to where the charge was made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Losses on valuation will be debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless it can be set against any previous gains in Revaluation Reserve for 
that asset. 
 
Impairment 
All categories of non-current assets or material individual assets are reviewed each year 
for evidence of reductions in value. 
 
Where there is a material reduction in recoverable amount, the loss is reflected through 
an impairment charge to the service accounts, unless there is a revaluation surplus in the 
revaluation reserve for that asset, in which case it will be set off against that surplus.   
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all non-current assets with a finite useful life with the 
exception of Investment Properties, some Heritage Assets, Assets Under Construction 
and Assets Held for Sale.  Where depreciation is provided for, assets are generally 
depreciated using the “straight line” method on the opening balance. Details of the 
relevant periods are shown in the Property, Plant and Equipment note to the accounts. 
The depreciation periods are reviewed each year. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, where an event occurs in year that creates a material 
difference between the opening and closing valuation of an asset, a different approach 
may be used to provide a fair estimate of the value of using the asset in the year. This 
would base the depreciation charge on a value judged to best represent the year in 
question overall. This will only be done where it has a material impact on the depreciation 
charge and the details will be made explicit within the notes to the accounts. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation and that which would have been charged on a historical cost 
basis, is transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Derecognition 
Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when it has no future 
economic benefit or social benefit. 
 
The gain or loss from derecognition is the net of its disposal proceeds, if any, and its 
carrying amount and is included in the Other Operating Expenditure in the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
 
Where part of an asset is being replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the existing 
part is derecognised and replaced with the recognised amount for the new part. Where 
the carrying amount of the existing part is difficult to identify, estimates based on the cost 
of the new part are used to establish the amount. 
 
14. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 

Page 174



 

Heritage Assets are those that are: 

 held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture 
and/or  

 preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or 
historical associations  

 
They include both tangible and intangible assets. Where the values of these items are 
individually and/or collectively immaterial they are included in the Balance Sheet at a 
nominal value, and reference is made to them in the notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
With the exception of the relaxations shown below, Heritage Assets are recognised and 
measured in accordance with the policies on Property, Plant and Equipment or Donated 
Assets. 
 
Land and Buildings 
Where valuation methods cannot be applied due to the nature of the asset, for example 
Kendal Castle, a nil value has been used. No impairment or depreciation is therefore 
applicable in these cases. 
 
Collections 
The disparate collections held in various locations within the Council are reported in the 
Balance Sheet at valuation. This is estimated using the insurance value. When 
acquisitions are made they are initially recognised at cost, whereas donations will be 
recognised at valuation by reference to market information.  
 
 
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
Assets held and managed purely for rental income or capital appreciation are held as 
Investment Properties, and their annual revenue income and expenditure are reflected in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure. They are not subject to depreciation but are re-valued annually 
at Fair Value according to market conditions at the year-end. 
 
 
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance, but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences), is capitalised when it will bring benefits 
to the Council for more than one financial year. The asset is normally held at historical 
cost, less any accumulated amortisation (depreciation) and impairment loss, unless there 
is an active market in which case fair value will apply.  
 
The amortisation (depreciation) cost is charged to the relevant service account over the 
economic life to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. Where an intangible asset 
has an indefinite life no amortisation (depreciation) is applied. In line with tangible assets, 
the values of intangible assets (if in use) are reviewed periodically, and impairment, 

disposal and useful life policies are also applied and reviewed.  
 
 
 

Page 175



 

 
 
 
17. NON-CURRENT ASSET DISPOSAL 
 
Held for Sale 
Assets held for sale must be available for and in a physical condition appropriate for 
immediate sale, all approvals received or granted and expected to be sold within one 
year. In most cases this will be when the Council approves its sale and marketing.  
 
When an asset is classified as for sale, it is immediately revalued in its pre-
reclassification asset class. It is then reclassified and shown on the Balance Sheet at the 
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. When the asset is sold any gain or 
loss is shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains are only 
recognised up to the value of any losses previously posted to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Receipts 
Receipts from disposals are credited to Other Operating Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Amounts in excess of £10,000 are accounted for as Capital Receipts. 
 
The balance of receipts, after taking account of costs of disposal, is credited to a Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). Gains or 
losses on disposals are not a charge against Council Tax as amounts are provided for 
under separate capital financing arrangements. Amounts are appropriated from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

 

 
18. LEASES 
 
General 
The Council enters into leases both from and to external organisations/individuals. The 
nature of the lease can be either operational or finance with the determining factor being 
the amount of risks and rewards that pass with the lease. The Council currently has no 
Finance leases. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals payable are charged directly to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. This generally means 
they are charged when they become payable. 
 
Rents received are credited to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as they are due. 
 
 
18. BAD DEBTS 
 

Page 176



 

The Council continually reviews its debts as part of its monitoring process taking account 
of past recovery rates and any relevant advice from external bodies. Provision is made 
for impairment of debts, which for most services is calculated as 25% of all debts 
between 6 months and one year old, 50% of all debts between 1 and 2 years old and 
100% of all debts over two years old.   
 
Separate amounts are calculated for Council Tax, NNDR, Housing Rents and Benefits. 
These reflect increasing levels of provision dependent on the stage of recovery, with 
anything over two years being fully provided for.  
 
 
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents include: 

 petty cash 

 amounts held in instant access accounts 

 the consolidated payments and income accounts with the Council’s main bankers 
 
 
20. CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Capital grants and contributions received for the purposes of financing capital 
expenditure are credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis, unless 
there are conditions that have not been met. In this case, the income is credited to 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance until the conditions are met. It is then transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
When there are no conditions outstanding and the related expenditure to be financed 
from that grant has been incurred, the grant is transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account and reported through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding but the related expenditure has not been 
incurred the grant is transferred to Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When the expenditure is incurred the grant is 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account with appropriate reporting in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. 
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate and set off against the previous entries in the accounts. Repayment is regarded 
as capital expenditure and transfers are made between the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the Capital Adjustment Account with the transfer being 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
 
21. PROVISIONS 
 
The Council makes general provisions for significant liabilities or losses, which are likely 
or certain to be incurred but are uncertain as to the amounts or dates on which they will 
arise. For example the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually 
result in the requirement to make a settlement or pay compensation. 
 

Page 177



 

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service in the year that the Council becomes 
aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the amount that might be paid. 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the 
Balance Sheet. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and where it is 
apparent that it is no longer needed or the amount needs to be changed, then amounts 
are either credited back to revenue or additional sums charged to revenue to increase 
the provision. 
 

Details of each provision are included in Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
 
22. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes, 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure is incurred it is charged to the service revenue account in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is appropriated back 
into the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net 
charge against council tax for the expenditure. A list of reserves for specific purposes, 
and an explanation of their use, is included in the notes to the Accounting Statements.  
 
Capital Reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets 
and retirement benefits. These are not available for use by the Council for revenue 
purposes, and some can only be used for specific statutory purposes. These reserves 
are explained in the relevant notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
 
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
Financial assets are classified into two main types: 

 loans and receivables – assets  that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market 

 assets held for sale – assets that do not fit under any other category; these are 
held at fair value and may include, for example, equity shareholdings and quoted 
investments, including UK Gilts. 

 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has 
made, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable, and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Council has made loans to voluntary organisations and other bodies at less than 
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest 
that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost 
than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally higher effective rate of 
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference 

Page 178



 

serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory 
provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the 
interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain 
required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a 
charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
Assets Available for Sale 
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “Assets Held for Sale” any change 
in fair value due to market conditions will be posted to ‘Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure’ but will be reversed into the Financial Instruments Available for Sale 
Reserve. This will leave only the effective interest rate based on the amortised cost as a 
credit to the General Fund. 
 
 
24. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount (balance carried forward) of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings 
that the Council has, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable, and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
Accounting for debt re-structuring or early settlement will be in accordance with the Code 
and relevant statute. 
 
 
25. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date which relate to conditions that existed at the balance 
sheet date, are adjusted in the Accounts and disclosures. For events occurring after the 
Balance Sheet date relating to conditions that arose after that date, adjustments are not 
made in the Accounts but details are disclosed in a note. Events taking place after the 
date of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 
 
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Where there is a possible obligation to make a payment, but the amount and timing is not 
certain, no entry is required to be made in the accounts.  However, for each class of 
contingent liability which the Council has the following commentary has been included in 
the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 the nature of the contingency 

Page 179



 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate)  

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 
payment  

 
 
27. CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
Contingent assets occur where a possible asset arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. No entry is required to be made in the 
accounts.   However, for each class of contingent asset which the Council has, the 
following information has been included in the notes to the Accounting Statements: 

 a commentary on the nature of the contingency 

 a brief description 

 an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate) 

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 

receipt. 

 

Page 180



South Lakeland District Council 
Audit Committee  
6 December 2017 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTRIBUTION TO REVIEW OF 
CONSTITUTION 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith - Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 
1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 
1.1 This report is presented to update the Audit Committee on the results of the 

annual review of the Council’s Constitution for consideration by Audit 
Committee. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee note the proposals for changes 

to the Constitution. 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1  The Audit Committee Work Programme for 2017/18 includes an annual review 
of the Council’s Constitution.  This review concentrates on the areas of the 
constitution with a direct impact on the financial controls of the Council 
contained within the Financial Procedure Rules and the Contract Procedure 
Rules.  There is a separate review of the full Constitution carried out annually 
by the Monitoring Officer.  

3.2 There was a major re-write of these areas of the Constitution in December 2015 
which was approved separately by Council.  The current review has identified 
some very minor changes to clarify that the Solicitor to the Council should be 
consulted before insurance claims are settled, that procurement exercises 
relating to insurance claims are carried out in accordance with the requirements 
of the insurer and that the Monitoring Officer should have delegation to approve 
virement of budgets relating to elections.  It is proposed that these changes are 
included in the review of the Constitution being undertaken by the Monitoring 
Officer rather than form a separate set of changes for Council to consider. 

3.3 The Audit Committee’s role in monitoring the expenditure of funds transferred 
from the SLDC Royal Wedding Fund is no longer required and therefore it is 
proposed that this be removed from the Committee’s list of functions. 

Page 181

Item No.12



4.0 CONSULTATION 
4.1 Officers have reviewed the existing Constitution.  Only minor changes are 

proposed which will be included in the Monitoring Officer’s annual review of 
the Constitution which is due to report to Council in March 2018. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 It is good practice to regularly review the Constitution to ensure a proper 
balance between operational efficiency and strong internal controls. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
6.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 Financial and Resources 
7.1.1 This report has no direct financial implications 
7.2 Human Resources 
7.2.1 There are no direct human resources implications of this report. 
7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 There are no direct legal implications of this report. 
7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons. 

Any update of the finance and 
contract procedure rules have 
no direct HSEE implications.   

7.5 Equality and Diversity 
7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons. 

The update of the finance and 
contract procedure rules have 
no direct equality and diversity 
impacts. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Failure to review 
Constitution 
 
Failure to have 
effective delegation to 
officers in place 

Potential failings in the internal 
controls contained within the 
Constitution 
Potential delays in decision 
making 

A thorough review and 
assessment based on 
external guidance 

Page 182



 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

None  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 
Constitution http://tinyurl.com/yb33epxf  

 
TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

22/11/17 n/a 22/11/17 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 6/12/17 n/a 22/11/17 22/11/17 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

n/a n/a n/a  

 

Page 183

http://tinyurl.com/yb33epxf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



South Lakeland District Council 
Audit Committee 
6 December 2017 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER 
 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Not applicable 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 
1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 
1.1 This report is presented to Audit Committee to facilitate the ongoing review of the Audit 

Committee Risk Register. 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1)    review the updated Audit Committee Risk Register. 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
3.1 The Risk Register was last reviewed on 26 July 2017 and has been brought back with that 

meeting’s recommendations included.  
Appendix 1 shows the risks previously identified for the Audit Committee and those which 
have been archived. These risks have been reviewed and archived during the period the 
Committee has existed.  These will continue to be reviewed annually. 

3.2 The Committee at its meeting in July 2017 considered its four current risks:   
3.2.1 RISK AC 1: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience. 

This was archived on the 19/06/08, but resurrected as part of the review process at 
the 4 December 2014 Audit Committee. Due to the experience of long-standing 
Members and training for new Members this risk was down-graded in April 2016.  

3.2.2 RISK AC 2: This risk regards the ability of the Council to carry out its statutory 
requirements effectively due to limited resources as a result of the level of funding of 
local government.  This risk is linked to the strategic risk around the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.  The likelihood of this risk has been reduced to reflect the Council’s 
robust financial planning process including the identification and delivery of savings.  
However, the risks remain as the current financial situation remains uncertain with 
the expected implementation of 100% retention of business rates and the results of 
the fair funding review from April 2020. 

1 
Page 185

Item No.13



3.2.3 RISK AC 3: Members identified the risk regarding the statutory timetable for final 
accounts reporting from the 2017/18 accounts being earlier than present.  Although 
officers are already factoring this in, achieving quality accounts on time was a risk 
that Audit Committee needed assurance on. 
The new deadline will require the accounts for 2017/18 to be prepared and 
authorised by the Chief Finance Officer by the end of May 2018 and audited by the 
end of July 2018 which gives one month less for both the preparation and the audit 
of the accounts.  Officers prepared 2016/17 accounts by the end of May 2017: 
lessoned learned from the new operational processes will be built into the timetable 
for 2017/18.   

3.2.4 RISK AC 4: External Auditor appointment.  The Council have until December 2017 
to make an appointment for external auditors when the current arrangements come 
to an end.  Previous appointments were made by the Audit Commission nationally 
and are currently overseen by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) on 
behalf of the Secretary of State.  The Council has joined the sector-led national 
procurement exercise run by PSAA and it is expected that the external auditors will 
be appointed in December 2017.  It is proposed that the likelihood is downgraded to 
very low and that officers archive the risk when the appointment process is 
completed. 

3.3 Previous risks that have been considered and archived are: 
RISK AC 001: Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee: archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 002: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience: 
archived on the 19/06/08 
RISK AC 003: Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit Committee: 
archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 004: Members do not recognise the importance of Audit Committee: archived 
10/2/11 
RISK AC 005: Perception that the Committee is too critical: archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 007: Significant changes to the membership In one year: archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the committee to 
demonstrate progress and contribution: archived 18/7/13 
RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are not 
addressed.   

4.0 CONSULTATION 
4.1 The Audit Committee risk register is considered by Audit Committee twice per year.  
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
5.1 No alternative options – risks should be reviewed and managed. 
6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
6.1 Risk management activity underpins Council Plan activity. 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 Financial and Resources 
7.1.1 The proposed mitigations can be met within existing budgets. 
7.2 Human Resources 
7.2.1 The proposed mitigations can be met within the existing human resources available. 

2 
Page 186



7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 There are no additional legal requirements. 
7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The review of Audit Committee risks is 
a corporate governance issue and has 
no direct health, social, economic or 
environmental impacts. 

 
7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The review of Audit Committee risks is 
a corporate governance issue and has 
no direct equality or diversity impacts. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
No significant risks 
associated with this 
report 

  

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 
793147  
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Committee Risk Register. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 
 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

None  

 

3 
Page 187

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

6/11/17 n/a 9/11/17 9/11/17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a This report n/a 6/11/17 9/11/17 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 
 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 
 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 
 
  

4 
Page 188



Appendix 1 
Audit Committee Risk Register 
 

Report Author: Helen Smith 

Generated on: 26.7.2017  Audit Committee 

The Risk matrix shows how risks are prioritised: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Committee Risks:  

2016/17 Risk Register/162015  
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 1 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
    
 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. In April 2016 the likelihood was reduced 
reflecting the experience and training of the existing 
Committee members. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

Provide suitable 
development 
opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 
completed? Commenced Due Date  Throughout 

2016/17 Actioned 
Simon 
McVey   

 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

High 
    

Medium 
    

Low 
    

Very Low 
    

 
Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 Impact 

Priority risks which 
require mitigating 
controls and 
quarterly review 

Low priority risks 
which require annual 
review 

5 
Page 189



Risk No. & Title 
RISK AC 2 Audit Committee ineffective due to limited resources following Government changes to the 
funding of local government. 

Local authorities continue to face unprecedented challenges, relating to the pressures of austerity and 
central government funding reductions, and demographic and technological change. 

  

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
  X  
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2014 added this risk. In April 2016 the 
risk was amended to concentrate on the impact of funding cuts on the 
ability of the Council to meet its statutory requirements.  This risk links to 
the Medium Term Financial Plan strategic risk.  The latest Medium Term 
Financial Plan will be considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Cabinet and Council during 2017. 

In July 2017 the likelihood was reduced from medium to low. 

Council approved the Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 – 2022/23 in 
July 2017. 

Budget updates during November 2017 – February 2018 will include 
updates to the MTFP projections. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

Quarterly monitoring of 
MTFP financial model & 
risks 

Action 
completed? Ongoing  Due Date 

Ongoing: 
see Budget 
Timetable, 
Appendix 1, 
MTFP 

Actioned Shelagh McGregor   

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 3 The Council fail to meet the tighter timescales for the preparation of final accounts from 
2017/18 onwards. 

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
 X   
    

Impact 
 

Latest Note 

The new deadlines will require the accounts for 2017/18 to be 
prepared and authorised by the Chief Finance Officer by the end of 
May 2018 and audited by the end of July 2018 which gives one 
month less for both the preparation and audit of the accounts.  For 
2016/17 the accounts were completed and checked by the end of 
May 2017.  

An unqualified audit opinion was issued in September 2017 in 
relation to the 2016/17 accounts and no material errors were 
identified. 

Actions to 
control this 
risk 

Review the 2016/17 
closedown 

Action 
completed? Ongoing Due Date 

Audit 
Committee 
July 2017 

Actioned 
Shelagh 
McGregor 

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 4 The Council fails to appoint external auditors in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
    
 X   

Impact 
 

Latest Note 

The Council have until December 2017 to make an appointment for 
external auditors when the current arrangements come to an end.  
Previous appointments were made by the Audit Commission 
nationally and are currently overseen by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd on behalf of the Secretary of State.  The Council 
has joined the Sector Led body procurement exercise.  This reduces 
the likelihood of failing to properly appoint an external auditor in 
accordance with statutory requirements through an Audit Panel. 

PSAA Ltd have consulted the Council on the proposed appointment of 
auditor, this will be confirmed in December 2017. 

December 2017: Proposed that risk likelihood reduced from low to 
very low 

Actions to 
control this 
risk 

Review the progress of the 
proposed sector-led 
procurement exercise 

Action 
completed? Ongoing Due Date During 

2016/17 Actioned 
Shelagh 
McGregor 

6 
Page 190



Archived as agreed by previous Audit Committees 

Listed in order of Risk No. & Title 

 

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 001 Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
    
  X  

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 002 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
  X  
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. This is included as a new risk below the line of 
tolerance. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Provide suitable 
development 
opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 003 Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
    
 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
 
 
 
 

7 
Page 191



Risk No. & Title RISK AC 004 Members do not recognise the importance of Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
    
    
 X   
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 005 Perception that the Committee is too critical   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
 X   
    
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 006 Insufficient capacity from Members to make the Committee effective   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
 X   
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 007 Significant changes to the membership In one year   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
    
 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 

8 
Page 192



Risk No. & Title RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the committee to 
demonstrate progress and contribution.   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
    
    
    
 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are not addressed   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

    
    
  X  
    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2015 decided to archive this 
risk.    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  Action 
completed?  Due Date   Actioned    

9 
Page 193



 

10 
Page 194



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 6 December 2017  

Council 19 December 2017  

REVIEW OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to show the results of the review of the Council’s 
Code of Local Governance. It is expected that the revisions are adopted by 
the Committee/Council.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

2.1 consider the proposed revisions to the Local Code of Governance 
at Appendix 1 and recommend the approval of the amended Code 
at Appendix 2 to full Council. 

2.2 note the AGS action plan presented at Appendix 3 

2.2 It is recommended that Council:-  

 Note the review of the Local Code of Governance and approve the 
amended Local Code at Appendix 2. 

3 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
 

3.1 Local authorities should have in place an effective system of internal control 
(SIC). For South Lakeland District Council, the key features of the SIC are 
described within the Local Code of Governance.  

3.2 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), the Council is required to 
review the effectiveness of the SIC annually and to report this through an 
Annual Governance Statement. This is done alongside the statement of 
accounts and must be prepared in accordance with proper practices.  

3.3 CIPFA published a revised version of their governance framework for local 
authorities, ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 
(2016)’. This counts as proper practice and to be applied for financial years 

Page 195

Item No.14



from 1/4/2016 onwards. This slightly re-arranged the previous framework 
moving from 6 principles to 7 in line with CIPFA’s broader International 
Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector (2014).  

3.4 The Local Code and Annual Governance Statement were prepared under the 
new framework for 2016/17. Part of this review produced a recommendation 
to review the Local Code with reference to provisions around partnership 
working to ensure that the controls in place remained relevant and 
proportionate to the risks generated through different types of partnership 
working.  

3.5 Appendix 1 presents a summary of the proposed changes to the Local Code. 
The full amended Local Code is presented at Appendix 2. 

LOCAL CODE REVIEW 

3.6 The first step of the process was to identify all provisions relating to 
partnership working. Then the CIPFA framework was reviewed to set a 
baseline for expected arrangements to be in place. The proposed revisions 
are included at Appendix 1 with a clear version of the local code presented at 
Appendix 2.  

3.7 The main changes have been to tidy up the local code provisions that refer to 
partnership working and to make these more principles based with reference 
to a Partnership Guidance document that contains more detail about what 
arrangements may be considered appropriate for difference types of 
partnership arrangement 

3.8 As part of the annual review of effectiveness of the local code, officers will 
update the partnerships register to evidence that the principles of the local 
code are being followed and that the partnership guidance is being 
considered. 

AGS ACTION PLAN UPDATE 

3.9 An action plan to address areas for improvement in the Council’s governance 
arrangements was presented as part of the approved 2016/17 AGS. This was 
presented to Audit Committee 20 September 2017, Appendix 3 gives an 
update on progress against the various actions; this review of the local code 
directly answers the item around reviewing the provisions around partnership 
working. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Officers have reviewed the existing Local Code of Governance and the new 
CIPFA LASAAC. Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016). Audit Committee have reviewed the AGS and the AGS 
action plan which refers to review of the Local Code provisions around 
partnership working.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The Committee can alter the detail of the Local Code of Governance, however 
it should ensure that any amendments comply with best practice and the 
legislative framework. 

Page 196



6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The system of internal control as described in the Local Code underpins the 
achievement of all Council priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 This report has no financial implications 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications of this report. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached to the report 
in the appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons. 

The Local Code of Governance 
has no direct HSEE 
implications. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached to the report 
in the appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons. 

The Local Code of Governance 
has no direct Equality and 
Diversity implications. 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Weaknesses identified 
in the Annual 
Governance Statement 
action plan are not 
addressed adequately. 

Non-compliance with Local 
Code of Corporate governance 
with possible loss of public 
confidence about the way the 
Council conducts its business 

Regular reporting schedule 
so that Members and senior 
officers can monitor 
progress in addressing the 
weaknesses identified. 

Local Code prepared 
that is not in line with 
proper practice 

Potential gaps in system of 
internal control 

Regular review of Local 
Code; annual review of 
effectiveness based on 
CIPFA framework 

Page 197



 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, ext 3147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Proposed amendments to Local Code 

2 Proposed Local Code of Governance 2017/18 

3 AGS action plan update 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

International Framework: Good Governance in 
the Public Sector IFAC/CIPFA 

http://tinyurl.com/lvqtdx2 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

9/11/17 n/a 7/11/17 9/11/17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 6/12/17 19/12/17 9/11/17 9/11/17 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

n/a n/a n/a  

 

Page 198

http://tinyurl.com/lvqtdx2


 

1 
 

Appendix 1  
 
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the changes to the Local Code of Governance for 
2017/18.     

 
South Lakeland District Council 
Local Code of Governance December 20162017 
 
Contents 
 
Introduction 
 
Principle A –  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Principle B –  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C –  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
Principle D –  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
 
Principle E –  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Principle F –  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
Annual Review of Corporate Governance 

 

 
Introduction 
 
This Local Code of Governance has been developed from a framework document produced by 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE). The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) defines governance as follows:  
 
“Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for 
stakeholders are defined and achieved.  

Page 199



 

2 
 

To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working 
for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while acting in the public 
interest at all times.  
 
Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, which should 
result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders.” 
 
The framework contains seven principles. These are as follows:  
 
Principle A –  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Principle B –  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C –  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
Principle D –  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
 
Principle E –  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Principle F –  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
The Council is committed to these principles and has adopted them into its Local Code. The 
remainder of this document sets out the local arrangements that support the achievement of these 
principles. The Council will review the effectiveness of these arrangements against the 
Framework on an annual basis. 
 
 

The Council commits itself to the following principles: 
 
Principle A   Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for 
how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both 
positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they have an 
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation 
and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the 
appropriateness of all their actions across all activities and have mechanisms in place to 
encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.  

Page 200



 

3 
 

 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. make a Chief Executive (or equivalent) responsible and accountable to the authority for 
all aspects of operational management; 

2. make a senior officer (the Section 151 Officer) responsible to the authority for ensuring 
that appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper financial 
records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of internal financial 
control; 

3. appoint a professionally qualified and experienced Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer), who will lead the promotion and delivery of good financial management, 
safeguarding public money and ensuring appropriate, economic, efficient and effective 
use of funds; together with professional accountability for finance staff throughout the 
Council; 

4. make a senior officer (the Monitoring Officer) responsible to the authority for ensuring 
that agreed procedures are followed and that all applicable statutes, regulations and 
other relevant statements of good practice are complied with. 

5. develop and maintain shared values including leadership values both for the Council and 
its staff reflecting public expectations about the conduct and behaviour of individuals and 
groups within and associated with the Council; 

6. use the Council’s shared values to act as a guide for decision making and as a basis for 
developing positive and trusting relationships within the Council; 

7. develop and adopt formal codes of conduct defining standards of personal behaviour; 
8. develop and maintain an effective standards committee that acts as the main means to 

raise awareness and take the lead in ensuring high standards of conduct are firmly 
embedded within the local culture; 

9. put in place arrangements to ensure that members and staff of the Council are not 
influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders 
and put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they continue to operate in 
practice; 

10. put in place arrangements to ensure that procedures and operations are designed in 
conformity with appropriate ethical standards, and to monitor their continuing compliance 
in practice; 

11. ensure that systems and processes for financial administration and control, protection of 
the Authority’s resources and assets, are designed in conformity with appropriate ethical 
standards; and are subject to monitoring of their effectiveness; 

12. put in place arrangements so that conflicts of interest on behalf of members and 
employees can be avoided and put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they 
continue to operate in practice; 

13. put in place effective transparent and accessible arrangements for dealing with 
complaints; 

14. actively recognise the limits of lawful activity placed on the Council by the ultra vires 
doctrine but also strive to utilise the Council’s powers to the full benefit of our 
communities; 

15. observe all specific legislative requirements placed upon the Council as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular integrate the key principles of 
administrative law – rationality, legality and natural justice into the Council’s procedures 
and decision making; 

Page 201



 

4 
 

16. put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. Ensure that policies for whistle 
blowing which are accessible to staff and those contracting with the authority, and 
arrangements for the support of whistle blowers, are in place; 

 
Additional Measure: 
 

17.  put in place effective anti-bribery, fraud and corruption policies that comply with the 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014).  
 

Additional Measures 
 

17.18. use a statement of business conduct  to make its expectations clear to partners and 
external providers of services 

 
Principle B   Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in 
their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation should be used to 
engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service users, 
as well as institutional stakeholders.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. develop protocols to ensure effective communication between members and officers in 
their respective roles; 

2. develop protocols to ensure that the leader and chief executive negotiate their respective 
roles early in their relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained; 

3. ensure that the Council’s vision, strategic plans, priorities and targets are developed 
through robust mechanisms, and in consultation with the local community and other key 
stakeholders, and that they are clearly articulated and disseminated; 

4. in pursuing partnerships, agree a set of values against which decision making and actions 
can be judged in line with and having referred to the Partnership Working 
FrameworkRegister and Guidance. 

5. develop and maintain open and effective mechanisms for documenting evidence for 
decisions and recording the criteria, rationale and considerations on which decisions are 
based; 

6. put in place effective arrangements designed to encourage individuals from all sections of 
the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the authority; 

7. make clear to ourselves, all staff and the community, to whom we are accountable and for 
what; 

8. consider those institutional stakeholders to whom we are accountable and assess the 
effectiveness of the relationships and any changes required; 

9. establish clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other 
stakeholders and put in place monitoring arrangements to ensure that they operate 
effectively; 

10. put in place arrangements to enable the authority to engage with all sections of the 
community effectively. These arrangements will recognise that different sections of the 

Page 202



 

5 
 

community have different priorities and establish explicit processes for dealing with these 
competing demands; 

11. develop and maintain a clear policy on how staff and their representatives are consulted 
and involved in decision making; 

12. when working in partnership, ensure that engagement and consultation undertaken by the 
partnership is planned with regard to methodology, target audience and required 
outcomes. Existing mechanisms and groups will be used where appropriate. In the work 
cycle of the partnership it must be clear and demonstrable to the public what has happened 
to any feedback and what has changed as a result. 

 
Additional measures: 
 

13.12. To put in place measures to ensure freedom of information requests and 
transparency requirements are adhered to, including publication through the Council’s 
website.  

14.13. To ensure committee decisions are fully documented through the use of 
appropriate report templates, agenda submission processes and minutes. 

 
Principle C   Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it 
should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should 
further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes, and remain 
within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including 
citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and 
in balancing competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. make a clear statement of the authority’s purpose and vision and use it as a basis for 
corporate and service planning and shaping the community strategy and local area 
agreements; 

2. review on a regular basis the authority’s vision for the local area and its impact in the 
authority’s governance arrangements; 

3. when working in partnership, ensure that there is a common vision underpinning the work 
of the partnership that is understood and agreed by all partners. The vision should: 

a. be supported by clear and measurable objectives with targets and indicators 
4.3. identify quality and cost drivers for deciding what services will be either provided or 

commissioned by the partnership.clear statement setting out the purpose of the 
partnership and the outputs to be achieved. 

5.4. develop and maintain an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive 
challenge and enhances the authority’s performance overall; 

6.5. produce an annual report on scrutiny function activity; 
 
Additional measures: 
 

Page 203



 

6 
 

7.6. ensure performance, financial and non-financial, is reported to senior 
management and Members.  

8.7. Link service plans to agreed measures and targets within the Council plan; 
9.8. ensure strategic investment decisions are managed through the capital budgeting 

process and Medium Term Financial Plan, including the economic, social and 
environmental impacts. 

10.9. ensure committee reports are shared with senior management and portfolio 
holders as part of the pre agenda submission process. 
 
 

Principle D   Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

 
Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, 
and practical interventions (courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of 
action is a critically important strategic choice that local government has to make to ensure 
intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust decision-making mechanisms to ensure 
that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between 
the various types of resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. 
Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to ensure that achievement of outcomes is 
optimised.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. decide how the quality of service for users is to be measured and ensure that the 
information needed to review service quality effectively and regularly is available; 

2. decide how value for money is to be measured and ensure that we have the information 
needed to review value for money and performance effectively; Measure the environmental 
impact of policies, plans and decisions; 

3. produce timely, accurate and impartial financial information for decision making, enabling 
the Authority to meet its objectives and providing effective stewardship and value for 
money; 

4. ensure that effective mechanisms exist to monitor service delivery; 
5. ensure that those making decisions are provided with information that is fit for the purpose 

– relevant, timely and gives clear explanations of technical issues and their implications; 
6. produce clear, timely, complete and accurate information for budget holders and senior 

officers relating to the budgetary and financial performance of the Council; 
7. establish a medium term business and financial planning process in order to deliver a 

financial strategy ensuring sustainable finances, a robust annual budget process 
ensuring financial balance and an adequate monitoring process; all of which are subject 
to regular review; 

8. when working in partnership: 
a. ensure that there is clarity about the legal status of the partnership 
b. ensure that the roles and responsibilities of the partners are agreed so that there 

is effective leadership and accountability 
9.8. ensure that Council representatives make clear to all other partners the extent of 

their authority to bind their organisations to partner decisions ensure that appropriate 

Page 204



 

7 
 

governance arrangements are in place that include responsibilities and arrangements for 
managing risk for each counterparty, 

 
Additional measures 

10.9. agree annually a calendar of meetings to be used as the basis for forward planning 
of decision making 

 
Principle E   Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right 
skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve 
intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local government organisation must ensure 
that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are policies 
in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a 
whole.  
 
Because both individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change 
over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills and 
experience of individual staff members. Leadership in local government is strengthened by the 
participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and 
diversity of communities.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. publish an annual report on a timely basis to communicate the authority’s activities and 
achievements, its financial position and performance; 

2. assess the skills required by members and officers and make arrangements to agree a 
development plan to develop those skills and address any training gaps, to enable roles 
to be carried out effectively; 

3. embed financial competencies within all appropriate person specifications and 
appraisals; 

4. ensure that Councillor’s roles and responsibilities for monitoring financial/budgetary 
performance are clear; and they are provided with and have access to adequate financial 
skills and training to assist in discharging these responsibilities; 

5. develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, including the ability to 
scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when outside expert advice is needed, in line 
with the member development strategy; 

6. provide induction programmes tailored to individual needs and opportunities for members 
and officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis; 

7. ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and support necessary to 
perform effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly understood throughout 
the authority; 

8. consider career structures for members and officers to encourage participation and 
development; 

 
Additional measures: 
 

Page 205



 

8 
 

9. Manage the strategic Human Resource Management and Organisational Development 
needs of the organisation through relevant policies and accreditation. 

10. Promote the use of technology to enhance efficiency and quality of service. 
Additional measures: 
 
11. ensuring members and officers are aware of corporate guidance around partnership 
working through annual partnership review 
 
Principle F    Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it 
oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance management system 
that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal 
control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and are crucial to 
the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision 
making activities.  
 
A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the 
achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of 
resources, efficient service delivery and accountability.  
 
It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of 
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, 
promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to successful scrutiny and 
successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 
repeated public commitment from those in authority.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. maintain a prudential financial framework, balance commitments with available 
resources; and monitor income and expenditure levels to ensure this balance is 
achieved; 

2. ensure compliance with the CIPFA codes regarding a Prudential Framework for Capital 
Finance and Treasury Management; 

3. put in place effective arrangements to deal with a failure in service delivery; 
4. determine a scheme of delegated and reserved powers within the constitution and 

ensure that it is monitored and updated when required; 
5. require appropriate management accounting, functions and controls to be in place within 

the Council, together with outsourced and partnership arrangements; 
6. ensure budget calculations are robust and reserves are adequate; 
7. ensure that effective management arrangements are in place at the top of the 

organisation; 
8. ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job; 
9. ensure effective internal control arrangements exist for sound financial management 

systems and processes; 

Page 206



 

9 
 

10. when working in partnership, put in place protocols for working together which include a 
shared understanding of respective roles and responsibilities of each organisation; 

11. when working in partnership, ensure that there are robust procedures for scrutinising 
decisions and behaviour and that these decisions and behaviour are compliant with any 
local authority rules/codes or comply with any rules/codes developed for the purpose of 
the partnership; 

12.10. review the scope of the Chief Finance Officer’s (Section 151 Officer’s) non 
financial areas of responsibility to ensure financial matters are not compromised; 

13.11. provide the Financial Services with the resources, expertise and systems 
necessary to perform its role effectively within the Council; 

14. when working in partnership, ensure that partners individually and the partnership 
collectively share responsibility for appointing people to the partnership who have the 
required skills and are at an appropriate level. The partnership should: 

a. identify the capacity and capability requirements of the partnership 
b. conduct an audit of the capacity and capability of the partnership and partners 
c. develop an effective plan for addressing any gaps. 

15.12. on an annual basis, publish an annual report giving information on the authority’s 
vision, strategy, plans and financial statements as well as information about the 
outcomes, achievements and the satisfaction of service users in the previous period; 

 
Additional measures: 
 

16.13. Set out clear financial and contract procedure rules, kept under review as part of 
the overall Constitution of the Council. 

17.14. Put arrangements in place for sharing, gathering and storing data and ensuring 
data quality.  

15. Put arrangements in place to capture and manage risks corporately. 
 

Additional Measures 
 

18.16. when working in partnership, ensure that appropriate governance arrangements 
are in place that make clear the financial controls, data sharing, audit and scrutiny 
arrangements. 

 
 
 
Principle G   Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are 
answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions 
completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and respond as the 
organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 
internal audit contribute to effective accountability.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

Page 207



 

10 
 

1. set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the Council’s 
executive committee and the members individually and the authority’s approach towards 
putting this into practice; 

2. set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the Council’s other 
committees and members and senior officers; 

3. set out the terms and conditions for remuneration of members and officers and publish 
an Annual Pay policy statement in accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act 
2011; 

4. ensure an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained 
5. develop and maintain effective arrangements for determining the remuneration of senior 

staff; 
6. ensure that professional advice on legal and financial matters is available and recorded 

well in advance of decision making and used appropriately when decisions have 
significant legal or financial implications; 

7. enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to bring influence to bear on all 
material decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and balances to be 
retained; 

8. require our arrangements for financial and internal control and management of risk to be 
formally addressed within the annual governance reports; 

9. when working in partnership, ensure that partnership papers are easily accessible and 
meetings are held in public unless there are good reasons for confidentiality. The 
partners must ensure that: 

a. the partnership receives good quality advice and support and information about 
the views of citizens and stakeholders, so that robust and well reasoned decisions 
are made; and 

b. risk is managed at a corporate and operational level; and 
c. all partners comply with the Bribery Act 2010 regarding offering, promising or 

giving of an advantage, and the requesting, agreeing to receive or accepting of an 
advantage. 

10.9. ensure that the authority as a whole is open and accessible to the community, 
service users and staff and make a commitment to openness and transparency in all our 
dealings, including partnerships subject only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so; 

11.10. develop and maintain an effective audit committee which is independent of the 
executive and scrutiny functions; 

12.11. enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to have direct access to the 
Council’s Audit Committee and External Auditor 
 

Additional measures: 
 

13.12. Ensure audit committee complies with Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for 
Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013). 

 

Annual Review of Corporate Governance 

 
At the end of the year, the Council will produce its Annual Governance Statement which will review 
the effectiveness of the actual system of internal control in place against both the Local Code of 

Page 208



 

11 
 

Governance and the CIPFA best practice framework. The review will draw various sources of 
evidence including:  
 

 detailed self-assessment against the CIPFA best practice examples 

 the Internal Audit annual opinion,  

 relevant reports from External Audit,  

 year end reports from Scrutiny, Audit and Standards committees 

 assurances from senior management and significant partners 
 
As part of its governance role, the Audit Committee will oversee this review on behalf of the 
Council. 
 
  

Page 209



 

12 
 

Framework for the Internal Control Environment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 Embedded 
system 

 Operates 
throughout 
organisation 

 Internal & external 
reviews 

 Action orientated 

 National/local 
KPI’s  

 Periodic progress 
reports 

 Internal Audit’s 
opinion 
expressed in 
periodic and 
annual reports to 
audit committee 

 Operates under 
terms of 
reference 

 Rolling strategic 
& annual plans, 
Member 
approved 

 Risk-based plan 

 Annual plan 

 Annual letter 

 Audit opinion 

 Value for Money 
opinion 

 Departmental 
Policies 

 Control & risk self-
assessment 
questionnaires 
completed with 
feedback from 
senior Managers 

 Strategic 
operational 
strategy & 
registers 

 Embedded in 
policies & 
planning 

 Effectiveness 
evaluated 

 Project appraisal 

 Fraud reports and 
investigations 

 Reports by 
inspectors 

 Post 
implementation 
reviews of projects 

Internal Control Framework 

 Council Constitution 

 Council Plan 

 Local Code of Governance 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Revenue & Capital Budgets 

 Service Plans 

 Performance Management Framework 

 Service Partnership Protocols and 
Agreements  

 South Lakeland Local Plan 

 Financial Management Reporting 

 Project management process 

 Risk management & registers 

 Anti-Bribery, Fraud & Corruption Policy 

 Information Security Policy 

 Financial Procedure Rules 

 Codes of Conduct for Members & Officers 

 Whistleblowing policy 

 Freedom of Information Policy 

 Corporate Procurement Strategy 

 Health and Safety Policy 

 Corporate Property Strategy 

 Asset Management Plan 

 Surveillance Policy 

 Human Resources Policies 

 Customer Access Strategy 

 Equality and Diversity 

 Accessibility Policy 

 Data Protection and Governance 

 Community Engagement Strategy 

Annual Governance Statement 
 published with the Statement of 

Accounts  
 approved by Leader and Chief 

Executive 

Independent review by Audit 
Committee Members to 
examine draft AGS & 

supporting evidence and 
recommend approval 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

 Internal Control environment 
reviewed by Finance, 
Partnerships and 
Organisational Development, 
Internal Audit 

 Governance best practice 
reviewed 

 Draft AGS produced  

Performance Sub 
Committee 

 Monitors residual risk 
and management 

 Monitors risk profile 

 Receives risk monitoring 
reports 

 Performance Indicators 
& Performance Plan 

Monitoring Officer 

 Monitors compliance 
with Constitution, 
standards and 
legislation 

Section 151 Officer  

 Monitors compliance 
with internal/external 
financial regulatory 
framework 

Performance 

Management 
Internal 

Audit 

External 

Audit 

Risk 

Management 

Other 
sources of 
assurance 

Assurances 
by 

Managers 

Page 210



 1 
 

Appendix 2  
 
The purpose of this appendix is to set the Local Code of Governance for 2017/18.  
   

 
South Lakeland District Council 
Local Code of Governance December 2017 
 
Contents 
 
Introduction 
 
Principle A –  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Principle B –  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C –  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
Principle D –  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
 
Principle E –  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Principle F –  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
Annual Review of Corporate Governance 

 

Introduction 
 
This Local Code of Governance has been developed from a framework document produced by 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE). The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) defines governance as follows:  
 
“Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for 
stakeholders are defined and achieved.  
To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working 
for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while acting in the public 
interest at all times.  

Page 211



 2 
 

 
Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, which 
should result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders.” 
 
The framework contains seven principles. These are as follows:  
 
Principle A –  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Principle B –  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C –  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
Principle D –  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
 
Principle E –  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Principle F –  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
The Council is committed to these principles and has adopted them into its Local Code. The 
remainder of this document sets out the local arrangements that support the achievement of 
these principles. The Council will review the effectiveness of these arrangements against the 
Framework on an annual basis. 
 
 

The Council commits itself to the following principles: 
 
Principle A   Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for 
how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, 
both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they have an 
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of 
legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the 
appropriateness of all their actions across all activities and have mechanisms in place to 
encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

Page 212



 3 
 

1. make a Chief Executive (or equivalent) responsible and accountable to the authority for 
all aspects of operational management; 

2. make a senior officer (the Section 151 Officer) responsible to the authority for ensuring 
that appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper financial 
records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of internal financial 
control; 

3. appoint a professionally qualified and experienced Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer), who will lead the promotion and delivery of good financial management, 
safeguarding public money and ensuring appropriate, economic, efficient and effective 
use of funds; together with professional accountability for finance staff throughout the 
Council; 

4. make a senior officer (the Monitoring Officer) responsible to the authority for ensuring 
that agreed procedures are followed and that all applicable statutes, regulations and 
other relevant statements of good practice are complied with. 

5. develop and maintain shared values including leadership values both for the Council and 
its staff reflecting public expectations about the conduct and behaviour of individuals and 
groups within and associated with the Council; 

6. use the Council’s shared values to act as a guide for decision making and as a basis for 
developing positive and trusting relationships within the Council; 

7. develop and adopt formal codes of conduct defining standards of personal behaviour; 
8. develop and maintain an effective standards committee that acts as the main means to 

raise awareness and take the lead in ensuring high standards of conduct are firmly 
embedded within the local culture; 

9. put in place arrangements to ensure that members and staff of the Council are not 
influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders 
and put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they continue to operate in 
practice; 

10. put in place arrangements to ensure that procedures and operations are designed in 
conformity with appropriate ethical standards, and to monitor their continuing compliance 
in practice; 

11. ensure that systems and processes for financial administration and control, protection of 
the Authority’s resources and assets, are designed in conformity with appropriate ethical 
standards; and are subject to monitoring of their effectiveness; 

12. put in place arrangements so that conflicts of interest on behalf of members and 
employees can be avoided and put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they 
continue to operate in practice; 

13. put in place effective transparent and accessible arrangements for dealing with 
complaints; 

14. actively recognise the limits of lawful activity placed on the Council by the ultra vires 
doctrine but also strive to utilise the Council’s powers to the full benefit of our 
communities; 

15. observe all specific legislative requirements placed upon the Council as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular integrate the key principles of 
administrative law – rationality, legality and natural justice into the Council’s procedures 
and decision making; 

16. put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. Ensure that policies for whistle 
blowing which are accessible to staff and those contracting with the authority, and 
arrangements for the support of whistle blowers, are in place; 

Page 213



 4 
 

17. put in place effective anti-bribery, fraud and corruption policies that comply with the Code 
of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014).  
 

Additional Measures 
 

18. use a statement of business conduct  to make its expectations clear to partners and 
external providers of services 

 
Principle B   Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in 
their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation should be used to 
engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service users, 
as well as institutional stakeholders.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. develop protocols to ensure effective communication between members and officers in 
their respective roles; 

2. develop protocols to ensure that the leader and chief executive negotiate their respective 
roles early in their relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained; 

3. ensure that the Council’s vision, strategic plans, priorities and targets are developed 
through robust mechanisms, and in consultation with the local community and other key 
stakeholders, and that they are clearly articulated and disseminated; 

4. in pursuing partnerships, agree a set of values against which decision making and 
actions can be judged in line with and having referred to the Partnership Register and 
Guidance. 

5. develop and maintain open and effective mechanisms for documenting evidence for 
decisions and recording the criteria, rationale and considerations on which decisions are 
based; 

6. put in place effective arrangements designed to encourage individuals from all sections 
of the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the 
authority; 

7. make clear to ourselves, all staff and the community, to whom we are accountable and 
for what; 

8. consider those institutional stakeholders to whom we are accountable and assess the 
effectiveness of the relationships and any changes required; 

9. establish clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other 
stakeholders and put in place monitoring arrangements to ensure that they operate 
effectively; 

10. put in place arrangements to enable the authority to engage with all sections of the 
community effectively. These arrangements will recognise that different sections of the 
community have different priorities and establish explicit processes for dealing with these 
competing demands; 

11. develop and maintain a clear policy on how staff and their representatives are consulted 
and involved in decision making; 

 

Page 214



 5 
 

12. To put in place measures to ensure freedom of information requests and transparency 
requirements are adhered to, including publication through the Council’s website.  

13. To ensure committee decisions are fully documented through the use of appropriate 
report templates, agenda submission processes and minutes. 

 
Principle C   Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it 
should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should 
further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes, and remain 
within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including 
citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and 
in balancing competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. make a clear statement of the authority’s purpose and vision and use it as a basis for 
corporate and service planning and shaping the community strategy and local area 
agreements; 

2. review on a regular basis the authority’s vision for the local area and its impact in the 
authority’s governance arrangements; 

3. when working in partnership, ensure that there is a clear statement setting out the 
purpose of the partnership and the outputs to be achieved. 

4. develop and maintain an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive 
challenge and enhances the authority’s performance overall; 

5. produce an annual report on scrutiny function activity; 
6. ensure performance, financial and non-financial, is reported to senior management and 

Members.  
7. Link service plans to agreed measures and targets within the Council plan; 
8. ensure strategic investment decisions are managed through the capital budgeting 

process and Medium Term Financial Plan, including the economic, social and 
environmental impacts. 

9. ensure committee reports are shared with senior management and portfolio holders as 
part of the pre agenda submission process. 
 

Principle D   Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

 
Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, 
and practical interventions (courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of 
action is a critically important strategic choice that local government has to make to ensure 
intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust decision-making mechanisms to ensure 
that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between 
the various types of resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. 
Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to ensure that achievement of outcomes is 
optimised.  
 

Page 215



 6 
 

In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. decide how the quality of service for users is to be measured and ensure that the 
information needed to review service quality effectively and regularly is available; 

2. decide how value for money is to be measured and ensure that we have the information 
needed to review value for money and performance effectively; Measure the 
environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions; 

3. produce timely, accurate and impartial financial information for decision making, enabling 
the Authority to meet its objectives and providing effective stewardship and value for 
money; 

4. ensure that effective mechanisms exist to monitor service delivery; 
5. ensure that those making decisions are provided with information that is fit for the 

purpose – relevant, timely and gives clear explanations of technical issues and their 
implications; 

6. produce clear, timely, complete and accurate information for budget holders and senior 
officers relating to the budgetary and financial performance of the Council; 

7. establish a medium term business and financial planning process in order to deliver a 
financial strategy ensuring sustainable finances, a robust annual budget process 
ensuring financial balance and an adequate monitoring process; all of which are subject 
to regular review; 

8. when working in partnership ensure that appropriate governance arrangements are in 
place that include responsibilities and arrangements for managing risk for each 
counterparty, 

9. agree annually a calendar of meetings to be used as the basis for forward planning of 
decision making 

 
Principle E   Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right 
skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve 
intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local government organisation must ensure 
that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are policies 
in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a 
whole.  
 
Because both individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change 
over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills and 
experience of individual staff members. Leadership in local government is strengthened by the 
participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and 
diversity of communities.  
 
In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. publish an annual report on a timely basis to communicate the authority’s activities and 
achievements, its financial position and performance; 

Page 216



 7 
 

2. assess the skills required by members and officers and make arrangements to agree a 
development plan to develop those skills and address any training gaps, to enable roles 
to be carried out effectively; 

3. embed financial competencies within all appropriate person specifications and 
appraisals; 

4. ensure that Councillor’s roles and responsibilities for monitoring financial/budgetary 
performance are clear; and they are provided with and have access to adequate financial 
skills and training to assist in discharging these responsibilities; 

5. develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, including the ability to 
scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when outside expert advice is needed, in line 
with the member development strategy; 

6. provide induction programmes tailored to individual needs and opportunities for members 
and officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis; 

7. ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and support necessary to 
perform effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly understood throughout 
the authority; 

8. consider career structures for members and officers to encourage participation and 
development; 

9. manage the strategic Human Resource Management and Organisational Development 
needs of the organisation through relevant policies and accreditation. 

10. promote the use of technology to enhance efficiency and quality of service. 
 
Additional measures: 
 

11. ensuring members and officers are aware of corporate guidance around partnership 
working through annual partnership review 

 
Principle F    Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it 
oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance management system 
that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal 
control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and are crucial to 
the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision 
making activities.  
 
A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the 
achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of 
resources, efficient service delivery and accountability.  
 
It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of 
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, 
promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to successful scrutiny and 
successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 
repeated public commitment from those in authority.  
 
 

Page 217



 8 
 

In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. maintain a prudential financial framework, balance commitments with available 
resources; and monitor income and expenditure levels to ensure this balance is 
achieved; 

2. ensure compliance with the CIPFA codes regarding a Prudential Framework for Capital 
Finance and Treasury Management; 

3. put in place effective arrangements to deal with a failure in service delivery; 
4. determine a scheme of delegated and reserved powers within the constitution and 

ensure that it is monitored and updated when required; 
5. require appropriate management accounting, functions and controls to be in place within 

the Council,; 
6. ensure budget calculations are robust and reserves are adequate; 
7. ensure that effective management arrangements are in place at the top of the 

organisation; 
8. ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job; 
9. ensure effective internal control arrangements exist for sound financial management 

systems and processes; 
10. review the scope of the Chief Finance Officer’s (Section 151 Officer’s) non financial areas 

of responsibility to ensure financial matters are not compromised; 
11. provide the Financial Services with the resources, expertise and systems necessary to 

perform its role effectively within the Council; 
12. on an annual basis, publish an annual report giving information on the authority’s vision, 

strategy, plans and financial statements as well as information about the outcomes, 
achievements and the satisfaction of service users in the previous period; 

13. Set out clear financial and contract procedure rules, kept under review as part of the 
overall Constitution of the Council. 

14. Put arrangements in place for sharing, gathering and storing data and ensuring data 
quality.  

15. Put arrangements in place to capture and manage risks corporately. 
 

Additional Measures: 
 

16. when working in partnership, ensure that appropriate governance arrangements are in 
place that make clear the financial controls, data sharing, audit and scrutiny 
arrangements. 

 
Principle G   Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 
 
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are 
answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions 
completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and respond as the 
organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 
internal audit contribute to effective accountability.  
 
 

Page 218



 9 
 

In pursuance of this principle we will: 
 

1. set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the Council’s 
executive committee and the members individually and the authority’s approach towards 
putting this into practice; 

2. set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the Council’s other 
committees and members and senior officers; 

3. set out the terms and conditions for remuneration of members and officers and publish 
an Annual Pay policy statement in accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act 
2011; 

4. ensure an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained 
5. develop and maintain effective arrangements for determining the remuneration of senior 

staff; 
6. ensure that professional advice on legal and financial matters is available and recorded 

well in advance of decision making and used appropriately when decisions have 
significant legal or financial implications; 

7. enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to bring influence to bear on all 
material decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and balances to be 
retained; 

8. require our arrangements for financial and internal control and management of risk to be 
formally addressed within the annual governance reports; 

9. ensure that the authority as a whole is open and accessible to the community, service 
users and staff and make a commitment to openness and transparency in all our 
dealings, including partnerships subject only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so; 

10. develop and maintain an effective audit committee which is independent of the executive 
and scrutiny functions; 

11. enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to have direct access to the 
Council’s Audit Committee and External Auditor 

12. Ensure audit committee complies with Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013). 

 

Annual Review of Corporate Governance 

 
At the end of the year, the Council will produce its Annual Governance Statement which will 
review the effectiveness of the actual system of internal control in place against both the Local 
Code of Governance and the CIPFA best practice framework. The review will draw various 
sources of evidence including:  
 

 detailed self-assessment against the CIPFA best practice examples 

 the Internal Audit annual opinion,  

 relevant reports from External Audit,  

 year end reports from Scrutiny, Audit and Standards committees 

 assurances from senior management and significant partners 
 
As part of its governance role, the Audit Committee will oversee this review on behalf of the 
Council. 

Page 219



 10 
 

Framework for the Internal Control Environment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 Embedded 
system 

 Operates 
throughout 
organisation 

 Internal & external 
reviews 

 Action orientated 

 National/local 
KPI’s  

 Periodic progress 
reports 

 Internal Audit’s 
opinion 
expressed in 
periodic and 
annual reports to 
audit committee 

 Operates under 
terms of 
reference 

 Rolling strategic 
& annual plans, 
Member 
approved 

 Risk-based plan 

 Annual plan 

 Annual letter 

 Audit opinion 

 Value for Money 
opinion 

 Departmental 
Policies 

 Control & risk self-
assessment 
questionnaires 
completed with 
feedback from 
senior Managers 

 Strategic 
operational 
strategy & 
registers 

 Embedded in 
policies & 
planning 

 Effectiveness 
evaluated 

 Project appraisal 

 Fraud reports and 
investigations 

 Reports by 
inspectors 

 Post 
implementation 
reviews of projects 

Internal Control Framework 

 Council Constitution 

 Council Plan 

 Local Code of Governance 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Revenue & Capital Budgets 

 Service Plans 

 Performance Management Framework 

 Service Partnership Protocols and 
Agreements  

 South Lakeland Local Plan 

 Financial Management Reporting 

 Project management process 

 Risk management & registers 

 Anti-Bribery, Fraud & Corruption Policy 

 Information Security Policy 

 Financial Procedure Rules 

 Codes of Conduct for Members & Officers 

 Whistleblowing policy 

 Freedom of Information Policy 

 Corporate Procurement Strategy 

 Health and Safety Policy 

 Corporate Property Strategy 

 Asset Management Plan 

 Surveillance Policy 

 Human Resources Policies 

 Customer Access Strategy 

 Equality and Diversity 

 Accessibility Policy 

 Data Protection and Governance 

 Community Engagement Strategy 

Annual Governance Statement 
 published with the Statement of 

Accounts  
 approved by Leader and Chief 

Executive 

Independent review by Audit 
Committee Members to examine 
draft AGS & supporting evidence 

and recommend approval 

Draft Annual Governance Statement 

 Internal Control environment 
reviewed by Finance, 
Partnerships and Organisational 
Development, Internal Audit 

 Governance best practice 
reviewed 

 Draft AGS produced  

Performance Sub Committee 

 Monitors residual risk and 
management 

 Monitors risk profile 

 Receives risk monitoring 
reports 

 Performance Indicators & 
Performance Plan 

Monitoring Officer 

 Monitors compliance with 
Constitution, standards 
and legislation 

Section 151 Officer  

 Monitors compliance with 
internal/external financial 
regulatory framework 

Performance 

Management 
Internal 

Audit 

External 

Audit 

Risk 

Management 

Other 
sources of 
assurance 

Assurances 
by 

Managers 

Page 220



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

1 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS  

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measures Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

B9, B10, 
F17 

Overall, several Local Code provisions to 
ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency 
in all its dealings including partnerships 
subject only to the need to preserve 
confidentiality in those specific circumstances 
where it is proper and appropriate.  
 

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next 2 
years. 

In progress Information governance, data quality and 
transparency will all feature as part of the 
Customer Connect Programme, particularly the 
implementation of the new digital platform. In 
addition, the new platform will also enhance 
communication with customers, ensure that it is 
easier to access services and gather feedback. 

A17b Produce anti-fraud and corruption strategy as 
part of review of anti-fraud and corruption 
policy, to be considered by Audit 
Committee.  To include a specific goal of 
ensuring and maintaining its resilience to 
fraud and corruption and explore 
opportunities for financial savings from 
enhanced fraud detection and prevention. 
 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

September 
2017 

Competed.  
Approved at 
September 
2017 Audit 
Committee 
 

See Counter Fraud Strategy on 20 September 
2017 Audit Committee agenda. 

E3.  Ensuring appropriate financial skills of 
Officers scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to 
make financial acumen requirements more 
explicit. 

AD Resources/ 
HR Manager 
 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next 2 
years. 

In progress There is a pay and reward review underway 
which will address issues around required 
competencies corporately. This is a medium term 
strategic project which also links in to Customer 
Connect. 
 
 

P
age 221



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

2 
 

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measure Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress/Comment 

G7 & 
CIPFA 
stmnt. on 
role of 
CFO 

Enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 
151 Officer) to bring influence to bear on all 
material decisions and provide advice on the 
levels of reserves and balances to be 
retained. 

The governance requirement in the CIPFA 
Statement is that CFOs should be 
professionally qualified and report directly to 
the Chief Executive and be a member of the 
leadership team with status at least 
equivalent to other members. Any different 
arrangement should be explained publicly in 
the AGS. The difference, the reasons for it 
and how these arrangements deliver the 
same impact should be included in the AGS.  

Chief 
Executive 
/CFO 

Subject to 
Customer 
Connect 
corporate 
structure 
review. 

 The CFO has presented a view of the increased 
risks surrounding the current reporting line.  
The Chief Executive and the post holder will 
review the future challenges and opportunities 
that the Council will face and the Chief Executive 
will consider the existing reporting lines in the 
light of these.  Review of structures is currently 
underway through Ignite as part of Customer 
Connect; options will be considered on the basis 
of any proposed structural changes 
  

C7/F16 Link service plans to agreed measures and 
targets within the Council plan (incuding 
Social Value)  
 
Set out clear financial and contract procedure 
rules, kept under review as part of the overall 
Constitution of the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SMT/ 
operational 
managers 

In place for 
2018/19 
service 
plans 

 Greater embedding of procurement practices into 
service planning (eg identifying contracts in 
plans) anticipated for 18/19 service plans, 
assisted by improvements to contract register 
already in place. 

P
age 222



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

3 
 

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measure Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

B4 (and 

other 
provisions 
around 
working 
with 
partners) 

In pursuing partnerships, agree a set of 
values against which decision making and 
actions can be judged in line with and having 
referred to the Partnership Working 
Framework. 

SMT/Chief 
Accountant 

December 
2017 (next 
planned 
local code 
review) 

December 
2017, subject 
to approval of 
propsped 
Local Code 
changes by 
Audit 
Committee/ 
Council 

The Local Code provisions in relation to 
partnership working have been reviewed against 
the CIPFA guidance (2016). A principles based 
approach is proposed which includes a 
partnership working guidance document and a 
review of partnerships, to be conducted annually 
as part of the AGS review of effectiveness. 

 
 

P
age 223



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 224



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee  

6 December 2017 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Chief Finance Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith - Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to show the results of the annual review of the 
Committee’s effectiveness, carried out using principles established by CIPFA, 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.  The review uses 
a questionnaire approach: its conclusion is that the Committee continues to 
operate effectively. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee: - 

(1) consider and approve the review and its conclusion that the 
Committee is operating effectively in all material respects; 

(2) note the skills framework for members of Audit Committee in 
Appendix 2. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Committee’s work programme requires it to review its own effectiveness 
on an annual basis.  Unlike the review of internal audit, this is not a statutory 
requirement but an element of best practice.  The review will provide 
assurance for the Annual Governance Statement.   

3.2 The Committee’s latest annual report, prepared in April 2017, is a useful 
starting point for the review but it tends to be descriptive rather than analytical 
and a different approach is required to test effectiveness.  In this respect 
CIPFA has published updated Practical Guidance for Local Authority and 
Police Audit Committees in 2013. 

3.3 The CIPFA Practical Guidance included a checklist to assess the 
effectiveness of Audit Committees, which is included at Appendix 1 along with 
responses prepared by officers.  The review concludes that the Committee 

Page 225

Item No.15



can demonstrate that it has been established in accordance with best practice 
and that it has operated effectively during the last year.  The Committee 
should be alert to any changes in its membership and the expertise of its 
Members so that it can arrange suitable training.  Appendix 2 includes a skills 
framework for members of Audit Committee also produced by CIPFA. 

3.4 The Practical Guidance also includes suggested terms of reference for audit 
committees.  The Terms of Reference of Audit Committee were revised in 
December 2014 to reflect these suggested terms of reference. 

3.5 The Practical Guidance includes possible wider functions of an audit 
committee.  The questionnaire in Appendix 1 includes a question of whether 
these possible wider functions have been considered by Audit Committee. 

 These functions are: 

a) Considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other 
committees or statutory officers; 

b) Working with local standards committees to support ethical values and 
reviewing the arrangements to support those values; 

c) Reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in 
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. 

Audit Committee does support some work of the Standards Committee to 
support ethical values, particularly around reviewing whistleblowing 
arrangements.  For SLDC the treasury management scrutiny function is 
carried out by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The terms of reference 
do not refer to requests for consideration of matters from other committees or 
statutory officers: any such proposals should be considered on a case-by-
case basis bearing in mind the need to maintain the independence of the 
Audit Committee. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Officers have reviewed the guidance on the operation of audit committees as 
set out above. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The Committee can challenge and alter the detail or the conclusion of the 
review, however it is believed that the assessment is accurate and can be 
evidenced.  

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 This report has no financial implications 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications of this report. 

Page 226



7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons. 

The review of the effectiveness 
of audit committee has no direct 
HSEE implications. 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons. 

The review of the effectiveness 
of audit committee has no direct 
Equality and Diversity 
implications. 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The review is not 
carried out to 
appropriate standards. 

Failure to recognise any 
weaknesses in the 
Committee’s performance and 
potential adverse effect on the 
Use of Resources assessment. 

A thorough review and 
assessment based on 
CIPFA guidance. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Committee Effectiveness Checklist November 2017 

2 CIPFA Audit Committee Members Knowledge and Skills 
Framework 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Page 227



 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

6/11/17 n/a 9/11/17 9/11/17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 6/12/17 n/a 6/11/17 9/11/17 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

n/a n/a n/a  

 

Page 228



Appendix 1 

ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

November 2017 

  ISSUE YES NO N/A Comment 

A Terms of Reference  

1 
Does the authority have a dedicated 
audit committee? 

       

2 
Does the audit committee report 
directly to full Council? 

     
Annual review to Annual Council, 
May 

3 

Do the terms of reference clearly set 
out the purpose of the Committee in 
accordance with CIPFA’s position 
statement? 

       

4 
Is the role and purpose of the audit 
committee understood and accepted 
across the authority? 

     Reported annually to full Council  

5 
Does the audit committee provide 
support to the authority in meeting the 
requirements of good governance? 

       

6 
Can the Committee access other 
committees and call officers to 
account as necessary? 

     
Also Committee reports to Council 
annually 

7 
Does it use that power to challenge 
the Executive/Committees? 

     

The Committee has commented 
critically to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on their work 
programme 

B Functions of the Committee 

8 

Do the Committee’s terms of 
reference explicitly address all the 
core areas identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement? 

        

  i.        good governance        

  ii.        assurance framework        

  iii.        internal audit        

  iv.        external audit        

  v.        financial reporting        

  vi.        risk management        

  vii.        value for money or best value        

  viii.        counter fraud and corruption        

9 

Is an annual evaluation undertaken to 
assess whether the committee is 
fulfilling its terms of reference and that 
adequate consideration has been 
given to all core areas? 

     This report 

  

Page 229



Appendix 1 

10 

Has the audit committee considered 
the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s 
position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the 
committee to undertake them? 

     

    Considering governance, risk 
or control matters at the request 
of other committees or statutory 
officers

  Working with local standards 
committees to support ethical 
values and reviewing the 
arrangements to achieve those 
values

  Reviewing and monitoring 
treasury management 
arrangements in accordance with 
the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice: in SLDC this is 
carried out by Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

11 
Where coverage of core areas has 
been found to be limited, are plans in 
place to address this? 

       

12 

Has the committee maintained its 
non-advisory role by not taking on any 
decision-making powers that are not 
in line with its core purpose? 

     
 

C Membership  

13 

Has an effective audit committee 
structure and composition of the 
committee been selected? This 
should include: 

        

  i.        separation from the executive      

Members of the committee also sit 
on Shadow Cabinet, Lake 
Administration Committee, 
Planning Committee and 
Licensing Committees.  Officers 
would give the relevant members 
advice if they believed there was 
conflict of interest regarding any 
audit or other review of other 
committee issues. 

  
ii.        an appropriate mix of knowledge 
and skills among the membership 

       

  
iii.        size of committee that is not 
unwieldy 

       

  

iv.        where independent members 
are used, that they have been 
appointed using an appropriate 
process 

    
All members of Audit Committee 
are elected members of SLDC 

14 
Does the chair of the committee have 
appropriate knowledge and skills? 

       

15 
Are arrangements in place to support 
the committee with briefings and 
training? 

       

16 

Has the membership of the committee 
been assessed against the core 
knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory? 

 


  
Core knowledge framework 
attached at Appendix 2. 

Page 230



Appendix 1 

17 

Does the committee have good 
working relations with key people and 
organisations, including external 
audit, internal audit and the chief 
finance officer? 

       

18 
Is adequate secretariat and 
administrative support to the 
committee provided? 

       

D Meetings 

19 
Does the Committee meet regularly to 
a planned timetable and work 
schedule? 

       

20 

Are meetings free and open without 
political influences being displayed 
and are agenda papers available to 
members of the public? 

     

The Committee has decided to 
hold evening meetings which 
should encourage attendance by 
the public. 

21 Are decisions reached promptly?        

22 
Are agenda papers circulated in 
advance of meetings to allow 
adequate preparation by Members? 

       

23 
Does the Committee have the benefit 
of appropriate officers at its 
meetings? 

       

24 
Does the Council's Section 151 
Officer or deputy attend all meetings? 

       

25 
Are separate meetings held with the 
external auditor and the internal 
auditor? 

     

Meetings held Jan 2010, Feb 
2011, Dec 2011, Dec 2012, Dec 
2013, Dec 14, Dec 15, Dec 16 
and Sept 17 

E External Audit  

26 
Does the Committee input into the 
external audit programme? 

     

The Committee's views are 
expressed to the external Auditor 
when considering the proposed 
programme 

27 
Are reports on the work of external 
audit and other inspection agencies 
presented to the Committee? 

     As appropriate 

28 

Does the Committee ensure that 
officers are acting on and monitoring 
action taken to implement 
recommendations? 

       

29 

Does the Committee know what 
aspects of the Council's activities the 
external auditors consider to be of 
high risk? 

     
Reported as part of the Annual 
Audit Plan 

30 
Is the Committee satisfied that 
external audit will be addressing 
these issues? 

       

31 

Has the Audit Committee satisfied 
itself that the work of internal audit 
and external audit is properly co-
ordinated? 

     

  

Page 231



Appendix 1 

32 

Is the Committee aware of any 
significant problems in completing the 
external audit that resulted in over-
runs or revisions to the audit plan due 
to deficiencies in internal 
control/accounting records? 

    
There were no problems or over-
runs in the 2016/17. 

33 
Is the Committee satisfied that 
external audit provides value for 
money? 

     

Reduction in fees following Audit 
Commission procurement 
exercise, rebate from Audit 
Commission for both 2013/14 and 
2014/15.  Procurement exercise in 
progress: appointment expected 
in December 2017 and anticipated 
further reduction in fees. 

F Internal Audit         

34 

Do formal terms of reference exist 
defining internal audit's 
responsibilities, objectives and 
reporting lines? 

       

35 

Is the Committee satisfied that 
internal audit reports to the 
appropriate member of the senior 
management team and that it has the 
authority it needs? 

     
Internal audit is outsourced to 
TIAA Ltd which gives it a further 
degree of independence 

36 

Does the Committee approve the 
strategic internal audit approach and 
the annual plan, and ensure that they 
are based on a proper assessment of 
risks? 

     Annual Plan approved annually 

37 

Does the Committee regularly review 
the work of internal audit, including: 

     
The Committee receives all 
individual audit reports 

• individual audit reports with detailed 
prioritised recommendations 

• follow up reports confirming that 
previous audit recommendations have 
been acted upon 

• seeking explanations from officers 
for delays in implementing 
recommendations 

• periodic progress reports 
summarising audit activity, major 
audit issues and comparisons to the 
annual plan? 

38 
Does the Committee use performance 
indicators to measure the 
performance of internal audit? 

     
PIs also monitor officers' 
responses to draft audit reports 

39 
Does the Committee ensure that 
officers are acting on the 
implementation of recommendations? 

     
Standing item on the Committee 
Agenda 

  

Page 232



Appendix 1 

40 

Is the Audit Committee satisfied that: 

       

• internal audit received all the co-
operation they needed 

• there was no attempt to restrict the 
scope of internal audit work 

• the audit plan was not modified due to 
deficiencies in internal control or 
accounting records 

• there were no significant 
disagreements with management 

• internal audit do not have any 
concerns about management’s 
commitment to a strong control 
environment 

• there is a good working relationship 
between internal audit and 
management 

• internal audit are not being subjected 
to undue pressure? 

41 

Is the Committee satisfied that: 

     

The CIPFA checklist on the 
effectiveness of internal audit is 
completed annually and reported 
to Committee. 

• internal audit staff have sufficient 
technical knowledge, experience and 
skills to perform their duties to an 
appropriate standard 

• the work of internal audit is properly 
planned, completed, supervised and 
reviewed? 

• there are adequate quality 
assurance procedures in place 

• internal audit reports are issued on a 
timely basis? 

42 
Is the Internal Audit Manager's annual 
report presented to the Committee? 

       

G Accounts  

43 

Does the Committee provide 
assurance to the closure of accounts 
process by: 

     

Accounting policies approved at 
the start of the financial year & 
reviewed as part of the closure of 
accounts process; Committee 
review the process of the 
preparation of accounts as part of 
the approval of the Statement of 
Accounts. 

• considering the impact of changing 
accounting requirements 

• reviewing and approving the 
accounting policies annually before 
preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts 

• assessing the adequacy of the 
arrangements for the production of 
the Statement 

• considering and challenging the 
Statement before its approval? 

44 

Does the Committee receive the 
comments of the external auditor on 
his examination of the Council's 
Accounts? 

       

  

Page 233



Appendix 1 

45 

Does the Committee ensure that any 
deficiencies highlighted by the 
external auditor are followed up and 
that robust corrective procedures are 
put in place? 

     

Recommendations from External 
Audit are included in the 
monitoring of audit 
recommendations report 
considered at each committee 
meeting. 

H Regulatory Framework  

46 

Does the Committee take a role in 
overseeing: 

       

• risk management and business 
continuity strategies 

• performance management systems 

• Annual Governance Statement 
preparation and content 

• anti-fraud arrangements 

• whistle-blowing strategies 

• constitutional revisions? 

47 

Is the Committee satisfied that 
sufficient assurance reporting is in 
place to encompass all the Council's 
governance responsibilities? 

       

48 
Does the Committee take an active 
role in the review of internal 
control/governance arrangements? 

     
Review of Annual Governance 
Statement through a panel of its 
Members 

49 

Does it ensure that an action plan is 
drawn up to correct any deficiencies 
arising from that review and monitor 
progress? 

       

50 
Does the Committee fulfil the 
statutory requirement to approve the 
statement resulting from that review? 

       

I Effectiveness of the Committee         

51 

Has the committee obtained feedback 
on its performance from those 
interacting with the committee or 
relying on its work? 

 


    

52 
Has the committee evaluated whether 
and how it is adding value to the 
organisation? 

 


    

53 
Does the committee have an action 
plan to improve any areas of 
weakness? 

 


    

 

Page 234



APPENDIX 2 

 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE  

CIPFA AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK 

Details of core knowledge required 
How the audit committee member is able to 

apply the knowledge 

Organisational knowledge 

 An overview of the governance structures 
of the authority and decision making 
processes 

 Knowledge of the organisational objectives 
and major functions of the authority  

This knowledge will be core to most activities of 
the audit committee including review of the Annual 
Governance Statement, internal and external 
audit reports and risk registers 

Audit Committee role and functions 

 An understanding of the committee’s role 
and place within the governance structures.  
Familiarity with the committee’s terms of 
reference and accountability arrangements. 

 Knowledge of the purpose and role of the 
audit committee 

This knowledge will enable the audit committee to 
prioritise its work in order to ensure it discharges 
its responsibilities under its terms of reference and 
to avoid overlapping the work of others  

Governance 

 Knowledge of the principles of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance 
framework and the requirements of the 
Annual Governance Statement 

 Knowledge of the local code of governance 

The committee will plan the assurances it is to 
receive in order to adequately support the AGS. 
The committee will review the AGS and consider 
how the authority is meeting the principles of good 
governance 

Internal Audit 

 An awareness of the key principles of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
the Local Government Application Note 

 Knowledge of the arrangements for delivery 
of the internal audit service in the authority 
and how the role of the head of internal 
audit is fulfilled 

The audit committee has oversight of the internal 
audit function and will monitor its adherence to 
professional internal audit standards 
The audit committee will review the assurances 
from internal audit work and will review the risk-
based audit plan.  The committee wil also receive 
the annual report, including an opinion and 
information on conformance with professional 
standards. 
In relying on the work of internal audit, the 
committee will need to be confident that 
professional standards are being followed. 

Financial Management and Accounting 

 Awareness of the financial standards that a 
local authority must produce and the 
principles it must follow to produce them. 

 Understanding of food financial 
management principles 

 Knowledge of how the organisation meets 
the requirements of the role of the chief 
financial officer, as required by the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer in Local Government 

Reviewing the financial statement prior to 
publication, asking questions. 
Receiving the external audit report and opinion on 
the financial audit. 
Reviewing both external and internal audit 
recommendations relating to financial 
management and controls 
The audit committee should consider the role of 
the CFO and how this is met when reviewing the 
AGS 

External Audit 

Page 235



APPENDIX 2 

 

 Knowledge of the role and functions of the 
external auditor and who currently 
undertakes this role. 

 Knowledge of the key reports and 
assurances that external audit will provide 

 Knowledge about arrangements for the 
appointment of auditors and quality 
monitoring undertaken 

The audit committee should meet with the 
external auditor regularly and receive their reports 
and opinions. 
Monitoring external audit recommendations and 
maximising benefit from audit process. 
The audit committee should monitor the 
relationship between the external auditor and the 
authority and support the delivery of an effective 
service. 

Risk Management 

 Understanding of the principles of risk 
management, including linkage to good 
governance and decision making. 

 Knowledge of the risk management policy 
and strategy of the organisation. 

 Understanding of risk governance 
arrangements, including the role of 
members and of the audit committee 

In reviewing the AGS, the committee will consider 
the robustness of the authority’s risk management 
arrangements and should also have awareness of 
the major risks the authority faces. 
Keeping up to date with the risk profile is 
necessary to support the review of a number of 
audit committee agenda items, including the risk-
based internal audit plan, external audit plans, 
and the explanatory foreword of the accounts.  
Typically risk registers will be used to inform the 
committee. 
The committee should also review reports and 
action plans to develop the application of risk 
management practice. 

Counter-fraud 

 An understanding of the main areas of 
fraud risk the organisation is exposed to. 

 Knowledge of the principles of good fraud 
risk management practice (Red Book 2) 

 Knowledge of the organisation’s 
arrangements for tacking fraud 

Knowledge of fraud risks and good fraud risk 
management practice will be helpful when the 
committee reviews the organisation’s fraud 
strategy and receives the reports on the 
effectiveness of that strategy. 
An assessment of arrangements should support 
the AGS and knowledge of good fraud risk 
management practice will support the audit 
committee member in reviewing that assessment. 

Values of good governance 

 Knowledge of the Seven Principles of 
Public Life 

 Knowledge of the authority’s key 
arrangements to uphold ethical standards 
for both members and staff 

 Knowledge of the whistleblowing 
arrangements in the authority. 

The audit committee member will draw on this 
knowledge when reviewing governance issues 
and the AGS. 
Oversight of the effectiveness of whistleblowing 
will be considered as part of the AGS.  The audit 
committee member should know to whom 
concerns should be reported. 

     

Page 236


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2017/18 Work Programme
	6 Preparing for the Introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Bill
	Preparing for the introduction of the GDPR and Data Protection Bill - Appendix 1
	Preparing for the introduction of the GDPR and Data Protection Bill - Appendix 2

	7 Risk Management Update
	Risk Management Update - Appendix 1

	8 The Annual External Audit Letter for South Lakeland District Council
	9 External Auditor's Progress Report and Update
	10 Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2a
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2b
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2c
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2d
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 3

	11 Accounting Policies 2017/18
	Accounting Policies 2017-18 - Appendix 1

	12 Audit Committee Contribution to Review of Constitution
	5.1 It is good practice to regularly review the Constitution to ensure a proper balance between operational efficiency and strong internal controls.

	13 Audit Committee Risk Register
	14 Review of the Local Code of Governance
	Review of local code of governance 2017-18 - Appendix 1
	Review of local code of governance 2017-18 - Appendix 2
	Review of local code of governance 2017-18 - Appendix 3

	15 Review of Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
	Review of effectiveness of Audit Committee - Appendix 1
	Review of effectiveness of Audit Committee - Appendix 2


